STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
1/7/2019 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
JACK MCGUFFEY
VICE-CHAIRMAN
LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Pursuant to
NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine
two or more agenda items for consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the
agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Any member of the Board
or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted
upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. SWEARING IN OF NEWLY ELECTED OFFICIALS

Z, CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.

3. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN TO THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS FOR THE TERM OF ONE YEAR Pursuant to Storey County Code
2.04.008




ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRMAN TO THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS FOR THE TERM OF ONE YEAR Pursuant to Storey County Code
2.04.008

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

CONSENT AGENDA

I For possible action, approval of Assessor's Recommended Correction to 2018-19

II

I

IV

Secured Tax Roll for Clerical Error.

For possible action, approval of Assessor's Recommended Corrections to 2016-17,
2017-18 and 2018-19 Secured Tax Rolls for Factual Error.

For possible action, approval of Assessor's Recommended Corrections to Unsecured
2017-18 Tax Roll for Overassessment.

For possible action, approval of business license first readings:

A. REED ELECTRIC & FIELD SERVICE - Contractor / 5375 Louie Ln ~ Reno, NV
B. AQUA METALS, INC - General / 160 Denmark ~ McCarran, NV

C. CAMBRIDGE BUILDERS, INC - Contractor / 500 E. Ridge Rd ~ Griffith, IN

D. WOOKIEE ENTERPRISES LLC - Home / 21270 Fey Rd ~ Reno, NV

E. INTEGRATED ARCHIVE SYSTEM, INC - General / 1121 N. San Antonio Rd ~
Palo Alto, CA

F. FLOWSERVE US INC - General / 5215 N. O’Connor Blvd ~ Irving, TX

G. CINCINNATI TEST SYSTEMS -~ General / 10100 Progress Way ~ Harrison, OH
H. KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC - General / 421 Fayetteville St ~
Raleigh, NC

I. K & C CONSTRUCTION LLC - Contractor / 701 Schaad Ln ~ Dayton, NV

J. BROWN & READ ENGINEERING, INC - Contractor / 1000 Telegraph ~ Reno,
NV

K. FINEST, LLC - Contractor / 4551 E. Fifth St ~ Carson City, NV

L. HUNT & SONS, INC - General / 5750 S. Watt Ave ~ Sacramento, CA

M. BURLITH COMPETIONS LLC - Home business / 257 Ave De La Emerald ~
Sparks, NV

N. SNOW MOLDING - Home Business / 2499 Cartwright ~ VC Highlands, NV
O. ROBERT ELECTRIC INC - Contractor / 774 Mays Blvd ~ Incline Village, NV
P. SCREEWAVE SERVICES INC - Home Business / 2440 Enterprise Road ~ Reno,
NV

Q. HECTORS HANDYMAN SERVICE - Home Business / 1390 Main St ~ Virginia
City, NV

R. VIP COLLISION CENTER, LLC - General / 100 Gentry Way ~ Reno, NV

S. VAN DYKE BALER CORP - General / 78 Halloween Blvd ~ Stamford, CT

T. NATIONWIDE BOILER INC - General / 42400 Christy Street ~ Fremont, CA
U. DAIWA ENGINEERING COMPANY - General / 1-2-1 Minami ~ Osaka, JP

V. SIMPLE POWER LLC - Contractor / 2187 Market St ~ Reno, NV




10.

W. INTERMOUNTAIN TRAILER - General / 5510 W. Lampert Lane ~ West Valley
City, UT
X. CREVO JAPAN CO., LTD ~ General / 5966 Kamimaki ~ Nagano, JP

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

For possible action approval of a proposed recruitment process, timeline, position
announcement and salary range for a new Storey County Manager.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

2019 Appointments to Serve on State, County and Regional Boards:
1. Safety Committee - Jeff Holman - Chair (No Change)
2. Legislative Representative - Marshall McBride with all others, including staff as
needed (No Change)
3. Historic Fourth Ward School and Museum Board - Jay Carmona (Was Jack
McGuffey)
4. NACO - Lance Gilman with Austin Osborne as alternate (Was Jack McGuffey)
5. Nevada Works - Lance Gilman with Austin Osborne as alternate (No Change)
6. Virginia City Senior Center - Lance Gilman and Cherie Nevin (Adding Lance
Gilman)})
7. Lockwood Senior Center - Lance Gilman and Cherie Nevin (No Change)
8. St. Mary's Art Center - Jay Carmona with Cherie Nevin as alternate (Was Jack
McGuffey)
9. Western Nevada Development District - Austin Osborne (No Change)
10. Carson Water Subconservancy District - Austin Osborne (No Change)
11. State Land Use Planning Advisory Council - Austin Osborne with Kathy Canfield
as alternate (No Change)
12. Natural Resources Conservation District (USDA) - Kathy Canfield (No Change)
13. Truckee River Flood Management Authority (Technical Advisory Committee) -
Lance Gilman with Austin Osborne and Kathy Canfield as alternates (No Change)
14. Comstock Historic District - Marshall McBride (No Change)
15. Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V&T Railway - Marshall
McBride (Was Jack McGuffey)
16. Virginia City Tourism Commission - Lance Gilman (No Change)
17. Oversight of Fire and Public Works - Marshall McBride (No Change)
18. Economic Development

a. EDAWN - Pat Whitten (No Change)

b. NNDA - Lance Gilman (No Change)
19. Storey County Wildlife Advisory Board - Rob DuFresne, Greg Hess 5r., Greg
"Bum" Hess, Jim Clark, and Rich Bacus (No Change)




11.

12

14.

15.

16.

17,

20. Washoe-Storey Conservation District - Kathy Canfield with Austin Osborne as
alternate (No Change)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review and possible approval of Storey County Audited Financial Statements for the
year ended June 30, 2018.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of the National Radon Action Month Proclamation.
DICUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Amend project completion benchmarks of contract with Robert Loveberg to review,
update, and amend Storey County's floodplain ordinance to improve standards to
meet or exceed FEMA minimum requirements, accommodate the regional floodplain
mapping and flood insurance rate maps (FIRMs), implement Carson River Flood
Mitigation Plan mitigation measures, and consider revisions necessitated by the 2017
flood event, as set forth in the attached scope of work and schedule.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible action on Resolution 19-562 to provide a date for a public
hearing on the proposed lease of a portion of Piper's Opera House commonly known
as the Old Corner Bar located at 12 North B Street in Virginia City, Nevada to VC
Ponderosa Saloon LLC for a monthly rental amount of $1,800.

PUBLIC HEARING AT 10:30 A.M. (No Action):

Public hearing to consider objections to proposed lease of a portion of the County
owned building located at 1705 Peru Drive at the Tahoe Regional Industrial Center in
Storey County, Nevada to the Nevada Highway Patrol for no rent.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible action on approval/denial of proposed lease of County
property located at 1705 Peru Drive in the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center to Nevada
Highway Patrol for no rent.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible action to approve revised agreement to purchase
Assessor's Parcel No. (APN) 001-172-003 (fairgrounds parcel) from Richard Correll for
the price of $83,333.00 and the transfer to Mr. Correll of Lot 6 Block 210 Range H in
Virginia City, Nevada.




18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible action on Stipulation with Tahoe Reno Industrial Center
LLC (TRIC) to provide that incremental tax revenues used to reimburse owners of
property within the Tax Increment Area for expenses in constructing the effluent
pipeline will not be counted as "Project Revenues" as that term is defined in the
Capital Improvement Plan agreed upon between Storey County, DP Operating
Partnership LLP and TRIC on or about February 1, 2000 (Project Revenues) and are
therefore not available as revenues to pay vouchers issued to TRI Center LLC.

19.  DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of second reading for General Business License - Crusader Armament &
Training. Hank Shannon, Owner.

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of business license Second Readings:

A.SUGARLOAF MOUNTAIN MOTEL & MARKET - General / 430 S, “C" st ~
Virginia City, NV

B. NOMNIVORE LLC - General / 222 E. 8th Ave ~ Reno, NV

C. FIVES CINETIC CORP - General / 23400 Halstead Rd ~ Farmington Hills, MI

D. DEBELL WINDOW SYSTEMS, INC - Contractor / 2600 S. Virginia 5t ~ Reno, NV
E. BIGHORN SERVICES, LLC - General / 560 Juniper St ~ Elko, NV

F. STRATOSPHERE QUALITY LLC - General / 12024 Exit Five Pkwy ~ Fishers, IN
G. ANDREWS HARDING, AIA ARCHITECT - General / 111 East 14th St ~ Elmira
Heights, NY

H. ERM-WEST, INC - General / 1277 Treat Blvd ~ Walnut Creek, CA

I. SMX, LLC - General / 860 W. Evergreen ~ Chicago, IL

J. A-1 QUALITY CARE, LLC - Contractor / 12 Sunset Way #206 ~ Henderson, NV

K. MANWEB SERVICES INC - Contractor / 11800 Exit Five Pkwy ~ Fishers, IN

L. LOOKOUT TRENDZ - Home / 368 Wagon Wheel Way ~ Dayton, NV

M. JHI ENGINEERING, INC - General / 018 SW. Boundary Ct Ste 200 ~ Portland, OR
N. AMBER’S PET FRIENDLY GROOMING - General / 269 Edith Lane ~ Dayton, NV
O. MICHAEL THOMAS SCHMOKER - Home / 4590 Tybo Rd ~ Reno, NV

P. HARGROVE SERVICES CORPORATION - General / 20 S. Royal St ~ Mobile, AL
Q. CBIZ RISK & ADVISORY SERVICES, LLC - General / 6050 Oak Tree Blvd ~
Cleveland, OH

R. PANASONIC SOLUTION TECHNOLOGIES CO., LTD - General / Tokyo, JP

S. SUEZ WTS ANALYTICAL INSTRUMENTS, INC - General / 6060 Spine Rd ~
Boulder, CO

T. ALLIED MODULAR BUILDING SYSTEMS, INC - General / 642 W. Nicolas Ave ~
Orange, CA

U. TRUCKEE TAHOE LUMBER COMPANY - General / 10242 Church St ~ Truckee,
CA




21. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
22. ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA
NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

[tems may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information {e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ / www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or




(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners” Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 12/31/2018; Virginia City
Post Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia
City, NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.

By “é;) ﬂgkl{Zéﬂ& £2£g£ ﬁ
Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 7, 2019 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

| Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to 2018-19
Secured Tax Roll for Clerical Error

2. Recommended motion: Approval
3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Asscssor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961
4, Staff summary: A clerical error on parcel number 005-061-47 occurred on the 2018-19
Secured Tax Roll. The amount of new improvements was not entered, and the LEED
abatemnent was not adjusted to reflect the new improvements. Qur office was not aware of

this until after the close of the 2018-19 Tax Roll. Therefore the tax bill was generated based
on incorrect values, and requires adjustment per NRS 361.765.

5. Supporting materials: Please see attached letter with adjusted values and tax amounts.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attomey
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Assessor’s Office
.
County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda ltem No. (, I




STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE

26 South B Street

P.0. Box 494

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR Virginia City, NV 89440

(775) 8470961 Phone
{775) B47-0904 Fax
Assessor@StoreyCounty.org

December 27, 2018

Memo to: Storey County Commissioners

Re: 005-061-47

The above referenced parcel was billed with errors for the 2018-19 tax year. A clerical error
occurred, and the Real Property Tax Bill requires correction. The amount of new improvements

was not entered, and the LEED abatement was not adjusted to reflect the new improvements. In
accordance with NRS 361.765, I am requesting the following corrections:

Assessed 2018-19 | Corrected 2018-19
Assessed Land 380,484 380,484
Assessed Improvements 4,519,830 4,519,830
Economic Obsolescence - -
Net Assessed Value 4,900,314 4,900,314
Prior Yr GAV Override 2,400,361 2,612,318
Tax Cap % 4.20% 4.20%
New Improvements Assessed - 1,589,687
Tax Rate 3.49607% 3.4607%
LEED Abatement % 23.68% 21.64%
Total Secured Tax Amount| 5 71,360.34 | § 125,273.52
Amount Paid $ 71,360.34
Balance Owing S 53,913.18

Please approve these corrections, and advisc the County Treasurer to make the changes and issue
a corrected tax bill to the taxpayer.

Thank You, = >

Storsy County & an Equal Opportunity Provider




Parcel # 005-061-47 Year 2019 Bill Amendment Work Program TC0135B2

Billed to..... UMS PROPERTY LLC
Address.... ATTN: CJ MADONNA mcﬂ &()

134 PLEASANT RIDGE ROAD

City, State PLATTSBURGH, NY Zip 12901 {Fll=Allow Input)
LOCALION. wv s w . 100 = GERMANY CIRCLE

Town....... INDUSTRIAL GID Oldest Delingquent Year..
District...... 12.2 Roll #... 004616 Tax Service Code........

..........................................................................

ior Yr GAV  Abatement Amt Recapture Amt

. 900,314 1,589,687 ' 2,612,318 - 44,311.65 .00
Exemptions. . 0 Tax Cap %.. _4.2 Bkrp/pp
Current Tax Amended Tax Current Penlty Amended Penlty (B/P)
Instalmnt 1~ 17,840.3¢ 31,318.38 T 00 _
Instalmnt 2 17,840.00 31,318.38 .00 _
Instalmnt 3 17,840.00 31,318.38 .00 _
Instalmnt 4 17,840.00 31,318.38 .00 _
Totals..... 71,360.34 125,273.52 .00 .00
Current Amount Amended Amount
Special Assessments (Use F5 to change) .. "~~~ ] oo .00
Total of All Taxes and Penalty/Interest.. 71,360.34 125,273.52
Total Amount PadQu .smswesws v s nsoswe e sn 71,360.34 71,360.34
Total Balance Owing.......cceovevnnnuncsen .00 53,913.18
FS=Special Assessments Fl2=Exit Fl7=Asgessor's File Inquiry

LFED ABATEMENT = 2164 %



NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION

LEED ABATEMENT WORKSHEET

DISTRICT 12.2

STOREY COUNTY

UMS Property LLC/Schluter Com T o mesouE, (TS | s | | e
APN 5-061-47 2018-19 0.034607 169,585.15 (27,212.46) 142, 37269 16.05%

TAXING ENTITY TAX RATE Mﬁwoﬂ TOTAL TAXES DUE | LEED ABATEMENT zmmﬁx_m_w%cm qOﬂw_Hm.wﬂ.mm
State of Nevada 0.001700 1 8,330.53 (1,802.85) 6,527 68 21.64%
................................................................... Storey County School District 0.008847 0 43,843.11 - 4384311 0.00%
........ Storey County 0.023960 1 117,411.51 (25,409 61) 92,001.90 21.64%
...... TRI GID - 1 - - - 0.00%
¥ E 0.00%
- - - _ 0.00%
- - - 0.00%
) - - 0.00%
) . - = 0.00%
.. _ # - 0.00%
e 0.00%
0.00%

N WEIGHTED AVG TOTAL
ET TAXABLE TAXABLE VALUE LEED PRIOR YEAR CURRENT YEAR ABATEMENT TO PERCENT OF
VALUE PERCENTAGE ABATEMENT ABATEMENTS ABATEMENT DATE TOTAL COST
PERCENTAGE

14,000,896 100.00% 21.84 . (27.212.46) (27,212.46) 0.1944%

2018 UMS Schiuter LEED Worksheet LEED

12/27/2018 12:31 PM




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 7, 2019 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins
Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to 2016-17,
2017-18 and 2018-19 Secured Tax Rolls for Factual Error

2. Recommended motion: Approval

(78]

. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961

4. Staff summary: A factual error on parcel number 003-092-12 occurred on the 2016-17, 2017-
18 and 2018-19 Secured Tax Rolls. The square footage of living area was calculated
incorrectly due to modifications to the floor plan that took place during construction. Our
office was not aware of this until after the close of the 2018-19 Tax Roll. Therefore the tax
bills were generated based on incorrect values, and require adjustment per NRS 361.768.

7]

. Supporting materials: Please see attached letter with adjusted assessed values and tax
amounts.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: ;

_____ District Attorney ‘
8. Reviewed by:
%l,Department Head Department Name: Assessor’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:

[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications

[1] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. (p TI-




Sana Seddan

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR

December 27, 2018

Memo to: Storey County Commissioners

Re: 003-092-12

STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE
26 South B Street

P.0. Box 494
virginia City, NV B3440

{775) 847-0961 Phone
[775) 8470904 Fax

Assessor@storeyCounty.org

The above referenced parcel was billed with errors for the 2016-17, 2017-18 and 2018-19 tax

years. A factual error occurred, and the assessed value of Improvements requires correction. The

square footage of living area was calculated incorrectly due to modifications to the floor plan
that took place during construction. In accordance with NRS 361.768, | am requesting the
following changes be made:

Assessed Corracted Assessed Corrected Assessed Correctad

201617 016-17 2017-18 2017-18 2018-19 2018-19
Assessed Land] 4,200 4,200 4,200 4,200 4,536 4,536
Assessad Improvements 50,956 46,914 49 905 45,328 72,817 66,438

Economic Obsolescence - - - - - -
Net Assessed Value 55,156 51,114 54,105 50,528 77,353 70904

Prior Yr GAV Override - E P R " 5
Owmer-Occupancy Cap % 2.90% 2.90% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
New Improvements Assessed| . - . - 20,873 20,235
Secured Tax AMIIS 1,908, $ L76890 |5 187241|$% L7B62|5 267696 |% 245620

Refund Amt:

$

139.88 Refund Amt: $

12379 Refund Amt: $

12076

TOTAL REFUND AMT
S 139.88
$ 123.79
$ 220.76

i w4

Please approve this correction, and advise the County Treasurer to make the changes and issue a
refund to the taxpayer,

Jgna Scddon |

Storey County Assessor

Storey County Is an Equal

Opportunity Provider



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 7, 2019 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to Unsecured
2017-18 Tax Roll for Overassessment

2. Recommended motipn: Approval
3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961
4. Staff summary: Level 3 Communications (DC 000011) was assessed an estimate per NRS
361.265 on the 2017-18 Unsecured Tax Roll for assets that have since proven to have been
reported on a different account by CenturyLink Communications (who acquired Level 3),

and was billed accordingly. The bill and account # DC 000011 both need to be deleted. No
refund is required at this time as payment on the 2017-18 billed estimate was never made.

5. Supporting materials: Please see attached letter with adjusted assessed value.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attormey

8. Reviewed by =
X t Head Department Name: Assessor’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1 Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——
e

Agenda Item No,

(p TH—



STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE
26 South B Street
P.0. Box 494

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR Virginia City, NV 89440

(775) 847-0961 Phone
(775} 847-0904 Fax
Assessor@StoreyCounty.org

December 27, 2018
Memo to: Storey County Commissioners
Re: DC 000011, Level 3 Communications / CenturyLink Communications

The above referenced account was processed and billed Unsecured taxes for the 2017-18 tax year
based on an estimate of value assessed in accordance with NRS 361.265. Our office has since
received information from a CenturyLink representative that the assets on which the estimate
was based had been reported on a different account (DC 000004), as they had been in the middle
of a corporate acquisition at the time. The corrected amounts are as follows:

Original Revised
Acguisition Cost| 1,000,000 -
Assessed Value 350,000 -
Unsecured Taxes| $12,112.45
Penalty/Iinterest| 5 1,211.25
Total Amount Due| $13,323.70 | § -

4N
t

Pursuant to NRS 361.765, please approve this correction, and advise the Treasurer and/or
Assessor to delete the estimate-based 2017-18 bill for account # DC 000011 and deactivate the
account itself. No refund is required as payment on this account has not been made.

Thank You,

& ) b
J%mw

Storey County Assessor

<

Storey County s an Equal Opportunity Provider




Unsecured Tax Payment Inquiry 11/28/18 10:53:57 PP5100B

Account #...... DC 000011 Current Owner: CENTURYLINK COMMUNICATIONS
Property Loc,.. 1 BUPERLOOP CIRCLE - 104847 L096-1

Billed to...u:5 LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS Parcel #: 005-011-48
(F4=Curr Owner) C/O TEOCO CORPORATION District: 12.2

12150 MONUMENT DR, SUITE 700
FAIRFAX, VA 22033

Outstanding Taxes:
Prior Year Tax Penlty/Intrst Total Amount Paid Total Due
2018 12,112.45 1,211.25 13,323.70 .00 13,323.70

Current Year Not yet billed for ;hg‘pgr;gpt_ypgp_
Instl
Inst2
Inat3
Inst4d

F9=Scan >/< >
F12=End Fl3=8how History Fl4=Print Summary Fl7=Account Inquiry




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1-7-19 Estimate of time required: 0- 5

Agenda: Consent (X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title; Business License First Readings -- Approval

2. Resommended motign: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) [ move to
approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

3. Prepared by: Mclissa Field
Departmept; Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summayy; First readings of submitted business license applications are normailly

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

S. Supporting materiats: Sec attached Agenda Letter
6. Figcal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attomey

8. Reviewed by k
ent

X Departrent Name:
—
. Cou Other agency review: - _
9. Board action:
[] Approved [1 Approved with Modifications
(1 Denied (1 Continued

AgendaemNo. |, TN



Storey County Community Bevelspment
Buginegs o,limwiug

P O Box 526 » Virginia City NV 898440 - (775) 847-0966 - Fax (775) 847-0935 ‘mfield@storeycounty.org

To:

Fr:

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office December 24, 2018
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email
Melissa Field

Please add the following item(s) to the January 7, 2019 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:
LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

XESCHMEONOZErRANrEAMMEORY

Ec:

REED ELECTRIC & FIELD SERVICE — Contractor / 5375 Louie Ln ~ Reno, NV
AQUA METALS, INC — General / 160 Denmark ~ McCarran, NV

CAMBRIDGE BUILDERS, INC — Contractor / 500 E. Ridge Rd ~ Griffith, IN
WOOKIEE ENTERPRISES LLC - Home/ 21270 Fey Rd ~ Reno, NV

INTEGRATED ARCHIVE SYSTEM, INC — General / 1121 N. San Antonio Rd ~ Palo Alto, CA
FLOWSERVE US INC - General / 5215 N. O’Connor Blvd ~ Irving, TX

CINCINNATI TEST SYSTEMS — General / 10100 Progress Way ~ Harrison, OH
KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC — General / 421 Fayetteville St ~ Raleigh, NC
K & C CONSTRUCTION LLC - Contractor / 701 Schaad Ln ~ Dayton, NV

BROWN & READ ENGINEERING, INC — Contractor / 1000 Telegraph ~ Reno, NV
FINEST, LL.C — Contractor / 4551 E. Fifth St ~ Carson City, NV

HUNT & SONS, INC — General / 5750 S. Watt Ave ~ Sacramento, CA

. BURLITH COMPETIONS LLC - Home business / 257 Ave De La Emerald ~ Sparks, NV

SNOW MOLDING - Home Business / 2499 Cartwright ~ VC Highlands, NV
ROBERT ELECTRIC INC - Contractor / 774 Mays Bivd ~ Incline Village, NV
SCREEWAVE SERVICES INC — Home Business / 2440 Enterprise Road ~ Reno, NV
HECTORS HANDYMAN SERVICE - Home Business / 1390 Main St ~ Virginia City, NV
VIP COLLISION CENTER, LLC — General / 100 Gentry Way ~ Reno, NV
VAN DYKE BALER CORP — General / 78 Halloween Blvd ~ Stamford, CT
NATIONWIDE BOILER INC — General / 42400 Christy Street ~ Fremont, CA
DAIWA ENGINEERING COMPANY - General / 1-2-1 Minami ~ Osaka, JP
SIMPLE POWER LLC - Contractor / 2187 Market St ~ Reno, NV

. INTERMOUNTAIN TRAILER - General / 5510 W. Lampert Lane ~ West Valley City, UT
CREVO JAPAN CO., LTD — General / 5966 Kamimaki ~ Nagano, JP

Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 7, 2019 Estimate of time required: |
20 min 1

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title; For possible action approval of a proposed recruitment process, timeline, position
announcement and salary range for a new Storey County Manager.

2. Recommended motion Approve the recruitment process, timeline, position announcement and
salary range for a new Storey County Manager as presented.

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: Commissioner’s Office Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: A position announcement brochure has been developed by the consultant
coordinating the recruitment for a new County Manager, Linda Ritter. That draft brochure is included
in your Board Packet for review. Additionally, in a memo to the County Manager also included in
your Board Packet, a proposed timeline and process has been presented for your review and possible
approval. The salary provided to the new County Manager will be negotiated in light of experience of
the successful candidate, however, a range needs to be included in the brochure. Ms Ritter will be in
attendance at the meeting to discuss the process, timeline and any other matter related to this
recruitment,

5. Supporting materials:
1. Memo to Pat Whitten from Linda Ritter outlining recruitment process.

2. Recruitment Brochure for Storey County Manager

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: n/a

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioners

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications

Agenda [tem No. 9

—r—
[ —

Continued




- e OB ey m T

The County

Storey County is the second smallest county in
the State of Nevada. It's 264 square miles is
located in the mountains and valleys of western
Nevada, just 26 miles southeast of Reno,
Nevada and 16 miles northeast of Nevada's
capital, Carson City. Beautiful Lake Tahoe is just
25 miles to the east. There are an estimated

4000+ people living in several residential areas
in the county - Virginia City, Virginia City
Highlands, Gold Hill, Mark Twain and Lockwood.
The County Seat is Virginia City.

While small in size, Storey County has played an

oversized part in history. In 1859 miners discovered the largest deposit ever found of gold and silver
in Virginia City. The mines of the “Comstock Lode” and "Big Bonanza” pumped nearly half a billion
dollars into the economy of the United States. At its peak the population of Storey County exceeded
25,000 and was the largest population center in the Nevada. The miners and cowboys have left, but
many of the structures and signs of the past remain. Virginia City is a National Historic Landmark
District. Historic tourism in the Virginia City / Gold Hill region
attracts 1.6 million visitors each year.

Not to be outdone by its past economic contributions, Storey
County today is home to the United State's largest industrial
park, the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center (TRIC). The Tahoe Reno
Industrial Center is a 104,000 acre center with the capacity to




house 80-million-square-feet of industrial space. Some of the companies already at TRl include Tesla,
Switch, Blockchain, Google, Mars Pet Care, US Ordnance, Tire Rack, Chart Industries, James Hardie,
Food Bank of Northern Nevada, Golden Gate Petroleum, Pro-Logis, Pittsburgh Paint, Duraflex, DIS, Pet
Smart, Wal-Mart, and many others, Also located in the area of TRl are muitiple sophisticated power
plants: NV Energy and Barrick Mines{a power plant that provides additional power support during
peak hours),

Today, Storey County's rich, living legacy unites with high-tech modernization. This county offers a
variety of small-town communities that are merely minutes away from large metropolitan areas—the
best of both worlds.

Storey County has had just one County Manager, who is preparing to retire after serving the County for
15 years.

Governance and Organization

Starey County is organized under the Nevada State Statutes and is governed

by an elected 3 member Board of County Commissioners. Each

commissioner is required to reside in 1 of 3 districts, however, each
commissioner is

elected by all residents
Storey County Electorate J

of the county to serve a

IR

4 year term. The Board of

Elected Office Heads Elactec County and Elected Court Judges
Fre Commissioners

County Commissioners also
serves as the Board of the Storey County Fire

District. They also act as the County Fair and

Dsinct

2 Recreation Board, which oversees recreation and
orney

tourism marketing and development.

Storey County has 5 elected Department Heads,
whose duties are dictated by Nevada Revised

4l

Recorder
Statutes, but whose budgets are provided by the
Cherk
Treasurer Board of County Commissioners. There are two

courts - Justice Court and District Court. Justice
Court serves all of Storey County, while the District
Court is shared with neighboring Carson City.

Storey County provides a full range of services to 5 distinct residential communities - Virginia City,
Virginia City Highiands, Gold Hill, Mark Twain and Lockwood, The County also provides service to the
Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, currently housing 18,560,631 square feet of Industrial / Commercial
space and an estimated 8,095 employees. County services include law enforcement, fire protection,
water and sewer infrastructure, roads and streets, senior services, recreation, and community
development.

There are a total of 145 FTE's serving Storey County. The total annual budget is $ 33 million for all
funds. The largest source of general fund revenue is ad valorem (property) tax at 33%. Storey County
has a history of canservative financial management, with a stabilization fund established to buffer
against swings in revenues from sales and other taxes .

Storey County Nevada County Manager Page 2




The Position

The Board of County Commissioners employs a County Manager to manage the day-to-day business

of the County in accordance with the policies and goals set by the Commission. The County Manager
provides support to elected officials, provides leadership to county departments, and coordinates the
activities of the County with other governmental agencies in the region, the business community and

Storey County residents. Responsibilities include:

¢ Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County elected officials, employees, other
units of government, civic and community groups, and the general public.

* Provide overall direction, coordination and evaluation of all programs and functions of government
under the jurisdiction of the Board of County Commissioners.

* Manage and oversee implementation of County ordinances, regulations, resolutions, and policies.

s Provide the Board of County Commissioners with information to support its decision-making role,
prepare agendas and provide reports with options and recommendations on matters coming before
the Board.

* Oversee the County's financial system by directing, preparing, monitoring, and developing
operating and capital budgets, and establishing short- and long-range goals for funding sources.

* Promote positive employee relations and create a team environment of open communication,
problem solving and a shared awareness of County goals, objectives and current events.

» Serve as liaison with state and federal legislators; make recommendations to the Board on
legislation; report on legislative changes as appropriate.

* Sustain and promote a business friendly environment in terms of County regulations surrounding
land development and building processes.

» Oversee negotiating Collective Bargaining Agreements with recognized employee groups.

Dynamic Future

Storey County's future includes several exceptional opporturities. With the continued addition of
cutting-edge, national firms to the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center {TRIC) Storey County has the
opportunity to become the largest tech sector location in the west. The ample property available for
development at TRIC makes corporate campus development a possibility, resulting in exponentiai
business growth.

Along with business and industrial development, there are possibilities for quality housing
developments. One development in the planming stages may mclude enough housing units to
produce a 300% increase in the populaticn of Storey County.

All of this growth wilt require that County services keep up with demand. Public service infrastructure
will require evaluation and careful planning in order to insure adequate and efficient service delivery

The Ideal Candidate

The ideal candidate will be a strategic thinker with an entrepreneurial spirit that projects enthusiasm
and a positive attitude. Accessibility and approachability will be essential for success. Keen
negotiating and communication skills will come into play for this problem solver and fair minded
mediator. The ideal candidate will value the benefits of living in a small community while being close
to city conveniences.

Storey County Nevada County Manager Page 3




Desired capabilities include:

* Executes position responsibilities with a strong sense of ethics, integrity and accountability; earns the
trust and credibility of others.

¢ Provides a customer service focus; understands that citizens are shareholders to whom local
government is accountable.

* Understands economic development and diversification principles and practices, including the use
of financial incentives and streamlined development processes as a tool.

* Gives department heads the latitude to manage assigned operations while holding them
accountable for results.

e Can be be objective and neutral, navigates effectively among Commissioners’ divers opinions
without being political.

* Has strong financial acumen; understands budgeting, has the ability to provide detailed financial
analysis, considers long-range fiscal implications.

* Understands the importance of intergovernmental relations; can effectively develop relationships
with neighbaring local governments and state representatives.

* Understands utility operations: development, maintenance and capital planning,

* Understands methads of facility planning for a growing County.

s Understands principtes of historic tourism development and visitor experience.

¢ Can develop positive relationship with labor groups; understands collective bargaining.

The successful candidate will be required to reside within Storey County.

Education and Experience

The successful candidate will have a combination of education and job experience equivalent to
graduation from a four-year college or university with major coursework in public or business
administration, political science, public policy, finance or a related field and (10) years executive-level
experience in a related administrative/ managerial capacity involving responsibility for planning,
organization and implementation of programs and services for an organization.

Compensation and Benefits

The salary range for this position is $115,000 - $157,000, depending on qualification and experience.
A generous benefits package is offered including health, dental and vision insurance, paid vacation
and sick leave days. The County participates in the Nevada Public Employee Retirement Plan which
provides a benefit of 2.25% per year of service credit after 5 years.

The Application Process

Qualified candidates please submit your cover letter and resume online by visiting
www.storeycounty.org/Jobs. This position is open until filled; first review of resumes occurs beginning

on February 1, 2019. Following this date, applications will be screened against criteria outlined in this
brochure. On-site interviews will be offered to candidates named as finalists, with reference checks,
thorough background checks, including credit history, and academic and employment verifications
conducted after receiving candidates’ consent,

Please note that finalists applications and resumes will be made available to the public immediately
upon selection for on-site interview. For more information, please contact Linda Ritter, Linda Ritter
Consulting at lpritter@gmail.com; {775)720-2982.

Storey County Nevada County Manager Page 4




i

Linda Ritter Consulting

775.720.2982  Lpritter@gmail.com 4250 Hobart Road Carson City, NV, 89703

December 18, 2018

Pat Whitten, County Manager
Storey County

PO Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440

Re: Proposed selection process for new County Manager

Dear Pat,

Based upon our discussions, | would tike to propose the following selection process for the new
County Manager.

1. The position will be announced via government jobs websites, the International City/County
Managers Association (ICMA) and by direct mail to all Nevada counties. The announcement brochure
will be posted on the Storey County website, with a link provided on the ICMA and government job
websites.

2, Applicants will be directed to submit their resume’s to me directly no later than February 1,
2019. Carson City Human Resources has volunteered to make the posting at the on-line sites and
direct all respondents to me. By doing this, we are eliminating a conflict posed as a result of interest
expressed by your Human Resources Director in applying for the paosition.

3. I will sereen the applicants against the criteria outlined in the position brochure and select the
top candidates for interview with two panels. At this point, those selected will be required to complete
a employment application and sign an "Acknowledgement and Release of Public Information”,
agreeing that their name, application and any supporting materials will become public record and
available to the public. Additionally, candidates will also be subject to a background check to include
reference checks, employment verification and educational verification,

4. 2 interview panels will be convened:
1. Citizens / Business Panel

This panel will include ¢ members. County Commissioners will choose 2 representatives
each from within their Districts. The County Manager, seeking balanced representation from




throughout the County and the business community, wili select the remaining 3 members for
the panel.

2. Staff Panel
This panel will be made up of 7 - 9 representatives from elected and appointed City Staff. You
will make that selection.

5. Top candidates will be interviewed by each panel during the last two weeks of February, 2019.
Each panel will select their top candidates. From those selections, the top 2 - 3 candidates will be
chosen for interview before the County Commission.

6. Before the Commission interview, the background check will be expanded to include
interviews with past employers, past employees, community members and press representatives.

e Candidates will appear befare the Board of County Commissioners for their final interview,
targeted for the first regular meeting in April. After the interview, the Board will direct you to make an
offer to one of the candidates, or direct you to continue the search,

You have expressed a willingness to stay on as long as necessary for a successful transition. The length
of the transition period will be affected by the experience and qualifications of your replacement. i
Therefore, | recommend that you not specify your official retirement date until the conclusion of the |
selection process.

If you have any questions, or would like to make any changes to this proposed selection process,
please advise.

Sincerely yours,
Linda Ritter

Linda Ritter Consulting
(775)720-2982




Linda Ritter Consulting

775.7202982 Lpritter@gmail.com 4250 Hobart Road Carson City, NV. 89703

December 18, 2018

Pat Whitten, County Manager
Storey County

PO Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440

Re: Proposed selection process for new County Manager

Dear Pat,

Based upon our discussions, | would like to propose the following selection process for the new
County Manager.

s The position will be announced via government jobs websites, the International City/County
Managers Association (ICMA) and by direct mail to all Nevada counties. The announcement brochure
will be posted on the Storey County website, with a link provided on the ICMA and government job

websites.

2. Applicants will be directed to submit their resume’s to me directly no later than February 1,
2019. Carson City Human Resources has volunteered to make the posting at the on-line sites and
direct all respondents to me. By doing this, we are eliminating a conflict posed as a result of interest
expressed by your Human Resources Director in applying for the position.

3 | will screen the applicants against the criteria outlined in the position brochure and select the
top candidates for interview with two panels. At this point, those selected will be required to complete
a employment application and sign an "Acknowledgement and Release of Public information”,
agreeing that their name, application and any supporting materials will become public record and
available to the public. Additionally, candidates will also be subject to a background check to include
reference checks, employment verification and educational verification.

4, 2 interview panels will be convened:
1. Citizens / Business Panel

This panel will include 9 members. County Commissioners will choose 2 representatives
each from within their Districts. The County Manager, seeking balanced representation from



throughout the County and the business community, will select the remaining 3 members for

the panel.

2. Staff Panel
This panel will be made up of 7 - 9 representatives from elected and appointed City Staff. You
will make that selection.

5. Top candidates will be interviewed by each panel during the last two weeks of February, 2019.
Each panel will select their top candidates. From those selections, the top 2 - 3 candidates will be
chosen for interview before the County Commission.

6. Before the Commission interview, the background check will be expanded to include
interviews with past employers, past employees, community members and press representatives.

7. Candidates will appear before the Board of County Commissioners for their final interview,
targeted for the first regular meeting in April. After the interview, the Board will direct you to make an
offer to one of the candidates, or direct you to continue the search.

You have expressed a willingness to stay on as long as necessary for a successful transition. The length
of the transition period will be affected by the experience and qualifications of your replacement.
Therefore, | recommend that you not specify your official retirement date until the conclusion of the
selection process.

if you have any questions, or would like to make any changes to this proposed selection process,
please advise.

Sincerely yours,

Linda Ritter

Linda Ritter Consulting
(775) 720-2982



Resume

Linda Ritter

775.720.2982 Lpriter@gmail.com 4250 Hobart Road Carson City, NV. B%703

Profile

Highly energetic and personable government professional with 30+ years of “in the
trenches” experience in Nevada moving government organizations forward through the
development of consensus with stakeholders, charting a course for the future and staying
the course through consistent attention to direction. Talent for facilitating groups,
developing teams and forming positive relationships throughout government
organizations and with the public they serve. Demonstrated ability to develop a strategic
planning process and move multiple interrelated organizations through implementation.
Flexible and versatile - able to manage multiple projects and deadlines under pressure.
Extensive experience acting as an agent for positive change within an organization.

Work History

OWNER, RITTER CONSULTING ASSOCIATES, INC., 2010 - 2013
Clients/projects included the following:

Carson City Convention and Visitors Authority

- Served as Acting Director while recruiting for a new Director

- Facilitated the development of a Strategic Plan and Business Review Process

Western Nevada College

- As the community representative to their strategic planning group, facilitated the
creation of the 2012 - 2018 Strategic Plan.

Consolidated Municipality of Carson City

- Cansulted on the Strategic Plan and Performance Measurement System.

Downtown 2020 Committee

- Facititated the development of the Downtown Revitalization Plan, presented and

accepted by the Carson City Board of Supervisors. Also worked with property owners to

support the creation of a Business Improvement District to support the new improved

downtown.

SPECIAL PROJECTS MANAGER, CONSOLIDATED MUNICIPALITY OF CARSON CITY - 2008 - 2010
Developed a comprehensive Strategic Plan and Performance Measurement System for
Carson City. Required working with multiple overlapping departments and implementing
a software solution to manage the performance management system.

CITY MANAGER. CONSOLIDATED MUNICIPALITY OF CARSON CITY 2003 - 2008

Chief Administrative Officer for the City of Carson City. Managed an arganization of 500+
employees and a $59 million budget. Implemented policies adapted by the elected
Board of Supervisors.



Resume

CITY MANAGER, CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA - 1997 - 2003

Chief Administrative Officer for the City of Eiko. Managed all aspects of the City, including
operation of a commercial airport and regional landfill.

ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER, ELKO COUNTY, NEVADA - 1991 - 1997

Under the direction of the County Manager, supervised the financial, administrative and
human services operations for Elko County.

Experience

s Designed, facilitated and implemented an organization wide strategic plan,

* Implemented a strategy execution system through performance scorecards.

* Facilitated strategic planning sessions with non-profit organizations.

* Managed both a City and County organization of up to 550 employees.

* Coordinated day-to-day activities of multiple organizations towards common goals.

* Developed positive relations with civic groups, governing boards and the media.

* Managed a $59 million annual budget.

* Developed plans for infrastructure development to accommodate future growth and
sustained economic activity.

s Negotiated collective bargaining agreements with multiple employee groups.

s Facilitated focus group sessions on sensitive community issues, resulting in improved
public policy.

Education

University of Nevada - Reno; Bachelor of Science, Business Administration with emphasis
on Economics, 1980.

References
Ronni Hannaman, Executive Director, Carson City Chamber of Commerce (775) 882-1545
Shelly Aldean, Eden Management (775) 885-8282



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 7, 2019 Estimate of time required: 5 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Appointments to serve on State, County and Regional Boards

2. Recommended motign: Move to approve committee appointments as recommended by staff
{or as alternatively determined)

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: Commissioners Telephone: 847-0968
4, Staff summary: Annually at the first Commission meeting in January, the Commission

appoints certain individuals to serve on various Committees. Please see the attached list of
recommended appointments for each Committee/Board.

5. Supporting materials: None

6. Fiscal impact: None other than mileage to attend various meetings
Funds Available: Yes Fund: As budgeted Comptroller

7. Legal review required: No

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:

KlﬂfCounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

,_”_|
[S——

Agenda Item No. IO



2019 Appointments to Serve on State, County and Regional Boards

b —

g 000 ) @ L e ol

12,
13.

14.
15.

16.
17.
18.
19.

20.

Safety Committee — Jeff Holman — Chair (No Change)

Legislative Representative — Marshall McBride with all others, including staff as needed
(No Change)

Historic Fourth Ward School and Museum Board — Jay Carmona (Was Jack McGuffey)
NACO - Lance Gilman with Austin Osbome as alternate (Was Jack McGuffey)

Nevada Works - Lance Gilman with Austin Osborne as altermate (No Change)

Virginia City Senior Center — Lance Gilman and Cherie Nevin (Adding Lance Gilman)
Lockwood Senior Center — Lance Gilman and Cherie Nevin (No Change)

St. Mary’s Art Center — Jay Carmona with Cherie Nevin as alternate {Was Jack McGuffey)
Western Nevada Development District — Austin Osborne (No Change)

. Carson Water Subconservancy District - Austin Osborne (No Change)
. State Land Use Planning Advisory Council — Austin Osbome with Kathy Canfield as

alternate (No Change)
Natural Resources Conservation District (USDA) — Kathy Canfield (No Change)
Truckee River Flood Management Authority (Technical Advisory Committee) — Lance
Gilman with Austin Osborne and Kathy Canfield as alternates (No Change)
Comstock Historic District — Marshall McBride (No Change)
Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V& T Railway — Marshall McBride
(Was Jack McGuffey)
Virginia City Tourism Commission - Lance Gilman (No Change)
Oversight of Fire and Public Works — Marshall McBride (No Change)
Economic Development

a. EDAWN - Pat Whitten (Changed from Lance Gilman)

b. NNDA - Lance Gilman (No Change)
Storey County Wildlife Advisory Board -- Rob DuFresne, Greg Hess Sr., Greg “Bum”
Hess, Jim Clark and Rich Bacus {No Change)
Washoe-Storey Conservation District — Kathy Canfield with Austin Osborne as altemnate
(No Change)



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 7, 2018 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Review and possible approval of Storey County Audited Financial Statements for the
year ended June 30, 2018

2. Recommended motion: I hereby approve the Storey County Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher and Staff
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006

4. Staff summary: The attached Storey County Audited Financial Statements are presented to
the Storey County Commissioners for approval.

5. Supporting materials: Audited Report Storey County, Nevada June 30, 2018

6. Fiscal impact: yes
Funds Available: Fund: . Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by: 7_#
X Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[ Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

fr— iy
Mt e

Agenda [tem No. \ \




Audit Report
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
June 30, 2018




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
TABLE OF CONTENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Auditor's REPOTL........eirvoreriomneins s st s s

Management's Discussion and ARBLYSIS............ooiiiuiimimmn i

Basic Financial Statements
Government-wide Financial Statements
STALEMENT OF NEL POSIHION. . ...vevn et iveerrn e eeee e aby ss s st et bbb b b g h g se s es i r e n b b e bt r e
GHALETIIENT Of ACHVITIES. .. oot ot treiissatresee s sirarar s etsba e e s e e a e se e s o rmr e 4 h e n s
Fund Financial Statements:
Governmental Fund
LT T T T L RN
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position..........cocvennnnn
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund BaIANCES. .. cuvviiririreremieeauisisissisamssiannsrnsis
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditurcs and Changes in Fund Balances
of the Governmental Funds to the Statement of ACIVItIES.........ovnirircii e
Statement of Revenues, E.xpenditum. and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Roads Fund ..............................................................................................................
474 Fire Protection District Fund .......................................... T e
Tri Payback FURG. ....oiviii e i s
USDIA BONA FUNG. .. e oeiriaiiimeessne s eetbe s memrn ree bas e nes s s be s e s abr s s e e b s e s e o aE s arn st e
virginia City Tourism Commission FUNd..........coiimmmmiimsi s
Proprietary Funds
SLAtETENt OF NET POSHION. ... oo eerentteis i eeimnserrrin oo e sean e a e e e e n s a sttt

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances........coviiinnnnns

SIALEMENt OF CBSI FIOWS. .. oeiiuiitirr s it estra e ies s ees o reheara s sna s babae b arr iyt st s b arn rn s et
Fiduciary Funds
Sraternent OF NGt ASSELS. .. ..vururyeeserrsre s terreeberbar st v sas e te e s ara e e b i e LR L LT g e

NOtEs 10 FINANCIAL SCAUEIMENTS. . oot teruavesrrmersautinrs i esrrts bt s st sas es b rrrn i b e s s b s T n s tr e

Supplementary Information:
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds... - -
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balanca Nonmajor
GOVEITMENLAL FUNGS. ... oiivrtvieeeesar it ie e mnsr i iar e eear e sE s r e v sy e a s s b bt
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and Actual
Special Revenue Funds:
EQUIPMENT ACQUISITION. ... eu vttt ehries et s
JUSLICE COUIT. « ot oveneieaeseseiseee e essee s asans s me e E b Se s s b4 fo g am s Tr et s e n b s b e L E e S a st

Emergency MIGZAON. ......ovoviiarnen sttt i it s

IDAIZENt ACCIAEDL. ... vveeviscrearsres i eans st s e e e db e bbb e
TechnOlOZY ecvviveniirinn e s et I e
Federal/State Grant........ S OU PP TRPSP P PP TSI PP L P TR PPIED
FIE EIMIETRENCY 111 evvereesirtiesuirassas sonesresimsseres e abs e s s bbb L e b s
GABILIZALION. 1.+ vvevensemnssees e ansrnes et eet e e e s s h s e ba s a e S EE Eh e e ge e T Ty s A E s e
Genetic MATKEE TESUNE. ..o irieisieirr ot saasr st s s bbb b e st s

Page

12
14
15

17

18
23
24
25
26
27

28
29
30

K}

32

55

58

61
62
63

65
66
67
68
69
70
n
72
73




STOREY COUNTY, NEYADA
TABLE OF CONTENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

FINANCIAL SECTION (cont'd.)
Capital Projects Funds
Capital PrOJECIS. . uvvivriiie e ettt s feererr e s sai
P L oo 1T, 1 TR T PP P PP PP TR TP SR PSS TR LA LR LEL LY
Virginia City RaIL...coeoviiriiii v
Fite consumvronmmimsmsans s nnmpesnmssss e G A R T R S B s e AT
Enterprise Funds:
Water System
Statement of Revenue 8nad EXPOnse......ccoovveiivirinmi i st e
Statement of Cash Flows........... e s ven b G EEL TS R R A S e e g
Virginia Divide Sewer Improvement District
Staternent of Revenue and EXPERSe..........ooovirirmreemiiiiiiimmnisissss s st
Statement of Cash FIOWS. .. ...oivveireririontiessimrisiie e e ert i e smss s ran e tnt e ry s
Fiduciary Fund Types:
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities All Agency Funds....oooovvereiemnnin e
Schedule of Storey County Abatement Agreements... 5
Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Rclated Ratms ........................................................
Schedule of County's Share of Net Pension Liability-Public Retirement System of Nevada............ocoovevieniinnnnnns
Schedule of County’s Contributions-Public Employees’ Retirement System Of NevBdA....vooviviiieiiinrmraniinenenas

COMPLIANCE SECTION
Report on Compliance and on Internal Contro} over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards..........ooooviecinnn
Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program
Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular b0 £ & S ————

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards............coooonniiim o S
Notes 10 Schedule of FEderal AWERIS. .....vieurniverreem it isieisrsiarin s e snr s b sa st as s st it as e
Schedule of Findings and QuEStONS COSIS.....oeovvriiniiiinnniirieree s i s s
Status of Prior Year Findings and Questioned CostS.........ooouiiiie i e

Page

74
75
76
77

78
79

8¢
81

82
83
84
85
86

87

89

91
92
93
97




DiPietro & Thornton

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Joseph F. Costanza, CPA Qf_C_mm&LwH._
Scott A. Westover, CPA John E. DiPietro, CPA
Theresa M. Westover, CPA Randall D. Thornton, CPA

L R'S R RT

To the Honorable Board of County Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada

Report on the Financlal Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activitics, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Storcy County, Nevada, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the
financlal statements, which collectively comprise Storey County's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from tnaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit ¢vidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures seiected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
staternents, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and falr presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion,
An audit also includes eveluating the appropriateness of accounting poticies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinlons

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Storey County as of

June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thercof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

9550 Prototype Court, Ste 101 © Reno, NV 89521 (775’) $25-1040 » (775) 825-6074 fax * dipietro-thornton.com




Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 3
through 7, the Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios on page 84, the Schedule of County's Share of the Net
Pension Liability-Public Employees Retirement System of Nevada on page 85, and the Schedule of County's Contributions-Public
Employees' Retircment System of Nevada on page 86, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
riot a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquirics of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the besic financial statements. We do not cxpress an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient cvidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise Storey County, Nevada's
basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial, and statistical section, are presented

for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated in all material

respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide eny assurance on them,

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 30, 2018, on our consideration of
Storey County's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions out flows, regulations
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing on internal control aver
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on intemnal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Audition Standards in considering

Storey County's internal control over financia! reporting and compliance.

px_§ JhoX

DiPietro & Thomton
Reno, NV
November 30, 2018




COUNTY OF STORLEY, STATE OF NEVADA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of Storey County, State of Nevada, we offer rcaders of Storey County's financial statements this overview and analysis of
Storey County for the fiscal year ended Junc 30, 2018,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
. The assets of Storey County exceeded its liabifities by $12,854,000
. The County's unrestricted net assets decreased $820,000
. At June 30, 2018, the unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $12,454,000
. Storey County's bonded debt at June 30, 2018 was §9,727,000 which was $6,805,000 in revenue bonds of the
County's Enterprise Funds, Virginia City Rail Bonds of $1,192,000 and $1,730,000 bond of the
Storey County Fire Protection District.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to Storey County's basic financial statements. These basic financial
statements include (1) government-wide financial statements (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. Other
supplementary information is also available in this report.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide statements arc designed to provide rcaders with a broad overview of
Storey County's finances in a manner similar to private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position is information on all of Storey County's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as
net assets. Over time, increases in net assets may serve as an indicator to show if the financial position of Storey County is improving or
declining.

The Statement of Activities notes information as to how the govemment's net assets changed during the last fiscal year. All changes in net
assets are reported as soon as the event causing the change occurs, regardless of the timing of refated cash flows. Revenues and expenses are
reported for some items that result in cash flows in future periads, {e.g. camed, unused vacation)

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Storey County that are mainly supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues (government activities) from other functions that recover their costs through user fees and charges. The governmental activities of
Storey County included general government, public safety, roads and streets, judicial and, culture and recreation. The business activities
{enterprise funds) are the water and sewer.

The government-wide financial statements can be found in this report on pages 9 and 10.

Fund Financlal Statements. Funds are groupings of related accounts and is used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific
activities or purpose. Storey County uses fund accounting to cnsure compliance with state and federal finance related requirements. The
fund types of Storey County are as follows: governmental, entetprise; and fiduciary.

Goveramental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for the functions reported as govenmental activities, in the government-
wide financial statements. Unlike the Government-Wide Financial Statements, governmental fund statements focus on near term inflows of
expendable resources and on balances of expendable resources at the end of the fiscal year. This information helps with decisions as to near
term financing needs.

The focus of governmental funds is narrower than the government-wide financial statements. It is useful to compare the information for
governmental funds with similar information for governmental activitics in government-wide financial statements. Readers will better
understand the long-term impect of governments near-term financing decisions. The governmental fund Balance Sheet and governmental
fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances allow this comparison between governmental funds and
activities.




COUNTY OF STOREY, STATE OF NEVADA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Storey County has twenty-three governmental funds. Financial information is stated separately in the governmental fund Balance Sheet
and in the governmental Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances, for the general fund and five other funds
considered major funds. Data from the other scventcen govemmental funds are combined. Individual fund data for non-major
governmental funds are reported in combining statements in this report.

Storey County adopts an annual budget for all the above funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for all funds to
show compliance with the budget.

The governmental funds finencial statements can be found in this report on pages 12 through 27.

Enterprise funds. Storey County operates two enterprise (proprictary) funds, Water and Sewer. These funds are reported as business
type activitics, reported in the government-wide financial statements.

Enterprise funds arc presented on pages 28 through 30.
Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for other entities. Fiduciary funds are not reported in the

government-wide financial statement as the resources do not support Storey County's needs. The cash basis of accounting is used for
fiduciary funds.

Fiduciary fund financial statements can be found in this report on page 3L

Notes to the financial statements. The notes in this report provide additional information necessary for a full understanding of the
information provided in the government-wide financial statements. The notes can be found on pages 32 through 54.

Other information. The combining and individual fund statements and schedules for major governmental funds can be found on page
18 through 27 of this report. This same information for non-major governmental funds can be found on pages 55 through 77 of this

report

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

NET POSITION
Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities Total

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2018

Current and Other Assets $ 35,605,000 $ 1,572,000 % 37,177,000
Capital Assets 55,767,000 19,565,000 75,332,000
Total Assets j_ﬂ.mmwmmm
Deferred Outflows s 9,505,000 § 70,000 $ 9,575,000
Long Term Liabilities
Qutstanding s 83,602,000 § 7,346,000 $ 90,948,000
Current Liabilities 8,424,000 97,000 8,521,000
Total Liabilitics $ 92,026,000 § 7,443,000 § 99,469,000
Deferred Inflows $ 6,124,000 8§ 146,000 $ 6,270,000
Net Position

Invested in Capital
Assets, Net of Related Debt $ 11,491,000 §$ 12,760,000 § 24,251,000

Restricted 143,000 251,000 394,000
Unrestricted (8.907,000) 607,000 (8,300,000)
Total Net Position §__2727.000 § _J3SIRG0Q S 16243000




COUNTY OF STOREY, STATE OF NEVADA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVENUES:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating CGrants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
General Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Intercst Eamnings
Bond Proceeds
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENSES:
General Government
Public Safety
Judicial
Health and Welfare
Culture and Recreation
Community Support
Highways and Strects
Intergovernmental
Water and Sewer

Total Expenses
Changes in Net Position

Net Position - July 1

Net Position - June 30

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Governmental Business Type
Activilies Activities Total
Junc 30, 2018 Jung 30,2018 June 30, 2018
$ 6,289,000 § 951,000 § 7,240,000
856,000 - 856,000
25,000 - 25,000
13,628,000 - 13,628,000
14,191,000 - 14,191,000
148,000 - 148,000
22,000 - 22,000
956,000 14,000 970,000
36,115,000 065,000 37,080,000
12,614,000 - 12,614,000
19,884,000 - 19,884,000
1,172,000 - 1,172,000
247,000 - 247,000
173,000 - 173,000
888,000 - 888,000
1,083,000 - 1,083,000
46,000 - 46,000
- (4,020.000) (4,020,000)
36,107,000 (4,020,0600) 32,087,000
8,000 4,985,000 4,993,000
2,719,000 8,613,000 11,352,000
$ 2,727,000 $ 13,618,000 § 16,345,000




COUNTY OF STOREY, STATE OF NEVADA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenues in the General Fund were $17,371,000 which was §1,471,000 more than the amount budgeted. Actual
cxpenditures were $12,330,000, which was $710,000 less than appropriations for the year. Overall, the total ending fund

balance was $12,454 000 which is $4.394,000 more than budgeted,
PERCENT TOTALS- ALL FUNDS

@ Charges for Services

m Capital Grants and
Contributions

M Taxes

W Intergovernmental

H Interest Earnings

m Bond Proceeds

& General Government

u Public Safety

# Judidal

® Health and Welfare

® Culture and Recreation
® Community Support

® Highways and Streets

@ Intergovernmental

® Water and Sewer




COUNTY OF STOREY, STATE OF NEVADA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Type Activities. Business-type activities decreased Storey County's net assets by $4,973,367. Depreciation expense for the
current fiscal year was $250,638.

Financial Analysis of the Governmeat's Funds, As noted carlicr, Storey County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance rclated legal requirements.

Governmental Funds, The focus of Storey County's governmental funds is to provide information on near term inflows, outflows, and
balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing Storey County's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved
fund balance may serve as a useful measure of govemment's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

Budgetary Highlights-Fiscal Year June 30, 2018, The budget statements reflect a comparison of budgeted revenues and expenditures to
actual for the year ended June 30, 2018. The budget statements were prepared from the final budget as filed with the Nevada Department of
Taxation. Budget revenues and cxpenditures were adjusted for grants reccived in excess of original amounts budgeted. Augmentations and
tife item transfers were made during the year as approved by the Storey County Commissioners.

The General Fund revenues were more than expectations by $1,471,000, leaving a fund balance of $12,454,000. General Fund budget
information can be found on pages 18 through 22.

Capital Assets, Storcy County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of June 30, 2018 amounts
to $75,331,000 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, and system, improvements,
machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, and bridges.

STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
CAPITAL ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2018
Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities Total

Jung 30, 2018 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2018
Land $ 811,000 § S 811,000
Antique Furniture 75.000 - 75,000
Construction in Process 1,334,000 10,264,000 11,598,000
Buildings and Improvements 7,627,000 - 7,627,000
Improvements other than Buildings 38,635,000 - 38,635,000
Mechinery and Equipment 7,285,000 - 7,285,000
Sewer and Water systems - 9,300,000 9,300,000
Total $ 55,767,000 § 19,564,000 $ 75,331,000

Tesla Motors:

On November 20, 2014, The Nevada Governors Office of Economic Development (GOED) gave final approval for the tax
incentives and abatements to Tesla Motors for the construction and development of the mile long battery factory, located in
the Storey County, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. The project is expected to employ more than 6,000 people in the plant
located 15 miles east of Reno-Sparks Nevada. See note relating to the tax abatement disclosures.

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Storey County, Nevada's finances for all those with an
interest in the government's finances. Questions conceming any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to Storey County Comptroller, P.O. Box 432, Virginia City, Nevada
89440, telephone nurpbcr (775)847-1006, e-mail




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30,2018
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
ASSETS
Cash and investments 5 33,800,912 % 1,478,087 § 135,368,99%
Accounts receivables (net allowance) 1,543,418 94,168 1,637,586
Taxes reccivable 98,000 - 98,000
Prepaid expenses 44,220 - 44,220
Inventory 28,766 - 28,766
Capital assets - nondeprecisble
Land 810,921 - 810,921
Antique fumiture 75,000 - 75,000
Construction in progress 1,334,163 10,264,221 11,598,384
Capital assets - net of accumulated depreciation
Buildings and improvements 7,626,956 - 7,626,956
improvements other than buildings 38,634,676 - 38,634,676
Utility system - 9,300,497 9,300,497
Machinery and equipment 7,285,193 - 7,285,193
Total Assets $ 91,372,225 § 21,136,973 § 112,509,198
WS OF 0]
Deferred outflows-OPEBR $ 214872 § - 3 214,872
Deferred outflows-pension 9,290,338 69,795 9,360,133
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 9,505,210 § 69,795 $ 9,575,005
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 8,424,054 § 96,984 $ 8,521,038
Non-current liabilitics
Bonds/Notes payable - due within one year 174,841 126,124 300,965
- due in more than one year 44,100,612 6,678,431 50,779,043
Compensated absences - due in more than one year 760,534 - 760,534
Net OPEB obligation 18,506,210 - 18,506,210
Net pension liability 20,059,877 542.021 20,601,898
Total Liabilities $ 92,026,128 § 7.443.560 $ 99,469,688
Deferred inflows-OPEB b 2,267,828 % - $ 2,267,828
Deferred inflows-pension 3,855,981 145,652 4,001,633
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources s 6,123,809 § 145652 § 6,263,461
NET POSITION
Restricted reserve b 142,640 §$ 250,850 § 393,490
Invested in capital assets - net of related debt 11,491,456 12,760,163 24,251,619
Unrestricted (8,906,598) 606,543 (8,300,055)
Total Net Position $ 2,727,498 § 13,617,556 § 16,345,054

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
9




FUNCTI /P
Primary government;
Governmental aclivities:
General government
Public safety
Judicial
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Community support
Highways and strects
Intergovernmental

Total Governmental Activities
Busincss type activities:

Water
Sewer

Total Business-Type Activitics

Total Primary Government

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

PROGRAM REVENUES
OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES GRANTS AND GRANTS AND

EXPENSES FOR SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS

3 12,610,790 4977255 § - 8 -
19,883,346 898,715 855,950 24,775
1,171,796 188,589 g .

246,819 5 . .

174,331 25,532 - .

889,164 . . .

1,082,612 198,546 % .

45,594 - . -

36.104.452 6.288.637 855,950 24,775
609,190 557,800 - .
(4,628,820) 392,755 . :

— {4.019.630) 950,555 . .
$ 32,084,822 7,239,192 § £55,950 § 24,775

10




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NET (EXPENSE)REVENUE AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
BUSINESS
GOVERNMENTAL TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Primary government;
Governmental activities:
Genceral government s (7,633,535) § - $ (7,633,535)
Public safety (18,103,506) - (18,103,906)
Judicial (983,207) - {983,207)
Health and welfare (246,81%) - (246,819)
Culture and recreation (148,799) - (148,799)
Community support (889,164) - (889,164)
Highways and streets (B84,066} - (884,066}
Intergovernmental (45,594) . {45,594)
Total Governmental Activities —(28.935.090) - (28.935.090)
Business type activitics:
Water - (51,390) (51,3%0)
Sewer - 5,021,575 5,021,575
Total Business-Type Activities - 4,970,185 4,970,185
Total Primary Government (28.935.090) 4,970,185 (23.964,903)
General revenues:
Property taxes 13,628,214 - 13,628,214
Various state collected pass-through revenues 14,190,677 - 14,190,677
Investment eamings 147,539 - 147,539
Bond proceeds 21,753 - 21,753
Miscellancous revenue 955,571 14,462 970,033
Capital contributions and grants - - -
Total General Revenues 28,943,754 14462 28958216
Change in Net Position 8,664 4,984,647 4,993,311
Net Position, July 1 2,718,834 8,632,909 11,351,743
Net Pasition, June 30 s 2727498 § 13,617,556 § 16,345,054

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
i




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
| BALANCE SHEET |
i JUNE 30, 2018 ]
! 474 FIRE
| PROTECTION
? ROAD DISTRICT  TRI-PAYBACK USDA
GENERAL FUND FUND FUND BOND FUND
ASSETS
Cash $ 18,6346%8 § 490473 § 1,948,649 § 3154850 § 29,188
Accounts receivable (net allowance) 418,856 145,837 157,645 - 561,681
Taxes receivable 74,159 - 21,570 - -
Prepaid expenses - - - - -
Inventory - - - - -
Total Assets $ 19,127,673 § 636,310 § 2327864 $ 3154850 § 590,869
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 313916 § 233,393 § 137,027 § - § 561,682
Accrued expenses and deposits 260,622 2,664 154,135 . - -
Unearned income - - - - -
Account payable - Tesla 6,033,195 - - - -
Total Liabilities 6,607,733 236,057 291,162 - 561,682
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable resources property laxes 65,596 140,609
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable - - - - -
Reserved - debt service - - 142,640 - -
Unassigned reported in:
General fund 12,454,344 - - - -
Capital projects funds - - - - .
Special revenue funds - 400,253 1,753,453 3,154,850 29,187
Total Fund Balances 12,454,344 400,253 1,896,093 3,154,850 29,187
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances $ 19127673 § 636310 $ 2,327864 §$  3,154850 § 590,869

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
12




ASSETS
Cash

Accounts reccivable {net allowance)
Taxes receivable

Prepaid expenses

Inventory

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilit
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and deposits
Unearned income
Account payable - Tesla
Total Liabilitics

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable resources property taxes

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Reserved - debt service
Unassigned reported in:
General fund
Capital projects funds
Special revenue funds
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilitics, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2018
OTHER TOTAL
VCTC GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUNDS FUNDS
$ 264,526 § 9,368,568 § 33,890,912
5,000 54,399 1,543,418
- 2,271 98,000
44,220 . 44,220
28,766 - 28,766
$ 342,512 § 9425238 § 35,605,316
$ 41,565 § 637899 § 1,925,482
7,038 - 424,459
40,918 - 40,918
s - 6,033,195
89,521 637,899 8,424,054
- 1,984 208,189
72,986 - 72,986
- - 142,640
180,005 - 12,634,349
- 5,741,630 5,741,630
- 3,043,725 8,381,468
252,991 8,785,355 26,973,073
$ 342512 § 9425238 § 35,605,316

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
13




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 3¢, 2018

Total Fund Balance - government funds - page 13 5 26,973,073

Amounts reported for governmental activitics in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets net of related depreciation are not reported in the
Governmental Funds financial statements because they are not current
financial resources, but they are reported in the statement of net assets

55,766,909
Deferred outflows of resources for OPEB 214,872
Deferred outflows of resources for pensions 9,290,338
Property taxes receivable that are note available to pay current period
expenditures and thercfore are reported as unearned in the funds 208.189
Long term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds. (44,275,453)
Pension liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore not reported in funds (38,566,087
Compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the funds. (760,534)
Deferred inflows of resources for OPEB (2,267,828)
Deferred inflows of resources for pensiona _ (3.833981)
Total Net Position - governmental activities - page 9 $ 2,727,498

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
14




REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeiturcs
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

P I
Current:
General government

Public safety

Judicial

Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Community service
Highways and streets
Intergovernmental

S

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures

Transfers in

Transfers out

Transfers to proprietary funds
Federal grants

Loan (payments) proceeds
Bond proceeds

' Bond interest

|
! RCE
|
|

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
“474
FIRE
PROTECTION TRI-
ROAD DISTRICT ~ PAYBACK USDA
GENERAL FUND FUND FUND  BOND FUND
$ 10,119,892 § - § 3,101,955 § < 8 .
1,688,348 . 4,395 - .
2,325,740 845,218 1,279,779 - 8,727,892
2,703,547 198,546 772,649 . ’
4,981 : . . i
527,907 6,442 223,318 . -
_ 17370915 _ _ 1050206 5382096 _ - ___8727.892
4,578,658 . . 602,261 ,
5,577,367 . 4,941,588 . 8,476,892
1,133,150 . g . :
105,167 . ; . )
115,735 8 . . ’
820,052 . - = -
. 1,426,857 ’ . .
12330029 1426837 4941588 __ 602261 __ 8476802
5,040,786 (376,651 440,508 __ (602261) _ 251000
U
. 5 . 751,000 142,640
(2,663,000 - (142,000) 5 .
(208,500)

“ : 704,513 - .
) ’ - - (199,828)
" . : . (193,642)
(2,871,500) - 562,513 751,000 (250,830)
2,169,286 (376,651) 1,003,021 148,739 170
10,285,058 176,904 893,072 __3.006.111 29.017
$  12,454344 S 400253 §  1,896093 § 3154850 S _ 29,187

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement
15




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

OTHER TOTAL
VCTC GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUNDS FUNDS
REYENUES
Taxes $ - 427216 § 13,649,063
Licenses and permits 44,984 - 1,738,227
Intergovernmental 612,649 575,611 14,366,889
Charges for services 579,511 123,657 4377910
Fines and forfeitures - 45,848 50,829
Miscelianeous 128,247 990,776 1,876,690
Total Revenues 1,365,391 2.163.108 36.059.608
EXPENDITURES
Current;
General government 1,416,477 3,066,548 9,663,944
Public safety - 516,519 19,512,366
Judicial - 37,321 1,170,471
Health and welfare - 141,652 246,819
Culture and recreation - 34,000 149,735
Community service - - 820,052
Highways and streets - - 1,426,857
Intergovernmental - 45,594 45,594
Total Expenditures 1.416,477 3,841,634 33.035.838
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures {51.086) {1.678.526) 3,023,770
(o) N IN
Transfers in - 2,067,000 2,960,640
Transfers out - (155,640) (2,960,640)
Transfers to proprictary fands - - (208,500)
Federal Grants - B 704,513
Loan (payments) proceeds - {171,610) (371,438)
Bond proceeds - 21,753 21,753
Bond interest - - (193,642)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) = 1,761,503 (47314)
Net Change in Fund Balance (51,086) 82,977 2,976,456
Fund Balance, July ! 304,077 §.702.378 23,996,617
Fund Balance, June 30 s 252,991 § 8,785,355 § 26,973,073

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement
16




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Net change in fund balances - governmental funds, page 16 $ 2,976,456

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activitics arc different because:

Capital outlays to purchase capital assets are reported in governmental
funds as expenditures. However, those costs are shown in the
statement of net assets and allocated over their estimated usefu! lives
as depreciation expense in the statement of activities. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation.

(652,441)
Net long-term receipts and payments reported in
governmental funds as expenditures 819,214
Compensated absences are reported as expenses in the statement of
activities but do not require the use of current financial resources and
therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds
(37,140)
Revenue from taxes in the statement of activitics that does not provide
current financial resources is not reported as revenue in the funds
100,822
Total OPEB benefits are reported as expenses in the statement of
activities but do not require the use of current financial resources and
therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds
(2,117,560)
Total pension benefits are reported as expenses in the statement of
activities but do not require the use of current financial resources and
therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds
(1,080,687)
Change in net assets of governmental activities, page 1} $ 8,664

The notes 1o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
17




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

‘ GENERAL FUND

| STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

‘ FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

|

|

|

|

|

I

|

|

I

|

|

|

|

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
REVENUES AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
Taxes:
Property s 8878481 § 8878481 $ 10,095,487 § 1,217,006
Youth services 21,786 21,786 24,405 2,619
Total Texes 8,900,267 8,900,267 10,119,892 1,219,625
Licenses and Permits
Merchandise licenses 228,100 228,100 324,428 96,328
County gaming licenses 2,000 2,000 5,730 3,730
Utility licenses 190,000 190,000 294,170 104,170
Franchise tax 80,000 80,000 213,960 133,960
Building permits and study 905,000 905,000 850,560 (54,440}
Tota!l Licenses and Permits 1,405,100 1,405,100 1,688,848 283,748
| Intergovernmental
f Federal and state grants 20,000 20,000 16,195 (3,809%)
Payment in lieu of laxes 30,000 30,000 39,172 9,172
. State shared revenues
| Cigarette lax 14,000 14,000 12,303 (1,697)
f Liquor tax 6,000 6,000 5,226 (774)
| Gaming licenses 80,000 80,000 131,929 51,929
| Basic CCRT 530,000 530,000 683,343 153,343
| Supplemental CCRT 600,000 600,000 752,811 152,811
' Motor vehicle privilege tax 360,000 360,000 375,551 15,551
Real property transfer tax 40,000 40,000 309,210 269,210
Tota! Intergovernmental 1,680,000 1,680,000 2,325,740 645,740
Charges for Services
Clerk fees 24,000 24,000 8,662 (15,338)
Recorder fees 32,000 32,000 55,901 23,900
Assessor fees/commissions 195,000 195,000 300,841 105,841
Building department fees 15,000 15,000 17,228 2,228
District court fees 14,000 14,000 17,851 3,851
Justice court fees 79,000 79,000 170,738 91,738
Sheriffs fees 214,900 214,900 92,526 (122,374}
Swimming pool admissiong/lessons 21,000 21,000 19,582 (1,418)
Park facilitics fees 500 500 1,200 700
Import tonnage fees 600,000 600,000 703,935 103,935
IT fees 25,000 25,000 22,351 (2,649)
Other fees - Tesla 265,350 265,350 1,133,187 867,837
BIA housing 150,000 150,000 159,545 9,545
Total Charges for Services 1,635,750 1,635,750 2,703,547 1,067,797

The notes to the financial statcments are an integral part of this statement
18




Fines and Forfeits:
District fine
Juvenile fines/assessments
Chemical analysis fees
Total Fines and Forfeits
Miscellaneous:
Rents
Penaltics -taxes
Penalties - business licenses
Interest
Tax settlement and sales
Other
Total Miscellancous
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
General Government
Commissioners:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplics
Capital outlay

Clerk Treasurer:
Salarics and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capital outlay

Recorder:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capital outlay

Assessor:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capital outlay

Administrative:
Salarics and wages
Employee benefits
Services and supplies
Capital outiay

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
ORIGINAL FINAL
8UDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS __ FINAL BUDGET
500 500 56 (444)
2,000 2,000 3,424 1,424
5,000 5,000 1,501 (3,499)
7,500 7,500 4,981 (2,519)
40,000 40,000 34,152 (5.848)
: ’ 78,306 78,306
. . 2,357 2,357
100,000 100,000 147,539 47,539
5,000 5,000 % (5.000)
& 2,126,000 265,553 (1,860,447)
145000 _ 2271000 ____ 527,907 (1,743,090
13.773.611 15.899.617 17.370.915 1.471.298
381,460 381,460 357,104 24,356
203,607 203,607 193,665 9,942
111,300 111,300 33,868 77,432
696,367 696,367 584,637 111,730
204,140 224,140 220,752 3,388
104,293 124,293 120,544 3,749
137,600 177,600 168,159 9,441
446,033 526,033 509,455 16,578
177,728 177,728 159,238 18,490
81,083 81,083 75,577 5,506
53,000 53,000 19,488 13,512
311,811 311,811 274,303 37,508
244,044 244,044 209,393 34,651
131,545 131,548 106,388 25,157
39,650 39,650 41,579 (1.929)
- . 6,145 (6,145)
415239 415,239 363,505 51,734
206,773 232,773 231,257 1,516
103,461 123,261 111,168 12,093
833,520 794,520 650,802 143,718
. - 1,497 (3,497)
1,143,754 1,150,554 996,724 153,830

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

19




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIJANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
EXPENDITURES
General Govemment (contd.)
Building and Grounds:
‘ Salaries and wages 128,780 128,780 119,865 8,915
| Employee benefits 58,376 58,376 55,942 2,434
i Services and supplics 173,400 173,400 143,931 29,469
| Capital outlay % s - *
| 360,556 360,556 319,738 40,818
Service:
Salaries and wages 166,220 166,220 147,448 18,772
| Employee benefits 80,405 80,405 68,469 11,936
Services and supplies 41,550 41,550 50,806 (9,256)
| Capital outlay 4,000 4,000 3,750 250
! 292,175 292,175 270,473 21,702
; Information technology:
f Salaries and wages 240,340 240,340 233,470 6,870
Employees benefits 133,739 133,739 117,487 16,252
Services and supplies 138,100 138,100 138,325 (225)
Cepital outlay 40,000 40,000 35616 _ 4384
552,179 552,179 524,898 27,281
! Comptroller:
! Salaries and wages 251,905 251,905 244,173 7,732
Employee benefits 115,180 120,180 117,975 2,205
Services and supplics 91,860 106,860 102,941 3919
Capital outlay - - E i
458,945 478,945 465,089 13,856
Planning Commission;
Salaries and wages 155,079 154,079 146,277 7,802
Employee benefits 69,414 70,414 70,707 (293)
Services and supplies 47,200 67,200 52,852 14,348
271,693 291,693 269,836 21,857
Total General Government 4948,752 5075552 4,578,658 496,894
Judicial:
District Attorney:
Salarics and wages 329,353 333,353 331,726 1,627
Employec benefits g 153,409 158,409 158,395 14
Services and supplies 428,425 240,925 180,061 60,864
Capital outlay - > X z
911.187 732,687 670,182 62,505
District Court:
Services and supplics 123,900 162,400 146,117 16,283
123,900 162,400 146,117 16,283

The notes to the financial statements are an intcgral part of this statement
20




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS _ AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
Judicial {contd.)
Justice of the Peace:
Salarics and wages 208,883 208,883 200,542 8,341
Employce benefits 107,165 107,165 99,930 7,235
Setvices and supplics 21,000 24.000 16379 7,621
337.048 340,048 316,851 23,197
Total Judicial 1,372,135 1.235.135 L.133.150 101,985
Pubic Safety:
Sheriff:
Salaries and wages 2,010,561 1,970,561 1,968,167 2,394
Employee benefits 1,165,461 1,190,461 1,197,927 (7,466)
Services and supplies 411,300 436,500 433,580 2,920
Capital outlay 72,000 72,000 g8,158 __ {16,158)

T 3659321 _ 3669522 _ 3687832 _  (18310)

Communications

Salarics and wages 564,916 573,916 579,411 (5,495)
Employee benefits 270,376 270,376 260,508 9,468
Services and supplies 81,775 72,775 66,413 6,362
Capital outlay 2,000 2,000 - 2000
919.067 919,067 906,732 12,335
Emergency Management:
Salaries and wages 21,678 22,178 21,678 500
Employee benefits 6,573 6,073 4,310 1,763
Sepvices and supplies 21,700 21,700 18,995 2,705
Capital outlay 5,000 5,000 - 5,000
54,951 54951 44.98] 9.968
Community Development
Salarics and wages 425,345 580,345 546,352 33,993
Employce benefits 150,065 190,065 179,458 10,607
Services and supplies 148,450 210,450 212,010 (1,560)
Capital outlay - - - -
723,860 980,860 937,820 43,040
Total Public Safety 5,357.200 5624400 _ 5577367 _ 41033
Health and Human Service
Salaries and wages 6,645 6,645 6,461 184
Employee benefits 2,864 3,864 3,262 602
Services and supplies 134,500 133,500 95,444 38,056
Total Health and Human Services 144,009 144,009 105,167 38,842
Culture and Recreation:
Swimming Pools and Parks
Salaries and wages 63,164 63,164 62,036 1,128
Employee benefits 17,344 17,344 13,552 3,792
Services and supplies 31,800 31,800 40,147 (8,347)
Capita! outlay 2 = - =
Total Culture and Recreation 112,308 112,308 115,735 (3,427)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
21




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
Community Support
Salarics and wages 146,413 146,413 140,952 5,461
Employee benefits 60,380 60,380 57,289 3,091
Services and supplies 641,900 641,900 621,811 20,089
Total Community Support 843,693 848.693 820.052 28.641
Debt Service:
Principle - E: s .
Interest ks . - -
Total Debt Service - - - F
Total Expenditures 12,783,097 13,040,097 12,330,129 709,968
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue over
Expenditures 990,520 2,859,520 5,040,786 2,18],266
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (596,000) (2,871,500) (2,871,500) -
Contingency (383,495) (63,810) - 63,810
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (979,495) {2,935,310) {2,871,500) 63,810
Net Change in Fund Balance 11,025 (75,790} 2,169,286 2,245,076
Fund Balance, July 1 8,135,678 8,135.678 10.285.058 2,149,380
Fund Balance, June 3¢ $ 8146703 § 8,059,888 § 12454344 § 4,394,456

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
22



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
ROADS FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED  BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS  AMOUNTS __ FINAL BUDGET

REYENUE
Intergovernmental
Gasoline tax $ 230,000 §$ 230,000 § 368,438 § 138,438
Supplemental CCRT 300,000 300,000 476,780 176,780
Charges for services
lmport tonnage fees 165,000 165,000 198,546 33,546
Excavation 1,200 1,200 - (1,200)
Other revenue
Interest 12,000 12,000 - (12,000)
Miscellaneous 1,000 1,000 6,442 5,442
Total Revenue 705200 __ 709200 __1.030206 341006
EXPENDITURES
Highways and Streets
Salaries and wages 230,009 230,009 149,082 80,927
Employee benefits 08,494 08,494 89,445 9,04%
Services and supplics 264,450 264,450 225,262 39,188
Capital outiay 950,000 950,000 963,068 (13,068)
Total Expenditures 1,542,953 1.542,933 1,426,857 116.096
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures (833,753) (833,753) (376,651) 457,102
Fund Balance, July | 860,752 860,752 776.904 (83,848)
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 26999 § 26999 § 400,253 § 373,254

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
23




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
474 FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
REVENUE
Taxes
Property $ 2,750275 § 2750275 § 3,101,955 § 351,680
Intergovernmental revenucs
Supplemental CCRT 900,000 900,000 1,279,719 379,779
Licenses and permits
Ambulance program and license fees 120,000 120,000 4,395 (115,605)
Charges for services
Fire/ambulance fees 308,000 308,000 336,656 28,656
Inspection fees 1,037,000 1,037,000 42,234 (994,766)
Other fees-Tesla 389,704 389,704 189,704 -
Special events 5,000 5,000 4,055 (945)
QOther revenue
Miscellancous - other 25,000 25,000 223,318 198,318
Total Revenues 5,534,979 5,534,979 5,382,096 (152,883)
EXPENDITURES
Public Safety -
Salaries and wages 3,146,616 2,951,616 2,777,814 173,802
Employee benefits 1,779,944 1,779,944 1,511,825 268,119
Services and supplies 666,359 666,359 517,164 129,195
Capital outlay 30,000 30,000 114,785 (84,785)
Contingency 168,688 168,688 = 168,688
Total Expenditures 5,791,607 5,596,607 4,941,588 655,019
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue over
Expenditures (256,628) (61,628) 440,508 502,136
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES})
Federal Grants 849,935 849,935 704,513 (145,422)
Transfer Out (142,000) {142,000) (142,000) -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 707,935 707,935 562,513 {145,422}
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue and Other
Financing Sources (Uscs) over Expenditures 451,307 646,307 1,003,021 356,714
Fund Balance, July | 519,603 519,603 893,072 373,469
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 970910 $ 1,165,910 § 1,896,093 § 730,183

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
24




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
TRI PAYBACK FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

| ORIGINAL
AND FINAL
BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
REVENUES
Intergovernmental
474 Fire District s 142,000 § - 3 142,000
EXPENDITURES
General Government
Tri Payback 1,500,000 602,261 897,739
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue over
Expenditures (1,358,000) (602,261} (755,739
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 609,000 751,000 {142,000)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue and Other
Financing Sources (Uses) over Expenditures (749,000) 148,739 (897,739)
Fund Balance, July 1 2,020,563 3,006,111 985,548
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 1,271,563 § 3154850 § 1,883,287

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
25




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
USDA BOND FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ORIGINAL
AND FINAL
BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Grants s 8,987,000 § 8,476,892 §$ (510,108)
Bonds 6,184,000 - (6,184,000)
Miscellaneous revenue 250,850 251,000 150
Total revenues 15,421,850 8,727,892 (6,693,958)
EXPENDITURES
Public safety
Capital outlay 15,171,000 8,476,892 6,694,108
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenuc over
Expenditures 250,850 251,000 150
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bond proceeds
Debt service (199,826) (199,828) 2
Interest (193,761) (193,642) (119)
Transfer in 142,640 142,640 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue and Other
Financing Sources (Uses) over Expenditures (97 170 267
Fund Balance, July 1 29,001 29,017 16
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 28,904 $ 29,187 § 283

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
26




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

VIRGINIA CITY TOURISM COMMISSION FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
REVENUES
Licenses and permits
Licenses - permits $ 38,500 $ 38,500 § 44984 § 6,484
Intergovernmental
Grant revenue 50,000 50,000 28,500 (21,500)
State licenses 1,000 1,000 2,695 1,695
Room tax 200,000 200,000 180,619 (19,381)
Tourism tax 315,000 315,000 400,835 85,835
Charges for services
Special events 404,300 404,300 388,503 (15,797
CAP service charge (net) 210,000 210,000 191,008 {18,992)
Miscellancous
Interest 1,000 1,000 - {1,000)
Contributions 4,500 4,500 5,755 1,255
Miscellaneous 131,700 131,700 122,492 {9,208}
Totat Revenucs 1,356,000 _ 1356000 1365391 _ 0 9391
EXPENDITURES
General government
Salaries and wages 285,854 285,854 256,669 29,[85
Benefits 129,312 129,312 115,597 13,715
Services and supplies 923,900 923,500 1,030,992 {107,092)
Capital outlay 5.000 5,000 13,219 (8219
Total Expenditures 1,344,066 1,344,066 1,416,477 (72,411}
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures 11,934 11,934 (51,086) (63,020)
Fund Balance, July 1 338,729 338,729 304.077 (34,6521
Fund Balance, June 30 5 350,663 $ 350,663 § 252,991 § (97,672)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of thia statement
27




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

BUSINESS-TYPE ENTERPRISE FUNDS

WATER VIRGINIA
SYSTEM DIVIDE SEWER TOTAL

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash $ L111,705 § 366,382 § 1,478,087
Accounts receivable (net allowance) 60,440 33,728 94,168
Total Current Assets 1,172,145 400,110 1,572,255

Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets - net of accumulated depreciation 4,789,666 14,775,052 19,564,718

Total Assets $ 5961811 § 15175162 § 21,136,973

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows-pension $ 44,669 § 25126 § 69,795
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 21,923 § 13,492 § 35,415
Refundable deposits 26,505 - 26,505
Bonds payable - current portion - 126,124 126,124
Accrued expenses 23,960 11,104 35,064

Total Current Liabilities 72,388 150,720 223,108

Long Term Liabilitics

Bonds payable - net of current portion - 6,678,431 6,678,431
Net pension liability 346,876 195,145 542,021
Total Long Term Liabilities 346,876 6,873,576 7,220,452
Total Liabilities 419,264 7,024,296 7,443,560

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows-pension $ 93217 $ 52435 § 145,652

NET POSITION

Restricted reserve 131,966 118,884 250,850
Reserved - short lived assets replacement - 38,021 38,021
Invested in capital asscts - net of related debt 4,789,666 7,970,497 12,760,163
Unassigned 572,367 (3,845 568,522
Total Net Position $ 5493999 § 8,123,557 $ 13,617,556

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement
28



OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services

QPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages
Benefits
Services and supplies
Capital outlay
Depreciation

Total Operating Expense

Operating Income (Loss)

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1018

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

BUSMINESS-TYPE ENTERPRISE FUNDS

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Rent and miscelianeous

Interest income

Interest expense

Miscellancous

Grants and capitel contributions

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Change in net position
Net Position, July 1

Net Position, June 30

WATER VIRGINIA
SYSTEM DIVIDE SEWER TOTAL
$ 557800 § 392755 §  930.393
165,177 89,273 254,450
73333 40,768 114,101
243,863 194,631 438,494
42,634 - 42,634
102,786 147,852 250,638
627,793 472,524 1100317
(69.993) (79.269) (149.762)
13,800 662 14,462
(359) (72,187) (72,542)
6,369 - 6,369
12,589 5.173.531 5,186,120
32,403 5,102,006 5,134,409
(37,590) 5,022,237 4,984,647
5531589 _ 3001320 __ 8.632.909
) 5493999 § 8,123,557 $ 13,617,556

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

29




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

F F 1

Cash Inflows

Sales of water/sewer fees

Miscellancous income
Cash Qutflows

Salaries and wages

Benefits
" Services and supplies

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

NON T.
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Inflows
Rent
Customer deposits
Capital outlay

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital
Financing Activities

SHFLOWSF 1T E
E ACTIVITI
Cash Inflows

Other Revenue

Capital contributions
Cash Outflows

Capital outlay and grant match

Debt service

Interest expense

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and
Retated Financing Activities

L A TIVI
Cash Inflows
Interest earnings

Net increase (Decrease) in Cash

Cash, July 1

Cash, June 30

BUSINESS-TYPE ENTERPRISE FUNDS

WATER VIRGINIA
SYSTEM DIVIDE SEWER TQTAL

$ 562,015 § 392,867 § 954,882
6,369 . 6,369
(161,254) (87,686) (248,940)
(78,686) (43,342) (122,528)
{243,180) (188,360) (431,540)
85,264 72,979 158,243
13,800 . 13,800
(3,038) (5,019,853) (5,022,891)
10,762 (5,019,853) (5,009,091)
- 662 662
12,589 5,173,532 5,186,121
(147,106) (123,876) (270,982)
(498,986) (12,187) (571,173)
{355) - (355)
(633,858) 4,978,131 4,344,273
(537,832) 31,257 (506,575)
1,649,537 335,125 1,984,662
$ 1,111,705 § 366,382 § 1,478,087

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 0, 2018
AGENCY
FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,612,764
LIABILITIES

$ 1,612,764

Due to other governments

Net Assets

The notes to the financial statements are an intcgral part of this statement
31




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A,

REPORTING ENTITY

Storey County, Nevada, a local government created under the provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes 243,110, is govemned by
an clected three-member board of commissioners. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial
statements present the government and its component units, entities for which the government is considered to be financially
accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance, part of the government's operations
and so data from these units are combined with data of the primary government.

Blended Component Units - The Virginia Divide Sewer Improvement District is under the direct oversight of the Storey
County Board of Commissioners. The rates for users charges and bond issuance authorizations are approved by the County
Commissioners, and the legal lability for the Virginia Divide Sewer District's debt remains with Storey County. The District is
reported as an enterprise fund,

Effective July 1, 2014, the Storey County Fire Protection District 474 was created by the Storcy County Board of
Commissioners. This entity supercedes the Fire, and Fir District Special Revenue Funds. The governing body of the new Fire
Protection District 474 Is the Board of County Commissioners and will be reported as a Special Revenue Fund.

The Board of County Commissioners directly appoints the govemning board of the Virginig City Tourism Commission
(VCTC). The county personnel provide essentially all services, accounting, budgeting and other record keeping for the
commission. The YCTC has elected to be reported as a major fund (Special Revenue) in the County financial statements.

Excluded from the reporting entity - Storey County Schools, Storey County Senior Center, and Canyon General Improvement
District.

These potential component units have separate elected or appointed boards and provide services to residents, generally within
the geographic boundaries of the government. These potential component units are excluded from the reporting entity because
the government does not have the ability to exercise influence over their daily operations, approve budgets, or provide funding.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements (i.e, the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) report
information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. For the most part the
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues, arc reported, separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent
on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activitics demonstrates the degrees to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment arc offsct by
program revenues. Direct expenses arc those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or scgment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particuler function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are teported instead as general revenues.




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as arc proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are
recorded when a liability is ingurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized a3 revenue in
the year for which they arc levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met,

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues arc recognized as soon as they are both measurable and avallable. Gross receipts and sales
taxes are considered “measurable when in the hands of intermediary collecting agents or govemments.” Revenues are considered
available when they are collectible within the current petiod ot soon enough thereafter to pay lisbilities of the current period. For
this purpose, the county considers revenues to be available If they are collected within 60 days after the end of the current fiscal
period. Anticipated refunds of taxes arc recorded as liabilitics and reductions of revenue when they are measurable and the
payment seems certain, Expenditures arc generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However,
debt service expenditures, as well as cxpenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only
when payment is duc.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible
to accrual and so have been recognized as revenucs of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the County.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the County's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general government,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Fire Protection District 474 Special Revemue Fund accounts for money received primarily from intergovernmental
sources. Expenditures are for County fire protection including the purchase of machinery and equipment to provide such
services.

The Tri Payback Fund accounts for monies which shalt be required to be paid back to the developers of the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center as detailed in Note XV.

The Road Special Revenue Fund accounts for money received primarily from gasoline taxes and other intergovernmental
sources. Expenditures are for the construction and maintenance of County roads and bridges and other road related

infrastructure and the purchase of machinery and equipment required to do such work. (Elected to be reported ns & major
fund.)

The USDA Bond Special Revenue Fund accounts for money received from USDA Bonds to improve water and waste
disposal in Storey County and purchase additional fire and ambulance equipment for the Fire Protection District 474.

The Virginia City Tourism Commission Special Revenue Fund promotes tourism for Storey County and Virginia City
through advertising and promotion of special events and attractions located within the County. {Elected to be reported as a
major fund.}

The government reports the following major proprictary funds:

The Water System Fund accounts for the activities of the Virginia City/Gold Hill water distribution system,

The Virginia Divide Sewer System Fund accounts for the operations of the scwage treatment plant, pumping stations, and
collection systems.

33



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE N, 2018

As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to
this genera! rule are charges between the government's water and sewer functions, Eliminations of these charges would distort the

direct costs and program revenucs reported for the various functions concemned.

Amounts reported as Program Revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, gervices, or privileges provided;
2) operating grants and contributions; and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources arc reported as
General Revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewisc, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and cxpenses from non-operating items. Operating revenucs and expenses
generally result from providing services or producing and delivering goods in connection with the proprietary funds’ principal
ongoing operations. Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenucs and expenses.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY

1. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The government's cash and cash cquivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, short term investments
with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition, and the State Treasurer’s investment pool.

Investments are reported at fair value.

2. RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year is
referred to as “due to/from other funds.”

All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible. No allowance is recorded for property tax reccivables,
Property taxcs are levied as of July 1 on property velucs assessed on the same date, The tax levy may be paid in four
installments by the third Monday in August and the first Monday in October, January, and March. There is a ten day grace
period allowed for cach installment. Penalties and interest are assessed on all delinquent collections. Liens are filed on the

property at one year's delinquency.

3 INVENTORIES AND PREPAID [TEMS

No inventorics are maintained by the government for either operating or office supplies. Thesc items are recorded as
expenditures when purchased, rather than when consumed. The VCTC maintains an inventory of resale souvenir items

which are presented at cost,
Certain paymenis to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items.

4, RESTRICTED ASSETS AND RESERVED FUNDS

At June 30, 2018, the County had the following restricted fund balances: 8) 474 Fire Protection District Fund - $142,640;
b) Virginia Divide Sewer Improvement District - $118,884; and ¢) Water System Fund - $111,966.

34




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure (i.e., roads, bridges, sidewalks, storm drains, and
similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $3000 (amount
not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at cstimated fair market value at the date of
donation.

The cost or normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not
capitalized.

Asset Ycars
Public and System [nfrastructure 20-100
Vehicles 5-10
Office Equipment 5-10
Equipment 10-20
Buildings 75100
Building Improvements 35-50
Computer Equipment 5
Furniture and Fixtures 7-10

COMPENSATED ABSENCE

It is the government’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits. Vested or
accumulated vacation pay that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources is reported as
expenditure and a fund liability of the fund that will pay it. Amounts of vested or accumulated vacation pay that are not expected
to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources arc reported as long term debt. No expenditure is reported for
these amounts. No liability is recorded for non-vesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits. However a liability is
recognized for that portion of accumulated sick leave benefits that is required to be paid upon termination. All employces with a
minimum accrued sick leave of 360 hours to a maximum of $60 hours (except for fire department — no maximum) shall be paid
at retirement or termination of service, other than involuntary termination as follows:

Qther Employees Rate of Pay  Fire Department Rate of Pay

Years of Continuous Service

5 years but less than 10 years 12.5¢ on the Dollar 20.0¢ on the Dollar
10 years but less than 15 years 25.0¢ on the Dollar

10 years but less than 20 years 35.0¢ on the Dollar
15 years but less than 20 years 40.0¢ on the Dollar

20 ycars or more 50.0¢ on the Dollar 50.0¢ on the Dollar

The maximum sick leave paid upon termination shall be $5,000 for all empioyees except law enforcement and firemen

35




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Payment for Sick Leave at Termination: Upon an employce’s end of service through PERS retirement or termination from
service (other than involuntary termination) with total accrued hours of three hundred sixty (360) or more, the Employee shall be
paid for unused sick leave at the following rate:

a 10 to 15 years of service shall be paid at a ratc of 20% of their base rate of pay for each hour, not to
exceed $2,500 cash or $3,1235 toward the purchase of PERS.

b. 15 to 20 years of service shall be paid at a rate of 40% of their base rate of pay for each hour, not to
exceed $3,500 cash or $4,375 toward the purchase of PERS.

c. Mote than 20 years of scrvice shall be paid at a rate of 60% of their base rate of pay for each hour, not
to exceed $5,000 cash or $6,250 toward the purchase of PERS.

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In addition to asscts, the Statement of Net Position and the Balance Sheet will sometimes repott a scparate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement ¢lement represents 8 consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The County reports an amount
related to pensions on the government-wide financial statements.

In addition to liabilitics, the Statement of Net Position and the Balance Sheet will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a
future period(s) and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The County reports amounts
related to pensions on the govemnment wide financial statement. These amounts arc deferred and recognized s an inflow of
resources in the period that the amounts become available.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
In the government-wide financial statcments, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and

other long-term obligations are reported as ligbilities in the governmental activities, business-type activitics, or proprietary fund
type statement of net assets.

The County currently has no long term bonds payable in the governmental funds. The revenue bonds reported in the propriciary
fund types incurred no bond premiums or discounts and therefore have no deferred charges or amortization.

The County has a long-term cbligation relating, to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center (TRI) — see Note XVII for details.

NET POSITION

In the government-wide and proprictary fund financial statements, net position is reported as net investment in capital assets,
restricted, or unrestricted. Net position is reported as restricted when constraints placed on it are either imposed by external
parties (such as creditors, grantors, contributors or other governments) of imposed by law through a constitutional provision or
enabling legislation.

36




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

10. FUND BALANCE

Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified in accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, Fund
Balance Reporting and Governmental F und Type Definitions, e follows:

Nonspendable fund balances include items that cannot be spent, such as amounts that are not in a spendablc form
(for example, inventories and prepaid items) and amounts that arc legally or contractually required to remain
intact, such as a permanent fund principal balance.

Restricted fund balances have constraints placed upon the use of the resources either by external parties (such as
creditors, grantors, contributors or other governments) or imposed by law through a constitutional provision or
cnabling legislation.

Committed fund balances can be used only for specific purposes pursuant 1o constraints imposed by an ordinance
of the County Commission, which is the County's highest level of decision-making authority. These constraints
remain binding uniess removed or changed in the same manner used to create the constraints.

11. ESTIMATES

Timely preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires manegement to make cstimates that affect reported amounts. Accordingly, these estimates
may require revision in future periods. Significant cstimates include compensated absences, pension and other
postemployment benefits, collectability of receivables, and useful lives of capital assets.

II.  STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Annual budgsts are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for all governmental
funds.

The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary date reflected in the financial statements:

1. Prior to April 15, the County budget officer submits to the County Commissioners the tentative operating budgets
(4) for the fiscal ycars commencing the following July 1. The operating budgets include proposed expenditures
and the means of financing them.

2. The tentative budgets are filed with the State Department of Taxation by April 15,

3 A public hearing is conducted at the County Court House to obtain taxpayers comments (3rd Monday in May).

4, The final budgets are adopted and filed with the State Department of Taxation. Final budgets must be certified by
a majority of all members of the governing body. The final budgets must be adopted on or before June 1,

5. Budget amounts may be transferred within funds i the governing body is advised and the action is recorded in the
official minutes of the next mecting. Revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by
the County Commissioners. Budget revisions must also be filed with the State Department of Taxation.

37




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

6. Budgets for the General, Special Revenues, Debt Service, Proprictary, and Capital Projects Funds are adopted on a basis
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

7. Budget augmentations were prepared for the general, various special revenue funds and enterprise funds during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2018

8. All budget appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

In accordance with state statute, actual expenditures may not exceed budgetary appropriations of the various governmental
programs of the General Fund or total appropriations of the Special Revenuc and Capital Projects Funds, except as expressly
authorized by law,

EXCESS EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS
For the year ended June 30, 2018, expenditures exceeded appropriations as follows:

Expenditures Appropriations

Virginia City Tourism Commission Fund $ 1416477 § 1,344,066
Justice Court Special Revenue Fund 28,104 17,000
Indigent Accident Special Revenue Fund 91,542 72,711
Genctic Marker Testing Fund 8,797 6,400
Capital Projects Fund 2,928,118 1,550,200
Virginia Divide Sewer Improvement District , 472,524 253,623
Water Systems 627,793 554,617
General Fund-Sheriff 3,687,832 3,669,522
General Fund Culture and Recreation 115,735 112,308
DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

The Emergency Mitigation Fund incurred a deficit fund equity at June 30, 2018 in the amount of $41,391.
COMPLIANCE — NRS 354,624

Storey County has two enterprise funds: The Water System Enterprise Fund and the Virginia-Divide Sewer Improvement
District Enterprise Fund. Storey County also maintains agency funds as follows: State of Nevada Fund Storey County School
District Fund, Storey County School District Debt Ssrvice Fund. The County maintaing no internal service funds, self-insurance
funds, or funds whose balance is required by law to be used for a specific purpose other than the payment of compensation to a
bargaining unit as defined it NRS 288.028 or carried forward to the succeeding fiscal year in any designated amount,

Al enterprise and agency funds maintained by Storey County:

a} are being used in accordance with NRS 354.624,

b) are being administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting procedures.

¢} all reserves in the funds are reasonable and necessary to carry out the purposes of the funds.

d) reflect the sources of revenues available for the fund during the fiscal year — including transfers from other funds.
e) are following the statutory and regulatory requirements applicable to the funds

0 reflect the balance and retained earnings of the funds.

Storey County has $393,490 restricted and reserved in all funds.

38




ML

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

In accordance with Nevada Revised Statues (NRS), the County’s cash is deposited with insured banks and those
deposits that are not within the limits of insurance must be secured by collateral, At year end, the County’s carrying
amount of deposits was $4,955,880 and the bank balance was $4,948,859. The difference between the carrying amount
and bank balance resuits from outstanding checks and deposits not yet refiected in the bank records

Custodial Risk- All deposits are subject to custodial credit risk, which is the risk that the County's deposits may not be
returned to it in the event of a bank failure. Bank balances were covercd by Federal Depositoty Insurance, the Securities
Investor Protection Corporation, collateral held by the County's agent in the County's name of by collateral held by
depositories in the name of the Nevada Collateral Pool, and were not exposed to custodial credit risk. The County docs
not have a formal policy relating to custodial credit risk, but follows NRS. According to NRS 1356.020, all monies
deposited by & county treasurer that are not within the limits of insurance provided by an instrumentality of the United
States must be secured by coilateral composed of the same types of securities allowed for investments which are
identificd below. The County participates in the State of Nevada Collateral Pool which requires depositories to maintain
as collatersl acceptable securities having 2 fair market value of at least 102 percent of the amount of the uninsured
balances of the public money held by the depository. Under NRS 156.360, the Statc Treasurer manages and monitors all
collateral for all public monies deposited by members of the pool.

Interest Rate Risk- Interest rate risk is the risk of possible reduction in the value of a security, especially a bond,
resulting from a rise in interest rates. As noted above, the County does not have a formal investment policy that limits
investment maturitics as a means of managing its cxposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates
beyond those specified in the statute. The County restricts notes, bonds, and other unconditional obligations at the time
of purchase to have a remaining term to maturity of not more than 10 years a3 described by Nevada state law.

Credit Risk- Nevada state law limits investments in commercial paper and corporate bonds. Corporate or depository
institution commercia! paper purchased from & registered dealer must have & credit rating of A-1, P-1, or beiter.
Investments in money market mutual funds that invest in federal securitics must have a credit rating of "AAA" and
investments in obligations of state and local governments must rate A or higher. The County's investments in U.S.
Treasury Notes and U.S. Government Securities are rated AAA by Moody's Investor Services and by Standard and
Poor's. The Local Government Investment Pool is an unrated external investment pool. However, the County's policy

allows this type of investment as permitied by statute.

The County categorizes the fair value measurcments of its investments based on the hierarchy established by gencrally
accepls accounting principles. The fair value hicrarchy, which has three levels, is based on the valuation inpuls used 1o
measure an asset’s fair value:

Leve! i~ Inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
Level 2- Inputs are significant other observable inputs
Level 3- Inputs are significant unobserveblc inputs

The County does not have any investments that are measured uging Level 3 inputs




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

As of June 30, 2018, the County had the following recurring fair valie measurements below:

Fair Value Measurements Uging
Invegtment Type Total Level 1 [nputs Level 2 [nputs
Money Market Mutual Fund s 6,102,602 % 6,102,602 § -
Certificates of Deposit 17,792,326 17,792,326 -
1.S. Agency Securities 4,734,856 4,734,856 -
Corporate Bonds £21,257 - 521,257
Commercial Paper 278,136 - 278,136
State of Nevada Local Investment Pool 2,364,107 - -
$ 31,793,284 § 28,629,784 § 799,393

At year end the County had the following investments and maturities

I v ies i

Less

’ Investment Type Total Than 1 15
Moncy Market Mutual Fund $ 6,102,602 $ 6,102,602 § -
Certificates of Deposit 17,792,326 2,703,281 15,089,045
U.S. Agency Securities 4,734,856 - 4,734,856
Corporate Bonds 521,257 - 521,257
Comtmercial Paper 278,136 - 278,136
State of Nevada Local Investment Pool 2,364,107 2,364,107 -

$ 31,793,284 § 11,169,980 $ 20,623,294

40




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
i NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
' JUNE 30, 2018

IvV.  RECEIVABLES

Receivables es of year-¢nd for the government’s individual major funds and non-major funds in the aggregate, including the
applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

474 Fire Non-Major Proprietary
Qengral Roads  [District  USDA YCTC Funds  Funds Total
Receivables:
Taxes $ 7415 § - §$ 21,570 % - 8 -5 22 s - § 98,000
Accounts 418,856 145,837 240,144 561,681 5,000 54,399 94,169 1,520,086
Gross Receivables 493,015 145,837 261,714 561,681 5,000 56,670 94,169 1,618,086

The delinquent taxes receivable account represents the past three years of uncollected tax Ievies. No allowance for uncollectible has
been recorded by the County. Taxes received after 60 days of the year end are recorded as deferred revenue.

Accounts receivable include intergovernmental receivables. All accounts reccivabie, with the exception of the enterprise fund, were
collected within a 60 day period, therefore no allowance for uncollectible was recorded in those funds.

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be available to
liquidate liabilities of the current period. At the end of the current fiscal year the various components of deferred revenue reported
in the govemmental funds were as follows:

General Fund-Delinquent property taxes receivable: $ 65597
454 Fire District Fund-Delinquent property taxes receivable: 18,938
454 Fire District Fund-Ambulance reccivable 121,671
Non-major funds-Delinquent property taxes receivable: 1,983
j Total $ 208,189

V. INTER-FUND ASSETS/LIABILITIES

' Inter-fund transfers:

Gencral Fund Capital Projects $ 2,000,000
General Fund TRI Payback 596,000
General Fund Pipers Opera House 67,000
General Fund Water Systems 208,500
Equipment Acquisition USDA 142,640
Equipment Acquisition TRI Payback 13,000
Fire District 474 TRI Payback 142,000

$ 3,169,140

41




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018
VI CAPITAL ASSETS (INCLUDING VCTC FUND)
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Primary QGovernment
| Governmental Activities
Capital Assets not being depreciated
‘ Land $ 810921 § . $ 810,921
Antique Furniture 75,000 - - 75,000
‘ Construction in progress 1,334,163 - - 1,334,163
| Total Capital Assets not being depreciated 2,220,084 - - 2,220,084
|
‘ Capital Asscts being depreciated
Bulldings 9,972,121 703,904 - 10,676,025
Ilmprovements other than buildings 47,689,861 876,987 - 48,566,848
Machinery and equipment 13,856,552 1,071,173 - 14,927,725
Total Capital Assets being depreciated 71,518,534 2,652,064 - 74,170,598
Less accumnulated depresiation for:
Buildings 2,859,097 189,972 - 3,049,069
Improvements other than buildings 8,554,402 1,377,770 - 9,932,172
Machinery and equipment 6,731,186 911,146 - 7,642,532
Total accumulated depreciation 18,144,885 2,478,888 - 20,623,773
Governmental activities capital assets - net $ 55,593,733 § 173,176 § - $ 55766,909
Business type activities
Capital Assets not being depreciated
Construction in progress H 620,890 $_B643331 § - $ 9,264,221
Capital assets being depreciated
Water and sewer system 13,090,422 - - 13,090,422
Machinery and equipment 665,086 3,038 - 668,124
Total Capital assets being depreciated 13,755,508 3,038 - 13,758,346
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Water and sewer systems 2,634,357 226,477 - 2,860,834
Machinery and equipment 573,054 24,161 - 597,215
Total accumulated depreciation 3,207,411 250,638 - 3,458,049
Business type activitics capital assets - net $ 11,168,987 $ 8|39S=731 $ - $ 19,564,718
42




VIL

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Depreciation expense was charged to functions programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 1,439,639
Public safety 744,040
Highways and streets, including depreciation

of general infrastructure assets 200,176
Judiciat 1,325
Community support 69,112
Culture and recreation 24,596

Total depreciation expense -

Governmental activities $ 2,478,888
]

Business type activities:

Water $ 102,786

Sewer 147,852
Total depreciation expense -

Business type activities $ 250,638

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following is & summary of the Long-Term Obligations of the County:

Date Maturity Original
Issue Date Notefissue
Mediym
Virginia City Highlands Property QOwners Assoc 6/23/2013 6/30/2017 _200,000.00
cven
Governmental
Virginia City Rail Bond-Series 2010A 12/28/2010 12172027 § 890,000
Virginia City Rail Bond-Series 2010B 12/28/2010 12/1/2027 859,000
Storey County Fire District USDA Lean 1/8/2015 7/8/1934 2,000,000
$ 3,749,000
Water Revenue Bonds 1/28/1997 1/1/1937 § 714,000
Sewer Revenue Bonds 52012015 5/12/1955 3,002,000
Sewer Revenue Bonds 12/20/2016  12/20/1956 __ 4,058,000
$ 7,774,000

43

Interest
Rate

0.095%

8.000%
5.000%
3.750%

0.045%
2.500%
1.375%

Balance
6/30/20]18

$ 601,000
591,000
1

,730,640

$ 2,922,640

s -
2,862,003
3,942,551

6,804,554

.s__!_l-—-—




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

The following represents the current activity in the Long-Term Obligations of the County:

Balance Balance Principle

6/30/2017  Additions ~  Retired = §/30/2018  Duc]8-19

Medium Term Loans

Virginia City Highlands Property Owners $ 50,000 § - 3§ 50,000 § - ¥ -
Revepue Bonds
Govermnmental
Virginia City Rail Bond-Series 2010A $ 648000 § - f 47,000 § 601,000 § 49,000
Virginia City Rail Bond-Series 2010B 635,000 - 44,000 591,000 47,000
Storey County Fire District USDA Loan 1,806,593 - 75,953 1,730,640 78,841
$ 1,089,593 $ - 3 166,953 § 2922640 § 174,841
| Business Type Activities
| Water Revenue Bonds $ 498986 § - § 498986 § - 8 -
Sewer Revenue Bonds 2,908,700 - 46,697 2,862,003 47,877
Sewer Revenue Bonds 500,724 3,519,006 77,179 3,942 551 78,247

$ 3908410 § 3519006 $_ 622862 § 68043554 § 126,124

Compensated Absences $ 723,38 § 37,140 $ 760,526 $ -
TRI-Construction repayment 41,129,487 825617 602,261 41,352,843 -

$ 41852873 § 862,757 § 602,261 § 42,113369 § -

The annual requirements to amortize the outstanding revenue bonds are as follows:

Year Ended Governmental Activities Busincss Typs Activitics

June 30 Principal Ingerest Principal Interest
2018 $ 174,841 § 138,204 § 126,125 §% 124,726
2019 181,839 128,896 128,082 122,768
2020 189,952 £19,098 130,750 120,100
2021 198,183 108,857 133,135 117,715
2022 206,536 98,169 135,568 115,282
2023-2027 1,178,624 312,846 715,461 538,790
2028-2032 617,302 95,398 784,339 469911
2033-2037 174,863 4,977 860,143 194,108
2038-2042 - - 944,002 310,249
2043-2047 - - 1,036,748 217,503
2048-2052 - - 1,139,754 114,497
2053-2057 - - 670,445 19,295
Total $ 2922640 $ 1,006,535 § 6,804,552 $ 2,6641944

44




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

VIII. SEGMENT INFORMATION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Summary information for the Proprietary funds is presented below:

Water Fund Virginia Divide Sewer Fund
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
ASSETS
Current assets s 1,172,145 $ 400,110
Capital assets (net accumulated depreciation) 4,789,666 14,775,052
Total Assets 5,961,811 15,175,162
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows-pension 44,669 25,126
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 72,388 150,720
Non-current liabilities 346,876 6,873,576
Total Liabilities 419,264 7,024,296
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows-pension 93,217 52,435
NET POSITION
Restricted reserve 131,966 118,884
Reserved - Short lived asset replacement - 38,021
Invested in capital assets - net of related debt 4,789,666 7,970,497
Unrestricted 572,367 (3,345)
Total Net Position $ 5,493,999 $ 8,123,557
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Operating revenue s 357,800 $ 392,755
Depreciation (102,786) (147,852)
Other operating expenses {525,007) (324,672)
Operating income (loss) (69,993) (79,769}
Non-operating revenucs (expenses)
Rent and miscellancous 13,800 662
Interest income - -
Interest expense (355) (72,187
Miscellaneous 6,369 -
Qrants and capital contributions 12,589 5,173,531
Change in net assets $ (37,590) s 5,022,237
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Net cash provided (used) by
Operating activities $ 85,264 $ 72,979
Non-capital financing activities 19,762 (5,019,853)
Capita) and related financing activities (633,858) 4,978,131
Investing Activities - -
Net increase (decrease) in cash (537,832) 31,257
Cash - beginning 1,649,537 335,125
Cash - ending b 1,111,705 $ 366,382

45



XI.

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The County is involved in various lawsuits. The outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, however,
management does not anticipate that they would materially impact the financial position of the County.

The County receives grant funds from Federal and State agencles. The grant programs arc subject to audit by agents of the
granting authority. The purposc of the audits is to ensure compliance with conditions precedent to the granting of the funds.
Management does not anticipate any liability in the event of an audit.

PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien as of July 1. The tax is levied for the fiscal ycar beginning July 1 after the
Nevada Tax Commission has certified the combined tax rate for the County on May 25.

Taxes on the property are due on the third Monday in July. Taxes may be paid in quarterly instaliments, due on the third
Monday of July and the first Monday in October, January, and March. Penalties are added if the installments are not made

within ten (10) days of the due date.
DEFINED BENEFITS PLAN
General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description : All permanent, full-time employees are provided pensions through the Public Employees Retirement Plan
(PERS). The plan is a multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administercd by the Public Employees’ Retirement
System of Nevada. Chapter 286 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) establishes a governing board, appointed by the
Governor, that is responsible for managing the System, including amanging for a biennial actuarial valuation and adoption of
actuarial tables and formulas preparcd and recommended by the actuary.

Benefits Provided : Benefits, as required by the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS or statute), are determined by the number of
years of accredited service at time of retirement and the member’s highest average compensation in any 36 consecutive
months with special provisions for members entering the System on or after January 1, 2010. Benefit payments to which
participants or their beneficiaries may be entitied under the plan include pension benefits, disability benefits, and survivor
benefits.

Monthly Benefit allowances for members are computed at 2.5% of average compensation for each accredited year of service
prior to July 1, 2001, For service earned on and after July 1, 2001, this multiplier is 2.67% of average compensation. For
members entering the System on or after January 1, 2010, there is a 2.5% multiplier. The System offers several alternatives
to the unmodified service retirement allowance which, in general, allow the retired employee to accept a reduced service
retirement allowance payable monthly during his or her lifetime and various optional monthly payments to a named
beneficiary after his or her death. Post-retirement increases are provided by the authority of NRS 286.575-.579

Regular members are cligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 60 with ten years of service, or at any
age with thirty years of service. Regular members entering the System on or after January 1, 2019, are eligible for retirement
at age 65 with five years of service, at age 62 with ten years of service, or at any age with thirty years of service.

46




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Police/Fire members are ¢ligible for retirement at age 63 with five years of service, at age 55 with ten years of service, at age 50
with twenty years of service, or at any age with twenty-five years of service. Police/Fire members entering the System on or afier
January 1, 2010, are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 60 with tcn years of service, at age 50 with
twenty years of service, or at any agc with thirty years of service. Only service performed in a position as a police officer or
fircfighter may be counted towards cligibility for retirement as Police/F ire accredited service.

The normal ceiling limitation on monthly benefit allowances is 75% of average compensation. However, a member who has an
effective date of membership before July 1, 1985, is entitied to a benefit of up to 90% of average compensation. Both Regular and
Police/Fire members become fully vested as to benefits upon completion of five ycars of service,

Contributions - The authority for establishing and amending the obligation to make contributions, and member contribution rates,
is set by statute. The contribution rates are based on biennial actuarial valuations and expected to finance the costs of benefits
eamed by employees during the year, with an additiona! amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. New hires in agencies
which did not clect the Employer-Pay Contribution (EPC) plan prior to July 1, 1983, have the option of selecting one of two
contribution plans. One plan provides for matching employee and employer contributions, while the other plan provides for
employer-pay contributions only. Under the matching Employee/Employer Contribution plan a member may, upon termination of
service for which contribution is required, withdraw employec contributions which have been credited to their account. All
membership rights and active service credit in the System are canceled upon withdrawal of contributions from the member’s
account. H EPC was elected, the member cannot convert to the Employee/Employer Contribution plan.

The County's contributions to the plan totaled $2,720,384 for the year ended June 30, 2018,

At June 30, 2018, the County reported a Liability of $20,601,898 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net
pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The County's proportion of the plan’s net pension liability was based on the
County's combined employer and member contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating entitics
for the year ended Junc 30, 2017. At June 30, 2017, the County's proportion share was .15490% in year 2017, while ycar 2016 was
.14499%.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the County recognized pension expense of $2,068,043. At June 30, 2018, the County reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
" Difference between expected and actual

experience $ - 3 1,351,901
Changes is assumptions or other inputs 1,366,740 -
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments 133,765
Changes in the employer's proportion and differences

between the employer's contributions and the

employer's proportionate contributions 5,139,244 2,649,732
County contributions subsequent to the measurement

date 2,720,384 -

$ 9,360,133 § 4,001,633
47




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 1o pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

2019 $ (6,558,897)
2020 8,490,542
2021 2,192,706
2022 (5,978,522)
2023 3,091,366
2024 1,400,919
$ 2,638,115

In addition, $2,720,384 is reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and represents County’s contributions
subsequent to the measurement date. The amount will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension lizbility in the ycar ended
June 30, 2018.

Actuarial Assumptions : The actuarial assumptions were bascd on the results of an experience study for the period from July 1,
2006, through June 30, 2012. When measuring the total pension liability, GASB uses the same actuarial cost method, all
actuarial assumptions, and the same type of discount rete as PERS uses for funding.

The total pension Hability in the June 30, 2017, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions
applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation Rate 2.75%

Payrolt Growth 5.0%, including inflation

Investment Rate of Return 7.5%

Productivity Pay Increases 0.5%

Projected Salary Increases Regular: 4.25% to 9.15%, depending on service

Police/Fire: 4.55% to 13.9%, depending on service
Rates include inflation and productivity increases
Consumer Price Index 2.75%
Other Assumptions Same as those used in the June 30, 2017 funding
actuarial valuation

The Board cvaluates and establishes expected real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment expenses and inflation) for
each asset class. The Board reviews these capital market expectations annually. The PERS’ current long-term geometric
expected real rates of return for each asset class included in the plan’s investment portfolio as of June 30, 2617, are included in
the following table:

Long-Term Geometric

Asset Class Expected Real Rate of Return®
Domestic Equity 5.50%
International Equity 5.75%

Domestic Fixed Income 0.25%
Private Markets 6.80%

*As of June 30, 2017, PERS' long-term inflation assumption was 2.75%.

48




XIIL

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2018
Discount Rate : The discount ratc used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50% as of June 30, 2017. The projection of
cash Mlows used to determing the discount ratc assumed plan contributions will be made in amounts

consistent with statutory provisions and recognizing the plan’s current funding policy and cost-sharing mechanism between
benefits for all plan members and their

employers and members, For this purpose, all contributions that are intended to fund
beneficiaries are included, except that project contributions that are intended to fund the service costs for future plan members

and their beneficiaries are not included.

Sensitivity of the County’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following
presents the County’s proportienate share of the nct pension Hability calculated vsing the discount rate of 7.50%, as well as
what the County's proportionate share of the net pension liability would he if it were calculated using a discount ratc that is 1

percentage point lower (6.50%) or | percentage point higher (8.50%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
!6.50%! 57.50%! gs.so%z
$ 31,144318 $ 20,601,898 $ 11,846,253

porting the Schedule of Employer Allocations and the Schedule of Pengion

Additional Information : Additional information sup
hensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) available on the PERS wcbsite

Amounts by Employer is located in the PERS Compre
at www.nvpers.org under Quick Links — Publicatlons.

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB):

ealth programs for retirees. Retirees had the option to participate in the County's regular
Plan (PEBP). Each plan includes medical, dental and
their own cost. The legislature climinated the

The County recognizes two different h
health insurance plan or to join the Nevada Public Employees' Benefits
vision benefits for the retiree and the ability for the retirec to cover their spouse at
option to join PEBP for County employees who retire after November 29, 2008.

Retirces may choose to stay on the County’s regular health insurance plan. The retiree is required to pay the full amount of their

the coverage rates arc the same regardless of age, so the County contributes an implicit subsidy for

coverage. However,
lar basis, and may make plan modifications on rates of

retirees. The County renegotiates their heaith insurance plan on a regu
coverages accordingly

The County contributes to PEBP, an agent multiple cmployer defined healthcare plan. PEBP is administered by State and
cstablished pursuant to NRS 287.023. This plan is subject to amendment by the State of Nevada each biennium when the
legislature is in session. Local governments are required to pay the same portion of cost of coverage for those persons joining
PEBP that the State of Nevada pays for those persons retired from state service who have continued to participate in the plan

49



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Storey County's total OBEB liebility of $18,506,210 was measured as of June 30, 2018, and was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date.

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs. The total OBEP liability in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using
the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless other wise
specified:

Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases 3.00%
Payroll growth 4.00%
Discount rate 31.53%

The discount rate was based on Bond Buyer Go 20 Bond Index
Mortality rates were based on MacLeod Watts Scale 2016

Changes in Total OPEB Liability

PEBP County Total
Balance 6/30/17 s 565491 $§ 18,084,288 § 18,649,779
Changes for the ycar
Service Cost - 2,020,652 § 2,020,652
Interest 15,674 570,467 $ 586,141
Changes of benefit terms - - 3 -
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions or other inputs (41,045) (2,501,144) § (2,542,189)
Benefit Payments (31,075) (177,098) §  (208,173)
Net changes b (56,446) §$ (87,123) § (143,569
Balance 6/30/18 $ 509,045 $ 17,997,165 § 18,506,210

Sensitivity of the County's Proportionate Share of the OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate : The following presents
the County’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 3.53%, as well as what the
County's proportionate share of the net pension liability wouid be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is | percentage
point lower (2.53%) or 1 percentage point higher (4.53%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(2.53%) (3.53%) (4.53%)
PEBP $ 571,347 $ 509,045 $ 457,384
County $ 21,838,038 $ 17,997,165 $ 15,018,353

Sensitivity of the County's Proportionate Share of the OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate :

Discount Rate
1% Decrease Current Trend 1% Increase
PEBP $ 455,369 $ 509,045 s 572,533
14,165,328 $ 17,997,165 $ 23,643,225




XL

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the County recognized OPEB expense of $2.332,432. At Junc 30, 2018 the County
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources

Deferred Deferred
Outflowsof  Inflows of
Resources Resources
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 5 - § 2267828
Deferred contributions 186,024 -
Total $ 186,024 S 2267,828

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources reiated to OPEB will be recognized
in OPEB expense as follows

2019 $ (233.316)
2020 (233,316)
2021 (233,316)
2022 (233,316)
2023 (233,316}
Thercafter (1,101,248)

$ 52,267.828!

SOLID WASTE LANDFILL - LOCKWOOD

In 1992 Refuse, Inc. received an amended special use permit from Storcy County for the operation of a solid waste
landfill, conditioned on meeting all of the requirements of federal tandfill regulations (Subtitle D, 40CFR Parts 257 and
258). Under the terms of the agreement Refuse, Inc. is respongible for all closure and post closure costs. Estimated costs
for closure are $3,138,388 and the cost for post closure maintenance is $12,865,241 for a total of $16,003,629. There are
currently ne corrective action costs nor other environmental obligations. Retuse, Inc. is in completc compliance with the
Financial Assurance Regquirements of 40CFR, part 258, Subpart G, as well as Nevada Administrative Code 444.685 —
444.6859. The closure and post closure costs are insured through Liberty Mutual Insurance Company. As of this
statement date, closure/post closure revisions by Waste Management have not been completed.

51



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

RISK MANAGEMENT

Storey County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; crrors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Storey County has joined together with other counties in the state to
form Nevade Public Agency Insurance Pool, a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and
insurance program for 41 governmental entities. The county pays an annual premium to Ingalls and Associates for its general
insurance coverage through PENCO. The Agreement for Formation of the NPAIP program provides that NPAIP will be self-
sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of $500,000 for
Property and Crime and $150,000 for Casualty for each insured event.

The County continucs to carfy commercial insurance for all other risks or loss, including workers' compensation and
employee health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER

On February 2, 2000, Storey County, Nevada entered into a development agreement with the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center
LLC along with DP Operating Partnership, LP for the purposes of completing structures, including grading, infrastructure,
and all public facilities related to the property owned by TRI, which consists of approximately 102,000 acres, of which
approximately 9,000 acres is zoned for industrial usage within Storey County. The development agreement represents the
commitment between Storey County and TRI to fund the capital infrastructure costs and local community services required
by the project.

According to the agreements, TRI is responsible for the construction of the project public infrastructure, which shall be
dedicated to and maintained by Storey County. Such infrastructure includes streets, sidewalks and streetlights, flood control,
drainage channels, storm drains, basins, and other related facilities and County building complexes including fire stations,
police stations, public works maintenance yards, and administrative offices, The County is not responsible for the
construction, operation, and maintenance of the project private infrastructure such as community water and sewer facilities,
railroad track and related facilities, landscaping of common areas, or private trails and parks and other property not dedicated
to the County. The County is responsible for separately recording certain revenue and expenses directly attributable to the
TRI project, approving reimbursable costs, and determining the aet annual revenue reimbursement to TRL.

The agreements establish a revenue threshold that represents the annual fiscal year in which the TRI net revenue exceeds
$5,000,000. The revenue threshold must be met before any reimbursements are made to TRI for project refated infrastructure
costs, Once the revenue threshold is met, the County is responsible for reimbursing TRI for approved project vouchers up to
35% of annual net revenue. Such reimbursements arc also limited to 5% of the project assessed vaiuation at the end of each
year. The revenue threshold has been met.

The term of this agreement shall commence upon the effective date and shall expire fifty (50) years after the effective date,
unless extended by written amendment executed by the County and Developer. A special revenue fund was established as of
July 1, 2009, to provide payment to our TRI pariners. A payment of $602,261 was made by the TRI Payback Fund during the
fiscal year.

Future allocations into the TRI Payback Fund will be a percentage of revenues directly attributed to TRI to include property
taxes, business licenses, permits, inspection fees, and real property transfer taxes.

52




XVL

XVIL

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

TESLA MOTORS

On September 11, 2014, the Nevada State Legisiature passed unanimously Senate Bill 1 which gave Tesla Motors $1.25 billion
dollars in tax abatements in exchange for Tesla investing $3.5 billion dollers in the state within the first 10 years of the agreement.

Under Section 13-3, transferable credits will be approved:

(a) Ln the amount of $12,500 for cach qualified employee, up to a maximum of 6,000 qualificd employecs.
(b) In the amount equal to 5% of the first $1 bilfion of new capital investment in this State made collectively by the

participants in the qualified project.
(¢} Inan amount equal to 2.8% of the next $2.5 billion on new capital investment i this State made collectively by the

participants in the qualified project.

Section 1 5-2 provides abatement of 100% for the following:

ration of not more than 10 years after the date of which application is submitted and in

(a) For property taxes, for a dui
be owed by each participant for the qualified

an amount that equals the amount of the property taxes that wou Id otherwise
project;
se taxes, be for a duration of not more than 10 years after the datc on which the application is

(b) For employer exci
loyer excise taxes that would otherwise be owed by cach

submitted and in an amount that equals the amount of the emp
participant for employees employed by the participant for the quatified projecy; and

(c) For local sales and use tax, be for a duration of not more than 20 years after the date on which the application is
submitted and in en amount that equals the amount of the local sales and usc taxes that would otherwise be owed by cach

participant in the qualified projest.

Under Section 25-36, the governing body of & county of city in which a qualified project is or is expected to be located to create an
economic diversification district that includes with its boundarics the quatified project.

Section 35 notes “the governing body of the municipality may enter into an agreement with one or more of the owners of any
interest in the property within a district, pursuant to which that owner would agree to make payments to the municipality or to
ancther local government that provides services in the district, or to both, to defray, in whole or in part, the cost of local

govemnmental services during the term of the use of any money pledged pursuant to Section 31 of this act. Such an agreement must

specify the amount 10 be paid by the owner of the property interest, which may be stated asa specified amount per ycar or a5 an
amount based upon any formula upon which the municipality and owner agree.”

Subsequently, Ordinance No. 14-260 creating the Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 1 was signed by the
County Commissioncrs on December 2, 2014, and Ordinance 15-263 providing partial abatements of permitting or licensing fees
was signed by the County Commissioners was passed on June 16, 2015. Additional provisions of Senate Bill 1 also provided the
ability to “abate” partially or in full permit fees and business license fees within the Economic Diversification District. Tesla and
the County mutually negotiated 2 partial abatement of permit fees bul no business ticense fees. These actions were codified into

Ordinance 15-263. Sec scparate schedule retating to additional tax abatements,

RELATED PARTY

The County utilizes 2 marketing and public relations company, RAD Strategics, whose sole owner is married to the Director of
Tourism. Safe guards have been put in to make sure the transaclions are transparent. The VCT C board continues to hear and
approve the payments in its annual budget. All monthly retainers fees and sent directly to the County Manager for approval before

payment.

During the year ¢nded June 30, 2018 the County paid the RAD Strategies $64,630.

53




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2018 '
XVil). DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

The following schedule summarize3 deferred revenues at June 30, 2018:

General Fund:

Ad Valorem taxes receivable $ 6559
474 Fire Protection Fund:

Ad Valorem taxes receivable $ 18938
Equipment Acquisition Fund:

Ad Valorem taxes receivable ] 1,646
Indigent Medical Fund:

Ad Valorem taxes rcceivable s 338

54




19
JuouaTe)s sng Jo Hed [erdaym ue aIe SJUMUINES [RIDURTY 21 0] S3)0U Y|,

(16€°1Y) $ L68%66% $ 1€1%zl $ 95768t s 09 $ +69'08 $ £68°%8S 3
(ec 1w LtI968 TEIsct B6L V3 0t L0 VT E86
(16€71%) LEL'968 TE0°TI 86L°78Y 0t 1L0°%t L¥TE8S
- - 5 8EE - - 949°1
- §$ 091% $ - s oCl'v $ of § £29°9¢ § - s
(ec'ty) $ L68668 § EEISTI $ 95’68y $ 09 $ 6908 $ £68°¥8S [3
7 = - 93¢ - = $88°1
(16£°1¥) $ (68668 $ I€I'sTl $ 0.3'88F s 09 $ 6908 $  800°€8¢ $
NOILVOLLIN arv Xvi TVOIdan JAN0D HINA HNod NOILISINOOV
AONIOITNT TYNLOW TAVd INADIANI FOLLSOH INTALINOI
ANNTATY TVIOIdS
8107 ‘0 ANAL

SANNA TV LNFWNATAOD HOTYIWNON
LAAHS TINYTIVE ONINIHWNOD
YAVAIN ‘ALNAOD ATIOLS

SI0UREH U] pue S30IMossy
3O SMO[JU PALIJO(] ‘SIRIIGRI'] R0,

oue[eg pung 1oL

poudisseur)
s[qepuadsuop
TONVIvd aNNd

saxe) Kuadoad soamosau s|qe|ieatur)

S

SM (e EEEe]

a[qeded siumoooy
SHITHEVT]

Sissy [@oL,

I[RAIIIAI SIUMOITY
S1qeA209] s9xe) Apadolg
ysed

SI3S8V



95

aﬁgmgmoigiﬁgﬂgﬁéuﬁsgoﬁ

9zEYS $ z68'6F $ 0000001 s I¥1°.02 s ¥3S°P8 $ LTTOf1 $ 86881
T iIN 000000 1 TP LT 07 167 ] LTTOEl ¥SES
0190F 8L8Y 000°000'1 TPILOT ¥aCT8 1TTOEl ¥SES
91LEl $0T'1 3 $ [ 3 $ WSl
9ZE ¥ s 686F $ 0000001 (A ANTT4 $ ¥C'Y8 §$ LzTot! $ 26381
9ZEVS § 686k $ 000°000'1 $ [rlLoT ¥86°ve s Lzzotl s 86881
FSNOH vHddO aNnd anNnd JONADEING  SINVEOJLVLS ADOONHOAL NIV
s.44dld ONLISAL  NOLLVITEVLS T3 ANV TVdIa3d INTOIINT
ARV
OTJANAD
ANNAATE TVIDAdS
S107 ‘0€ ANNC

SANMA TYLNTWNTIACD HOrvHNON
LAAES AINVTVE ONINIGWOOD
YAVAIN “ALNNOD ATHOLS

soouR[eEg puUnj pue SA0IN053Y
10 SMOpFUL POLRJe(] ‘SIBIIqeI] EI0L

sotrered pun R101

paudsseul)
ajqepuadsuon
TONVIVE QNN

soxw; Kuedord sa0Inosas S|qB[IBARA[)

STFANOSTI 0 SAOEN qIIEdId

ofqeied SHUMOXTY
SAOTMEVIT

SssY [M0L

J[GRAISO SILMOY
a|quaLz0as sxm Avdord
yse)

Ak {397




LS
SIS ST JO Led [RISHUT T8 AT SITARUIRWIS [BLOURUY U3 01 §310U 3y

8ETSTVG $ 60t'LZ6 $ 7L6689 $ 186%612C $ 8978061 s SOUETRE pun | pUR SIAM0STY
JO SMOQU] PRAAY3( ‘SOIK{IqRI [BI0]L,

INTIK] 0¥ L6 716539 T866ICC 9T souereq pund [EI0L
$SEC8LS 60¥'LT6 TL6'S89 186'61T°C L99TKEL pauBisseun)
” = = 5 B slqepuadsuoN
TONVIVE NN
¥86'1 = - - - soxe Auadold samosaI quqreARUf)
T MOTd ]
668°LE9 s - s - 5 - $ 1099 3 |qried SN0y
SATIEvI1
8ETCIVG $ 60V'LTS $ TL6'589 $ 186'61TC $ 8978061 S S1ssY [RI0],
66E¥E = E 66€'FS - 3| qRALIOAL SIUNOIIY
1LTT 2 - - - S1qea1d soxm Ayredong
895°39E°6 § 60V'LI6 $ L6589 $ I8S'C9IT $ 897'906°1 $ 2]
SI35sV
TVIOL SIDAOUd dVD  LOArCrdd 'HVH aNnd S104r0ud
T AL VINIOWIA  THNLONELSVIANT TVLIAYD
SLOAMOU TV.LIAVD
8107 ‘05 ANNL

SANNA TVINTWNTIAOD HOTYINON
LATHS JIONYTYE ONINIFWOD
VAVAIN ‘ALNNOD ATHOLS




4
TERTENS ST Jo wred iSxur Ue are SUSWSTKS [EIXTEUL] 41 01 SAN0U AL

(16€ 1F) $ L[£L°968 $ 1£1°¢Tl S6L'P8¥ $ ot $ 1L0%F § LbT'ess s
(o16'zH) 86L°0TF 18£°0Z1 SH6'LLY 0€ UTLE Y60 ¥t
616°1 6E6'SLY osL'y $58°9 B 66L9 £61°621
(o¥9'cs1)
(oro'cs1)
615°1 6E6°SLY osL'y $$8'9 . 66L°9 £6L'¥ST
(615°1) 81 18¢€ orn'os 0Z¥ +01°8C
otr‘os
# - ozy $01°ST
(615'D) 81 I8¢ = -
LSE'LS8 0sLy $96'9¢ oy £06°¥E £6L 8T
LSE'LSR - - = - 2
= = ozy £06'¥E
0SL'y - -

s - s - $96°95 s - s - $ €6L'v8T s
NOLLYOLLDA av Xvl TYIITIN 1¥N0D DYa 14100 NOLLISINODOV
ADNAOYAWHI  TVNLOWN Avd INIOIANI JOLLSNI INTNAINOA

ANNITATE TVIDAS

8107 ‘0f ANNF AAANT HVIA THL ¥OA
SANNA TYINTFWNYTAOCD YOrvVIRINON
JAINVYTVE ANNA NI STONYHD
ANV STANLIANAIXT ‘SAANTATE 10 INTWALYLS DONINIAWOD
YAVAIN ‘ALNNOD ATHOLS

0¢ 3unf “3UBERY pong

1 AM{ ouspeg pung

samypuadxy mao (s350)) ssomog Surdaeun ]
Y0 PuE A JO (£5091002p) S530X]

(s%sq)) sa0mog BurduewL ] Q) [R0L
spaaaoxd puog
AR 1T
SI3ySuRI],
(S8 SOWI0G IVIONVYNI 9310

samupuadx? I9A0 52UIAI JO (Aoudidgap) ssoxyg

samypudxy oL
rauwuRAedinu]
ABIIM
UOLEAIIAN PUR UGN
epny
Apyes onqog
MENIIRACT [BISI0)
waunyy
STANIIANTdX3

SINUIANY N0
SINUIASI 12O
SaImIap0] puB 2014
S3AIS 1] Sa3rey))
EEuEAoSu]
SOXE]

ANNIATH




65
JmIs s Jo wed 3N uk are SIUNOIMS [BIDUBUL S 01 SAN0B ]

o19'or S [SL8F $ 000000% & I¥LL0T § ¥IcvE § LzTotel § ¥5ES 3 QF [ “YoueEg pund
- 6S0'LY 000000t IPI°L0T $66 1S T OweELLl sEV 1l 1 Ainf “oouBRy punj
019°'0F 8TLL = c 685°CE ££8'81 (¥80'9) saungrpuadxg 1940 (S951]) SN0
Furouwny L0 PUE AUIA JO (Koua10map) $520Xq
000°'L9 » - - - - - (s95(1) soa1n0§ FuoURUL PPO TEICL
spaaooid puoq
= 3 Z # - - = 301A138 1930
000°L9 s % = = = - SI9JSURI]
($4SN) $A0ENO0S TYIONVNIA WAHLO
(06£'97) 8TL'1 = - 685°TE £€8'81 (y30'9) samypuada BAO 5INUIAILJO (Asumarayap) $$30%]
667'6 L6L'8 E - tI9'Er1 1€t'6l rs'16 sampuadxg OL
- - - 65 S ¥ - - TRIUSUIEIAOR L]
= & = - * ws'6 AU=TPM
= - = 000'vE = . UOTIEALIAL PUR AN
L6L'8 - = s 2 = rertpa[
® g g 6709 - . Kwyes 2qQnd
66765 = - 1E1'6L - UHUMLIIACS [RESUID
JUALITD)
Trnaadx3
606 Z¢ czsot - - T1z9Ll ¥96 L6 g5v'eR SaNUIAT] [OL
996'1 1 - - = - 5 - SINT3AA IO
- 52501 - - = - . Sa0T19}10) PUB UL
£v6'0T - - 2 = ¥96°L6 - S301A526 S0 SSBIYD)
5 - - - ziz'oLt - - [OEIuRACS ]
g = § - s - s - s - § 8SSHeR s sIxE],
TNTATE
ASNOH V3340 (NN ONLLSLL aNnd TONADEINT  SINVEO ALVIS ADOTONHOAL 1INJ@DIV
s43did WTTIVIN NOLLVITIEVIS T ANV TVdaadd INIOIaNT
DTEANAD
FNANIATY TVIOTAS

8107 ‘0 ANNL AFIANT ¥VAA FHL A0
SN TVINTWNIIAOD YOrVINNON
FINVTIVE ANNE NI STONVHD
ANV STHNLIANTJXE ‘SAINIATY 40 INTWALVLS ONINISWOO
YAVAIN ‘ALNNOD ATHOLS




09
TUUTRTES ST JO Wed [er3mul ue 208 SIUHUDIEIS [RIOTRUY 31 03 SA0U Y],

SCEC8L'8 $ 60PLT6 $ TL6'c89 $ 1866I2C S L99TEL s 0f 2un{ ‘uejeg pung
SLETOLS 0000001 678°¢E8 78¢0T81 ZEC6rIT { Ajng “souepeg pumj
LL6TS (6s°¢L) (Lsg'orl) 66E£°66E (599°908) samIpuadxy 190 (535(}) $90mog
Bumoueuy MO pUB FNUIAM JO (AOUI0YP) $S30XY
€05 19LT - @sgev) B 000000 (s3s01) ssaamog Buouwun] QO 0L
£5L1T - £5L1T - # 5pa3501d puog
(019'1L1) = (019'1L1) = ~ FOATIS 13T
09E°116 - 000°000°T SIJSURl]
(SASN) $3ANOS TYIONVNIS 4THLO
(92¢'8L9'D) (165'TL) - 66£°66€ {599'908°7) saumipoadxa A0 SINUIA JO (LINIGIP) s$90xY
¥E9'1#8'c 165°TL - - 211876 sammpuadxy oL
Y65 S¥ = = = = et A 02 1Y
259°1wl = % - s amyam
000t - - - - U0l pUR JUnj[n))
1ze'Ls - “ - redIpn[
615916 165°TL = g Ayagms o1qnd
8¥5°990°¢ 2 = s 811'826°C WunLRA0S [RBUD
uamy
STINLIANIIXT
f01°€91°T g Z 66E 66E ESPITl sanoaasy @OL
9LL'066 = 5 ESHIZI SONUIAL IHAQ
sP8'sy = = Sm0) pue Jutf
LS9'ETL 3 7 s 3 SIOALS 10} SSAmED
119%LS & . 66€°66E - OURULIIA03 U]
91Z'LT¥ s - s - s - s - s Sxe),
ANNIATE
TVIOL SLYAMOEd dVD  LDA10dd TIvd anNnd SLO3r0dd
AL AL VINIDYIA  TIAIDNILSVIINI IVLIdVD
S103104d TYLIdYD

8107 0¢ ANNL GIANT HVAA THL HO4
SANNA TYLNTIWNAIAOD HOrvIWNON
FONVIVE AN NI STONVHD
ANV STUNLIANTIXT ‘SAANIATH 40 INTWILY LS ONINIAIWOD
VAVAIN ‘ALNNOD ATHOLS




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
EQUIPMENT ACQUISITION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2018

REYENUE

Taxes
Property taxes
Other revenucs
Interest
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government
Capital outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenucs aver Expenditures

Teansfer out - Tri Payback
USDA Fund

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenucs and Other Financing
Sources {Uses) over Expenditures

Fund Balance, July !

Fund Balance, June 30

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED  ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS _ FINAL BUDGET
$ 252504 § 284793 S 32,289
252,504 284,793 32,289
105,000 : 105,000
105,000 « 105,000
147,504 284,793 137,289
(13,000 (13,000) :
(142,640) (142,640) <
(8,136) 129,153 137,289
340,923 454,094 113171
$ 332,787 § 583,247 § 250,460

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement
6l




JUSTICE COURT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE \
BUDGET AND ACTUAL ’
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
|
|

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
| REVENUE.
i Fines
Justice court fines $ 17,000 $ 34,903 § 17,903
EXPENDITURES
Judicial
Services and supplics 17,000 21,001 {4,001}
Capital outlay - 7,103 (7,103)
Tota! Expenditures 17,000 28,104 (11,104)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures - 6,799 6,799
Fund Balance, July 1 1272 37,272 34,000
Fund Balance, June 30 s 3,272 § 44071 § 40,799

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement
62




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
DRUG COURT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
REVENUE
Fines and forfeits
Drug court fees $ 600 § 420 % (180)
EXPENDITURES
Judicial
Services and supplics 600 420 180
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures - - -
Fund Balance, July 1 20 30 (50)
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 80 S 30 § {50)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
63




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
INDIGENT MEDICAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE ;
BUDGET AND ACTUAL )
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
REVENUE. AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
Taxes
Property taxes s 48414 § 56965 $ 8,551
EXPENDITURES
Welfare
Services and supplics 200,000 50,110 149,890
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures (151,586) 6,855 158,441
Fund Balance, July 1 332,331 477.943 145,612
Fund Balance, June 30 s 180,745 $ 484,798 3 304,053

i The notes o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
64




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
PARK TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

5 ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
| REVENUE AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
f Charges for services
Park fees s 1500 § 4750 § 1,250
Other revenues
Interest 1,000 - (1,000
Total Revenues 4,500 4,750 250
EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation
Services and supplies 116,000 - 116,000
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures {111,500} 4,750 116,250

123,689 120,381 (3,308)

12,189 § 125,131 § 112,942

Fund Balance, July |

Fund Balance, June 30 $

The notes to the financial statements arc an intcgral part of this statement
65




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
MUTUAL AID SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
REVENUE AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
Other revenues
Fire suppression s - 3 405000 § 857,357 § 452,157
Total Revenues - 405,000 857,357 452,357
EXPENDI TURES
Public safety
Salaries and wages - 200,000 200,059 (59)
Benefits - 30,000 22,445 7,555
Services and supplies - 50,000 41,451 8,549
Capital outlay - 125,000 117,463 7,537
Total Expenditures - 405,000 381,418 23,582
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures - - 475,939 475,939
Fund Balance, July | 421,185 421,183 420,798 (387)
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 421,185 $ 421,185 § 896,737 3 475,552

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
66




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
EMERGENCY MITIGATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
REVENUE
None $ - $ - § &
Public Safety
Services and supplies 100,000 (1,519) _ 101,519
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures (100,000} 1,519 101,519
Fund Balance, July 1 100,000 (42,910) (142,910)
$ . 1§ (41,391) § (41,391)

Fund Balance, June 30

an integra} part of this statement

The notes to the financial statements are
67




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
INDIGENT ACCIDENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
REYENUE AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
Taxes
Property taxes 5 72,621 § 85458 § 12,837
EXPENDITURES
Welfare
Services and supplies 72,711 91,542 (18,831)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures (90} (6,084) (5,994)
Fund Balance, July | 18.903 11,438 {7,465)
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 13813 § 5354 § {13,459)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
68




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
TECHNOLOGY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
REVENUE AMOUNTS AMOUNTS  FINAL BUDGET
Charges for services
Technology fees $ 77,000 § 97,964 $ 20,964
Other revenues
Interest income 800 - (800)
Total Revenues 77,800 97,964 20,164
EXPENDITURES
General government
Services and supplies 84,000 79,131 4,869
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures {6,200) 18,833 25,033
Fund Balance, July 1 105,557 111,394 5,837
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 99,357 § 130,227 § 30,870

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
69




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
FEDERAL/STATE GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
REVENUE AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
ntergovernmental
Federal grants $ 471,132 § 137,254 § (333,878)
State grants 25,000 38,958 13,958
Total Revenues 496,132 176,212 {319,920)
EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation
Services and supplics - 34,000 (34,000)
Public safety
Salaries and wages - - -
Employee benefits - E; 5
Services and supplies 408,452 64,029 344,423
[ntergovernmental - State
Services and supplics 87,680 45 594 42,086
Total Expenditures 496,132 143,623 352,509
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures - 32,589 32,589
Fund Balance, July 1 18,703 51,995 33,292
Fund Balance, June 30 s 183,703 § 34584 3§ 65,881

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
70



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

FIRE EMERGENCY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITUR

BUDGET AND

£S AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUE

None

EXPENDITURES
Public Safety
Services and supplics

Excess (Deficlency) of Revenues aver Expenditures

Fund Balance, July |

Fund Balance, June 30

ACTUAL
ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED  ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS  FINAL BUDGET
$ - % - 3 -
205,000 - 205,000
{205,000) - 205,000
207,141 207,141 =
3 2,141 § 207,141 § 205,000

The notes to the financial statements arc an integrul part of this statement

T




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STABILIZATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
REVENUE
None i - 5 -8 -
EXPENDITURES
Capita! outlay 200,000 - 200,000
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures (200,000) - 200,000
Fund Balance, July | 800,000 1,000,000 200,000
Fund Balance, June 30 s 600,000 $ 1,000,000 $ 400,000

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this staternent
12




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
GENETIC MARKER TESTING SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND €

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REYENUE
Fines and forfeitures

EXPENDITURES
Judicial
Services and supplies

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures
Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

HANGES IN FUND BALANCE

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
b 8,500 $ 10,525 § 2,028
6,400 8,797 (2,397
2,100 1,728 (372
43,810 47,059 3,249
$ 45910 § 48,787 § 2,877

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

73




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL g
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUE
Capital outlay reimbursement
Equipment sales
Total revenue

EXPENDITURES

General Government

Capital outlay
Debt service

Interest expense
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

General government - Other

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources (Uses) over Expenditures

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
s 93,733 § 93,733 § 4
- 27,720 27,720
93,733 121,453 27,720
1,500,128 2,928,118 {1,427,990)
50,000 - 50,000
72 - 72
1,550,200 2,928,118 {1,377,918)
(1,456,467) (2,806,665) 1,405,638
- 2,000,000 2,000,000
(1,456,467) (806,665) 649,802
. 1.866338 2,149,332 282,974
$ 409891 $  1,342667 § 932,776

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement
74




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
REVENUE
Intergovernmental
1/4% Optional sales tax 315000 § 399,399 § 84,399
Other revenues
interest incoms - 69,534 3,801
Total Revenues 315,000 468,933 £8,200
EXPENDITURES
General government
Capital outlay 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures {685,000) 468,933 1,153,933
Fund Balance, July | 773,100 1,820,582 1,047,482
Fund Balance, June 30 88,100 § 2,289,515 $ 2,201,415

The notes to the financial statements arc an intcgral part of this statement
75




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
VIRGINIA CITY RAIL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 20, 2018

i ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
| REVENUE
- None $ - 3 -3 -
EXPENDITURES
Culture and Recreation
Capital outlay 700,000 - 700,000
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures {700.000) - 700,000
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bond proceeds 22,000 21,753 247
Debt service
Principal (91,000} (91,000) -
Interest {80,610) (80,610) -
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources {Uses) over Expenditures (849,610) {149,857) 700,247
Fund Balance, July L 878,385 835,829 (42,556)
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 28,775 § 685,972 § 657,197

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
76




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
FIRE CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
REVENUE
None $ s & - -
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 750,000 72,591 677,409
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures (750,000) (72,591) 677,409
Fund Balance, July 1 1.000.000 1,000,000 5
Fund Balance, June 30 $ 250,000 § 927409 § 677,409

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
17




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
WATER SYSTEM ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET

OPERATING REVNUES
Sales of water 604,000 557,800 $ (46,200)

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salarics and wages 124,787 165,177 (40,390)
Benefits 65,230 73,333 (8,103)
Services and supplies 259,600 243,863 15,737
Capital outlay - 42,634 {42,634)
Depreciation 105,000 102,786 2,214

Total operating expenses 554,617 621,793 (73,176)

Operating income (loss) 49,383 __ (69,993) (119.376)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Interest eamings 25,000 - (25,000}
Rents 12,000 13,800 1,800
Interest Expense (22,712) (355) 22,357
Misccllancous - 6,369 6,369
Grants and capital contributions - 12,589 12,589

Net Income {loss} 63,671 § (37.590) $ {101,261}

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
78




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
WATER SYSTEM ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ORIGINAL AND
FINAL BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET

C

Cash In flows
Sates of water 604,000 § 562,015 § (41,985)
Miscellaneous income - 6,369 6,369

Cash Out flows
Salaries and wages (124,787) (161,254) (36,467)
Benefits (65,230) (78,686) (13,456)
Services and supplies (259,600} (243,180) 16,420

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 154,383 85,264 (69,119)

CASHEF FROM SCAPITAL F
Cash In flows
Rent 13,800 1,800
Capital outlay (3,038) (3,038}
Customer deposits M =

Net Cash Provided by Non Capital Financing Activitics 10,762 (1,238

LOWSF D ITI
Cash In flows
Capital contributed 12,589 (12,589)
Cash Out flows
Capital outlay (63,000) (147,106} (84,106}
Debt service (16,925) (498,986) (482,061)
Interest expense (22,712) (355 22,357

Net Cash (Used} by Capital Related Activities {102,637) (633,858) (531,221)

FLOWS FR: ESTING ACTIVIT
Interest earnings 25,000 - (25,000)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 88,746 (537,832) (626,578)

Cash, July | 1,614,186 1,649,537 35,351

Cash, June 30 1,702,932 § 1,111,705 § (591,227)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
79




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
VIRGINIA DIVIDE SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGETED BUDGETED ACTUAL VARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET
QPERATING REVNUES
Sales of water $ 377,000 § 377,000 $ 392,755 § 15,755
QPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and wages 74,973 86,973 89,273 (2,300)

Benefits 34,150 41,150 40,768 382
Services and supplies 85,500 85,500 194,631 (109,131)
Depreciation 40,000 40,000 147,852 (107,852)
Total operating expenses 234623 253,623 472.524 _ (218.9010)
Operating income (loss) 142,377 123,377 (79.269) (203,146}
Interest income 5,000 5,000 - (5,000)
Interest expense - - (72,187) (72,187}
Transfer from general - 208,500 - (208,500)

Transfer to USDA {119,000) (251,000) - 251,000

Grants and contributions - - 5,173,531 5,173,531

Capital outlay - {57,500) - 57,500

Other income 2 - 662 662

Net Income (loss} $ 28377 § 28377 § 5,022,237 § 4,993,860

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
80




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

VIRGINIA DIVIDE SEWER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash In flows
Sewer Fees
Cash Out flows
Salaries and wages
Benefits
Setvices and supplies

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Out flows
Capital outlay

Net Cash (Used) by Non Capital Financing Activities

WQMEAWB
Cash In flows
Other income
Capital contributed
Cash Out flows
Debt service
Interest expense

Net Cash (Uscd) by Capital Related Activities

Q&HWW
Transfers from general
Interest carnings

Net Cash Provided by Capital Related Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

Cash, July 1

Cash, June 30

ORIGINAL
BUDGETED
AMOUNTS

FINAL
BUDGETED

ACTUAL VYARIANCE TO
AMOUNTS AMOUNTS FINAL BUDGET

§ 377000 $§ 377000 $ 392867 § 15,867
(74,973) (86,973) (87,686) (113)
(34,150) (41,150) (43.842) (2,692)
(85,500) (85,500) __ (188,360) (102,860
182,377 163371 72,979 {90,398)

- (57,500) _(5,019,853) (4,962,353)

- (57,500) _ (5,019,853) 4,962,353

) . 662 662

. . 5173,5%2 (5,173,532)
(119,000)  (251,000)  (123,876) 127,124
. : (72,187) (72,187)
(119,000) __ (251,000) _ 4,978,131 (5,117,933)
] 208,500 2 (208,500)

5,000 5,000 g (5,000)
5,000 213,500 . (213,500)
68,377 68,377 31,257 (459.478)
408,452 408.452 335,125 (73,327)
§ 476829 § 476829 § 366382 § _ (110,447)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

81




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
82

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1 JUNE 30 ‘
2017 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 2018
STATE OF NEVADA FUND
Assets
Cash $ 735,683 $ 2,387,010 § 1,956,351 § 1,166,342 ]
Liabilities
Duc Other Governments 3 735,683 $ 2,387,010 % 1,956,351 § 1,166,342
Y HO
Assets
Cash $ (3,391} $ 4,330,403 § 4314079 § 12,933
Liabilities
Due Other Governments 3 {(3,391) § 4,330,403 § 4314079 § 12,933
TO (8] SC LD
Assets
Cash s (656) $ 833,765 § 830,805 § 2,304
Liabilities
Due Other Governments $ {656) $§ 833,765 § 830,805 % 2,304 ‘
|
A EY 10 D
Assets
Cash $ 143 § 623 $§ - § 766
Liabilities ‘
Due Other Governments $ 143 § 623 § - 3 766 |
VIRGINIA CITY RAIL
Assets |
Cash $ - $40259381 $ 39828962 $ 430,419
Liabilities
Due Other Governments 5 - §.40259,381 § 39,828,962 § 430,419
TOTAL - ALL FUNDS
Assets
Cash 3 731,779 $ 47,811,182 $§ 46930,197 § 1,612,764
|
Liabilitics
Due Other Governments $ 731,779 § 47,811,182 § 46,930,197 § 1,612,764



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF STOREY COUNTY ABATEMENT AGREEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Storey County has agreements with businesses within the Industria! Park for property tax, sales tax. plan review and permit fee abatement
agreements, These agreements range from 5 years to 20 years depending on the individual abatement. The following is a list of thosc
abatements.

State of Nevada Governor's Office on Economic Development (GOED)

Chapter 271B of the Ncvada Revised Statutes created on Economic Diversification District for which Storey County is & participant. Tesla
filed as o Lead participant within the Statue and was granted full abatements on Property Tax for 10 years and Seles and Use Tax for 20
years. The effect of this abatement is as follows:

REAL PROPERTY TAX

ASSESSED YALUE ABATEMENT T ATEMENT
$167,858,394 98% $5,707,384
SALES AND USE TAX

TAX AMOUNT ABATEMENT TOTAL ABATEMENT
$27,155,343 100% $27,155,343
OPTION TAX

TAX AMOUNT ABATEMENT TOTAL ABATEMENT
$1,142,548 100% $1,142,548
PLAN REVIEW AND PERMIT FEES

FEES CHARGED AMOUNT FAID T

$5,463,424 $0 $5.463,424

In addition, GOED has permitted several companies to abate a certain portion of their personal Property Tax.

PRE-ABATEMENT
TAX AMOUNT ABATEMENT TOTAL ABATEMENT
$20,225,922 92% $18,568,777

Nevada Governor's Otfice of Energy (GOE)
The GOE administers the green building tax abatement program based on criteria set forth in the LEED of Green Globes
rating system and certification from the U.S. Green Building Council. This abatement if as follows:

LEED ABATEMENTS

PRE-ABATEMENT

TAX AMOUNT ABATEMENT TOTAL ABATEMENT
$1,129,873 17% $188,886
TESLA REIMBURSEMENT (655,053)

Grand Total $57.57L309

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
83




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

JUNE 30, 2018
2018

Total OPEB liability

Service cost $ 2,020,652
Interest 586,141
Changes of benefit terms -
Differences between expected and actual experience -
Changes of assumptions or other inputs (2,542,189)
Benefit payments (208,173)
Net change in total OPEB liability ' $ (143,569)
Total OPEB liability-beginning $ 18,649,779
Total OPEB liability-ending $ 18,506,210
Covered-employee payroll 3 9,590,509
Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroil 192.96%

GASB Statement No. 75 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until 10 ycars of data is compiled, the
County will present information only for those years for which information is available.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
B4




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF COUNTY'S SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF NEVADA

JUNE 30, 2018
2017 2016 2015 2014

County's portion of the net pension liability 0.145% 0.145% 0.132% 0.129%
County's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 20,601,898 § 19,511,455 § 15126431 § 16,929,912
County's covered-cmployee payroll $ 8207871 § 7299918 § 6354233 § 6,040,606
County's proportionate share of the nct pension liability as a
percentage of its covered-employee payroll 251.00% 267.28% 238.05% 280.27%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

total net pension liability 74.40% 72.20% 75.10% 76.30%

GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until 10 years of data is compiled, the
County will present information only for those years for which information is available.

The notes to the financial statements are an integra part of this statement
85



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF COUNTY'S CONTRIBUTIONS - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF NEVADA

JUNE 30, 2018
2018 2017 2016 2015
Statutorily required contribution $ 2,720,384 $ 2,781,291 § 2458598 § 2037477
Contributions in relation to the statutorily required contribution $ (2,720,384) § (2,781,291) $ (2,458,598) § (2,037,477)
Contribution (deficiency) excess s -3 -3 - 8 -
County's covered-cmployee payroll $ 7,947,637 $ B207871 $ 7299918 § 6,354,233
Contributions as a percentage of covered-cmployee payroll 34.23% 33.89% 33.68% 32.06%

GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until 10 ycars of data is compiled, the
County will present information only for those years for which information is available.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
86




DiPietro & Thornton

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

&y

Joseph F. Costanza, CPA OfCounsel

Scott A. Westover, CPA John E DiPietro, CPA
Theresa M. Westover, CPA Randall D. Thornton, CPA

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Board of Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada

We have audiled, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable 1o financial audils contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activitics, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of Storey County, Nevada, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Storgy County’s basic financial statements and
have issued our report thereon dated November 30, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financlal Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Storey County, Nevada’s internal control
over financial reporting (intemal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriated in the circumstances for
, the purpose of expressing cur opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
| effectiveness of Storey County, Nevada’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Storey County, Nevada's internalcontrol.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficlencies in intemal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencics may exist that were not identified.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internel control that we consider to be
material weaknesses, We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs that we consider to be significant deficiencics.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control docs not ellow management or employees,
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and comrect, misstatements on a timely
basis. A matcrial weakness is a deficiency, or-& combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a
reasonahle possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis, We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as finding 2018-A to be a material weaknesses,

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or & combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the
deficicncies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as findings 2018-B and 201 8-Ctobe
significant deficiencies.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Storey County, Nevada's financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion, The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards. .

Storey County's Response to Findings
Storey County, Nevada's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings

and questioned costs. Storey County, Nevada's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. :

87

9550 Prototype Court, Ste 101 ° Reno, NV 89321 * (775) 825-1040 ' (775) 825-6074 fax ° dipistro-thornton.com




Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s intcrnal control or on compliance. This report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s intemal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

WA P

Reno, Nevada
November 30, 2018

88




DiPietroe & Thornton

CEATIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTAKTS

" Joseph F Costanza, CPA Of Counsel
Scott A. Westover, CPA John E DiPietro, CPA
Theresa M. Westover, CPA Randall D. Thornton, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE, AND ON THE SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Honorable Board of Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have sudited Storey County, Nevada's (Storey County) compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on cach of Storgy County's
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. Storgy County's major federal programs ar¢ identified in the
summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its federal
awards applicable to its federal programs. :

Auditor's Responsiblility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on complience for cach Storey County's major federal programs based on our
audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Gavernment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Storey County's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for cach major féderal program. However,
our audit does not provide a tegal determination of Storey County's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In aur opinion, Storey County complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017,

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Storey County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above, In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Storey
County's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on
each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
cxpressing an opinien on compliance for cach major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Storey County's intemal
control over compliance,

89

OLRN Dentntuma Faurt Cta 101 2 Reno. NV 89521 © (775) 825-1040 = (775) 825-6074 fax * dipietro-thornton.com



A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not
atlow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a compliance requirement will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less scvere than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control aver compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this scction
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
and therefore, material weaknesses and significant deficlencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any
deficiencies In internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified,

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is sclely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Pl L T

Reno, Nevada
November 30, 2018

90



16

10L ¢EL 3 s 2OURISISSY [GIOUBWL] [RI9P3] [RI0L
0sL 91Z¥0LE woLe JURID) OBULOLER ] 1UMIBEURN Asumadowyg
6686 91TYOLE 4,000 1R 90URULIOHR] JoauaBeuRi Aousdsoury
6£8°01 SIZFOLE wo'Lé J030) JOURULIONS ] JSNS el KounBiourg
fKapes Hqnd Jo 1uaunredo] TPRAIN JO WIS YSnarg] pIssed
S18°6% ViIN 9E0°L6 ufeq UONRNSIUNIPY AMS YINIL
JuswaTerepy Lxuefismy Jo uOISIAL] ARFes Aqnd Jo Jusunredsaq epeadN YEnory possed
A% PUETSEOH J0 WSumasd ST
sL6 90-€0-S I-dIWH-L] oL 0T syt uruue]f pue Busorel], 101095 I1qNd STRLSIEN snopezef] AsudBelanul
goissianmo?) ssuodsay AousSrug RIS BPRAIN y2nonp pIssed
oirall VIN 919°0C suresBou A1aJeg AIUOLL] [EUOTBN
856'8¢ YIN 91902 suresiFau] K1a5e§ AL0U [BUOTEN
£sages; JJEL], JO DGO “ABFES AIqng Jo yusunmedaq FPRAIN yBnouy) passed
a%%
00001 1EVMVA-LIOT 83591 SJURLD) B[NULIOS UATOM ISUTESY IOUAOIA
GO TN 1o Eummdsq ST
000'0Z 06ZIFI-91-IE ¥06°S1 PIV-U]-SIURIS) PUNL] UOTGRAIISAL] JLIOISTH
0919 06TLFI-91-TE ¥o6°¢l Pry-uj-suRLD) pung UONBAISAU] JUOEIH
00009 06Z1¥1-91-TE r06'¢1 Pry-Uj-SIURID) PUn UOTRALIE3L] JLOISTH
Farpmm ] 132(]
FOUESTU] 310 30 TOSumer S
8076t $ VN #9901 souasissy Ansate sanwadoo)
Ansa10] JO BOSIAK] PPRASN YInany pIssed
T68'9L¥ R § ¥£1 0009880~ 10-£E 09L01 somIunUINo,) [RIny 0] WSS [esodsi] WM PUR M
SIgouY Jo Emedsd 3N
S PN NFmgnwpy] BN VAD

Anug ydnomy ] -ssed fpeq

2107 "0 INNT AFANT ¥vdA HL 4O
SEVMY TVHIJTd 40 STNLIGNIdXE 40 TINATHOS
VAVAIN "ALNNOD ATIOLS




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Note A- Basis of Presentation

The accompanying sqhedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award activity of
Storey County under programs of the federal government for the year ending June 30, 2018. The information in this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost P inciples, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Because the Schedule present only 2 selected portion of the operations of Storey County, it is not intended
to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of Storey County.

Note B- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for Audits of
State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments, or the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance wherein
certain types of expenditures are not allowed or are limited as reimbursement. When applicable, negative amount
shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business as expenditures in prior

years.
Indirect Casts

The County has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance

Note C- Subrecipients

Storey County did not pass any federal awards received to any other govenment or not-for profit agencics.

Note D - Loans with Continuing Compliance Requirement

Qutstanding federally-funded program loans with a continuing compliance requirement, carried batance as of June 30,
2018 as follows:

CFDA  Program Title Loan Balance
10.76 Water and Waste Disposal System for Rural Communities s 3,942,551
92




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONS COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
A, Summary of Auditors Resulis

Financial Statements

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial
Statements audited were prepoare in accordance with GAAP:

Internal control over financial repotting:

Material weakness identified?

Significant deficiency identified?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weakness identified?

Significant deficiency identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs

Any audit findings diclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA#  Name of Federal Program or Cluster
10.76 Water and Waste Disposal System for Rural Communities

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee

93

$

Unmodified

Yes
Yes

No
No

Unmodified

No

750,000

Yes




Finsncial Statement Findipgs

Findings Relating to The Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with GAGAS

2018-A Report Preparation
Material Weakness

Criteria

Condition

Cause

Effect

Recommendation

Views of Responsible Officals

Management of Storey County is responsible for establishing and maintaining an
effective system of internal control over financial reporting. Properly valuing
investments is a key component of effective internal control over financial reporting

During our review of the cash and investment a counts, we noted that the
investments held by the county were not booked at their market value. The County
used the cost basis.

The County has always accounted for investments using the cost basis. They have
not properly implemented GASB 72.

The County overstated their cash accounts by a material amount. An audit
adjustment was necded to properly record the investments.

We recommend the bonds be recorded at their fair market value going forward

Management agrees with this finding

94




B.  Financial Statement Findipgs
Findings Relating to The Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with GAGAS

2018-B Report Preparation
Significant Deficiency

Criteria Management of Storey County is responsible for cstablishing, and maintaining an
effective system of internal control over financial reporting. One of the key
components of an effective system, of internal control is to provide the finance staff
with adequate resources available to prepare the financial, statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles.

Conditio
ondition In the process of completing our audit, we were requested to draft the financial

statements, assist with the conversion of fund financial statements to government-
wide statements, and prepare the accompanying notes, to the financial statements.

Given the daily responsibilities of management,, the resources of time, and, training
necessary to prepare the County's financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles are not available. As & result the County
has chosen to contract with Dipietro and Thornton to prepare the financial
statements. This circumstance is not unusual in an organization of this size; due to
time constraints of management and costs associated with compliance of the
standards. However, management has not implemented sufficient procedures to
capture the necessary information needed for the financial, statements and related
disclosures to be prepared in all material respects.

The County's financial records required audit adjustments in order for the financial
statements to be in, accordence with GAAP. Internally prepared financial
information may not be accurate and full disclosure financial statements may not be
available as timely as they would be if prepared by County personnel,

Recommendation . . s .
We recommend County staff continue to obtain training in the preparation of the

financial statements and related financial statement disclosures in order to gain the
knowledge needed to prepare the financial statements and related financial statement
disclosures in afl material respects.

Views of Responsible Officals Management agrees with this finding




Findings Relating to The Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with GAGAS

2018-C Report Preparation
Significant Deficiency

Criteria Management of Storey County is responsible for establishing, and maintaining an
effective system of intemal control over financial reporting. One of the key
components of an effective system, of internal control is to review accounts
receivable during the year for accuracy and collectability

Condition

During the performance of our procedures, it was noted that the County was not able
to track the ambulance receivables during the year. It was also noted the County had
not reviewed the collectability of the ambulance receivables.

Cause The County had turnover in the fire department. The ncw employce has been

working on cleaning up the accounts.

Effect An audit adjustment was necessary during the audit to correct the balance on the
books and to adjust the allowance for uncollectable accounts.

Recommendation We recommend the County review the Accounts Receivables from ambulance
service monthly and check for accuracy and collectibilty

Views of Responsible Officals Management agrees with this finding

Findings and Questioned Costs- Major Federal Award, Program Audit

No audit findings reported

96



STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Findings relating to The Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with GAGAS

2017-A

We recommended County staff continue to obtain training in the preparation of the financial statements and related financial
statement disclosures in order to gain the knowledge needed to prepare the financial statements and related financial statement
disclosures in all material respects.

This was not implemented and is included in the current year finding 2018-B
2017-B

We recommend the bonds be recorded at their fair market value going forward

This was not implemented and is included in the current year finding 2018-A
2017-C

We recommend that in the future all payments made at retirement be approved by the County Commissioners. This will not
only- help the County be more transparent, but will help protect the County Manager.

This was implemented during the year

Findings and Questioned Costs- Major Federal Award Program Audit

No audit findings were reported

97



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 7, 2019 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X]| Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: National Radon Action Month Proclamation

2. Recommended motion: [ move to proclaim January 2019 as National Radon Action Month in
Storey County.

3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin
Department: Community Services Telephone: 775-847-0986

4. Staff summary:

January is National Radon Action Month (NRAM). In Nevada, test results show that radon is
present at elevated concentrations in about one in four tested homes.

In recognition of National Radon Action Month, University of Nevada Cooperative Extension, the
Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health, in conjunction with the EPA, will strengthen
efforts to educate the public about the dangers of radon and what can be done to minimize the
health risk from exposure to elevated levels of indoor radon. Free radon test kits will be offered to
Nevadans during January and February.

5. Supporting materials: Request and Proclamation

6. Fiscal impact: NONE

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
____Dastrict Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved Approved with Modifications
[]

Denied Continued

f— g—
— —

Agenda Item No. l QJ




A PROCLAMATION DECLARING JANUARY 2019 AS
“NATIONAL RADON ACTION MONTH IN STOREY COUNTY,
NEVADA”

WHEREAS, many Storey County residents don’t know about radon, yet
need to know, for the safety and health of their families, as radon is a
colorless, odorless, naturally occurring radioactive gas that is the primary
cause of lung cancer among nonsmokers; the second leading cause of lung
cancer for smokers: and

WHEREAS, the U.S. EPA estimates 21,000 people in the U.S. die each
year from lung cancer caused by indoor radon exposure, and lung and
bronchus cancer kills more people in a year than any other cancer; and

WHEREAS, radon kills more people than secondhand smoke, drunk
driving and home fires combined: and

WHEREAS, any home in Storey County may have elevated levels of radon,
even if neighboring homes do not, and living in a home with an average
radon level of 4 picocuries per liter of air poses a similar risk of developing
lung cancer as smoking half a pack of cigarettes a day; and

WHEREAS, testing is the only way to know if a home has an elevated radon
level, and testing is easy and inexpensive, and when identified, homes can
be fixed; and

WHEREAS. University of Nevada Cooperative Extension, the Nevada
Division of Public and Behavioral Health, and the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency support efforts to encourage all Storey County residents
to test their homes for radon, mitigate elevated levels of radon, and have
new homes built with radon-reducing materials and features.

NOW, THEREFORE. We, the Storey County Board of Commissioners,
do hereby proclaim January 2019, as

“NATIONAL RADON ACTION MONTH”
In Storey County, Nevada

ADOPTED this " day of January, 2019

(Signature and Seal of Official)




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 01/07/19 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Amend project completion benchmarks of contract with
Robert Loveberg to review, update, and amend Storey County’s floodplain ordinance to improve
standards to meet or exceed FEMA minimum requirements, accommodate the reginal floodplain
mapping and flood insurance rate maps (FIRMs), implement Carson River Flood Mitigation Plan
mitigation measures, and consider revisions necessitated by the 2017 flood cvent, as set forth in the
attached scope of work and schedule.

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff, I [county commissioner]
motion to approve amending project completion benchmarks of contract with Robert Loveberg to

review, update, and amend Storey County’s floodplain ordinance as indicated in Enclosure B
Amended Scope of Work and Schedule.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968

5. Staff summary: Enclosure A, Staff Summary; Enclosure B, Amended Scope of Work and
Schedule

6. Supporting materials: Enclosures: (A) Staff summary; (B) amended contract scope of work;
(C) contract approved by board on 07/03/18.

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Availablec: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:
District Attorney

9. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
'Munly Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[] Approved
[1] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—
[

Agenda ltem No. | %

Page 1 of 1




Enclosure A: Staff Summary

On 07/03/18 the Board of Storey County Commissioners authorized the County Manager to
contract with Robert Loveberg to update and improve Storey County Code 15.20 Flood Damage
Prevention (floodplain ordinance) in order to comply with the Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA) National Floodplain Insurance Program (NFIP), to prevent structural damage and
devastation from flood events, and to improve the county’s FEMA NFIP Community Rating
System (CRS). During the contract period unforeseen circumstances caused delay in meeting
contract benchmarks. County planning staff discussed the matter with the contractor and is
confident that adjusted benchmarks could be met.

i
Improving the CRS rating translates into reduced flood insurance rates for residents located within ‘
the FEMA flood hazards area, which will benefit many residents of Lockwood. The project under |
this contract will be completed in conjunction with the Carson Water Subconservancy District’s ‘
{(CWSD) regional floodplain ordinance update now underway for Douglas County, Carson City, |
Lyon County, and Churchill County.

Page 1 of 1



REVISED
SCOPE OF SERVICES

FLOODPLAIN ORDINANCE LANGUAGE UPDATE

SUBMITTED TO:
STOREY COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT

DECEMBER 27,2018

Robert G. Loveberg

Planning @ Consulting B3ervices




Revised Scope of Services Storey County Floodplain Ordinance Language Update

SCOPE OF SERVICES

This Scope of Services has been structured to assist Storey County to improve and update its
floodplain management regulations. Through a collaborative process, the services will help the
County review, update and amend their floodplain ordinance to improve standards to exceed
FEMA minimum requirements, accommodate the new regional floodplain mapping and flood
insurance rate maps (FIRMs), implement Carson River Flood Mitigation Plan mitigation
measures, and consider revisions necessitated by the 2017 flood event. The new ordinance
language will be consistent with the State of Nevada model floodplain ordinance, FEMA
requirements, and the Carson River Regional Floodplain Plan (CRRFP).

TASKS

Task 1 RevIEW BACKGROUND MATERIALS AND DETERMINE NEEDS AND OPPORTUNITIES

1.1 Review the Carson River Regional Floodplain Plan, State of Nevada model
floodplain ordinance, FEMA guidance and regulatory materials, and other related
reference materials.

1.2 Obtain and Review the current Storey County floodplain management ordinance 1
and regulatory measures.

1.3 Review the Carson River Flood Mitigation Plan mitigation measures for Alpine
County, Carson City, Douglas County, and Lyon County to determine if any
measures are relevant to Storey County.

1.4 Meet and collaborate with Storey County and Carson Water Subconservancy
District (CWSD) staff.

1.4.1 Meet with Storey County staff to initiate the Project and discuss Project
goals, concepts, tasks, and timeline. The meeting should include all
relevant staff such as the floodplain administrator, Planning Director,
Building Department/Community Development Director, engineering
staff, District Attorney’s Office staff, etc.

1.4.2 Meet with Storey County staff to discuss and document specific needs,
unique circumstances, programs and opportunities regarding floodplain
management, implementing standards that exceed minimum FEMA
requirements, and development of ordinance revisions. Review and
discuss needs and opportunities considering the 2017 flooding event and
any newly available information. Review and discuss the Carson River
Flood Mitigation Plan mitigation measures for Alpine County, Carson City,
Douglas County, and Lyon County to determine if any measures are
relevant to Storey County.

1.4.3 Meet with CWSD and Storey County staff to discuss and document specific
Storey County needs and opportunities as viewed by CWSD. Review and
discuss needs and opportunities considering the 2017 flooding event and
any newly available information. Review and discuss the Carson River

27 December 2018 1




Revised Scope of Services Storey County Floodplain Crdinance Longuage Update

TASK 2

Flood Mitigation Plan mitigation measures for Alpine County, Carson City,
Douglas County, and Lyon County to determine if any measures are
relevant to Storey County.

1.5 Prepare an interview summary.

Collaboration/Coordination:

e Collaboration/coordination with Storey County staff

e Collaboration/coordination with CWSD staff

e Requests for copies of existing ordinances, CRS materials and other relevant
infermatian from Storey County.

Deliverable Products:
s Storey County Interview Summary in electronic format

PrePARE DRAFT AND FINAL FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE LANGUAGE
Through a collaborative process with Storey County and CWSD, prepare draft fioodplain
management ordinance language for the County incorporating the requirements,
needs, and opportunities, and any identified mitigation measures. Prepare final
floodplain management ordinance language for the County incorporating the
comments and revisions received on the draft floodplain management ordinance
language.

2.1 Prepare draft floodplain management ordinance language through a collaborative
effort with County staff

2.1.1 Prepare preliminary draft floodplain management ordinance language by
editing, revising and amending the County’s floodplain management
ordinance language to meet or exceed the minimum requirements of the
State of Nevada model floodplain ordinance and FEMA requirements
based on the needs and opportunities assessments, and priorities
developed in conjunction with County staff.

2.1.2 Prepare draft floodplain management ordinance language based on the
reviews, comments, and revisions of the preliminary draft language
developed in conjunction with County staff.

2.1.3 Collaborate and meet with Storey County staff

2.1.2.1 Collaborate and meet with Storey County staff during the
preparation of preliminary draft language to review, discuss and
revise preliminary draft language being prepared for the County.

2.1.2.2 Collaborate and meet with Storey County staff to review the draft
ordinance language prepared for the County.

2.2 Prepare final floodptain management ordinance language

2.2.1 Prepare final floodplain management ordinance language incorporating
the comments and revisions received on the draft floodplain management
ordinance language.

2.2.2 Collaborate and meet with Storey County and CWSD

27 December 2018 2




Revised Scope of Services Storey County Floodplain Ordinance Longuage Update

TASK 3

2.2.2.1 Collaborate with CWSD staff to review the final ordinance language
prepared for Storey County by providing an electronic version of the
draft language to the CWSD staff for their comments.

2.2.2.2 Collaborate and meet with Storey County staff to review the final
ordinance language prepared for the County.

Collaboration/Coordination:

e Correspondence/telephone conversations with Storey County staff and CWSD
staff during the preparation of preliminary draft and draft language

e Correspondence/telephone conversations with Storey County and CWSD staff to
discuss, and solicit reviews of and comments on the preliminary draft and draft
floodplain management ordinance language

e Correspondence/telephone conversations with Storey County staff and CWSD
staff during the preparation of final language, as needed

Deliverable Products:

e Preliminary Draft Ordinance Language in electronic format
e Draft Ordinance Language in electronic format

e Final Ordinance Language in electronic format

FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE ADOPTION
3.1 Assist the Storey County with the adoption of the revised/improved floodplain
management ordinance language.
3.1.1 Meeting with Storey County staff, together with CWSD staff if desired, to
coordinate and review presentations to Storey County.
3.1.2 Participate in the presentation of the revised ordinance language at one
Planning Commission or public outreach meeting.
3.1.3 Participate in the presentation of the revised ordinance language at one
Board of Commissioners meeting.

Collaboration/Coordination:
e Collaboration/coordination with Storey County staff on presentations to Storey
County

Deliverable Products:

® None

27 December 2018 3




Revised Scope of Services

Storey County Floodplain Ordinance Languoge Update

PrOJECT BUDGET
11-1.3 Review Existing Ordinance, Mitigation Measures, and Planning 11 hours $925
Reference/Regulatory Materials Support 1.5 hours 590
Subtotal $1,015
Planning 3.5 hours $388
1.4-15 | Prepare Needs and Opportunities Support 4.5 hours $270
Meetings 3 meetings $1,420
Subtotal 52,078
21 :zz‘aj;eg:reliminary Draft and Draft Floodplain Management Ordinance ;Ijapnpn‘;r:tg 3; :g::: 52512(2)3
Meetings 2 meetings $1,004
Subtotal 54,229
Planning 7 hours 5675
2.2 Prepare Final Floodplain Management Ordinance Language Support 1.5 hours SS90
Meetings 1 meetings $462
Subtotal $1,227
Planning 4.5 hours $463
3 Floodplain Management QOrdinance Adoption Support 2.5 hours %150
Meetings 3 meetings $1,377
Subtotal 51,990
g::;:g:r:t;;a /:::irpol $125/Mour ($50/hour travel time)  Planner — 575/howr ($37.50/hour travel time) TOTAL $10,539

ReviISED PROJECT SCHEDULE

Review Background Materials
1 and Prepare Needs and
Opportunities

1.1-1.3

reference materials

Complete review of ordinances and other

January 14, 2019

Complete Project initiation meeting with

Prepare Draft Floodplain
Management Ordinance
2 Language and Final
Floodplain Management
Ordinance Language

Floodplain Management
Ordinance Adoption

A4, J 31,
141 County staff anuary 31, 2019
i 43 Complete mef.:t.lng with County staff on needs January 31, 2019
and opportunities
143 Complete meeting with CWSD %ICounty staff February 28, 2019
on County needs and opportunities
1.5 Complete County Interview Summary March 18, 2019
211 Complet.e preliminary draft of County March 31, 2019
fioodplain management language
312 Complete draft of County floodplain April 31, 2019
management Ianguagf
22 Complete final County floodplain June 30, 2019
management [anguage
31 Complete presentation assistance to County August 31, 2019

for final floodplain management language

1. Dotes are estimates and subject to change due to the potentiol change in estimoted project initigtion dote, variances in meeting scheduling, timeliness
of the receipt of information and comments, bearing schedules, etc.
2. Professional Services Agreement term ends December 31, 20189,

27 December 2018




Revised Scope of Services Storey County Floodplain Ordinance Language Update

MEETINGS AND TRAVEL
1.4.1 | Storey County Staff Introductory Meeting Virginia City Storey County staff & consultant
14.2 Store.y'Cm..mty Needs:and Gpporunities Virginia City Storey County staff & consultant
Identification
143 Storey COL:mty Needs and Opportunities CWSD Office, Carson CWSDiEta & consaltant
Identification City
2151 Review.DiscusiAuRevise Preliminary Draft Virginia City Starey County staff & consultant
Language
2.15.2 Review & Disedssion of Draft-Didinanice Virginia City Storey County staff & consultant
Language
2252 Review: . Diseussion of Firlal Ddifipnce Virginia City Storey County staff & consultant
Language
311 Coordination and Review of Presentations for VirginiaEity Storey County staff & consultant

Final Ordinance Language

Storey County staff & consultant at
3.1.2 | Presentation of Final Ordinance Language Virginia City Planning Commission or public
gutreach meeting

Storey County Board of

3.1.3 | Presentation of Final Ordinance Language Virginia City Commissioners & staff, and
consultant

27 December 2018 5




PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

Agreement for Professional Services of Independent Contractor to
Review and Propose Revisions to County Floodplain Ordinance

THIS AGREEMENT dated this _€©_Zday of /Q‘ESZ , 2018, is entered into by
and between ROBERT G. LOVEBERG (hereinafter "CONSULTANT"} and the STOREY
COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (hereinafter "COUNTY™).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, COUNTY requires the services of an independent contractor to
assist COUNTY in reviewing, revising, and updating its County Code floodplain
provisions, which is described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by
reference; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is a private planning consultant; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT has substantial experience as a professional
planner, floodplain administrator, emergency manager, and multi-discipline consultant
and is currently providing professional services to the Carson Water Subconservancy
District to improve floodplain ordinances in the Carson River Watershed; and

WHEREAS, COUNTY desires to contract with CONSULTANT to provide
services to review, revise, and update its County Code floodplain provisions; and

WHEREAS, COUNTY holds that the services of CONSULTANT are both
necessary and desirable, and that contracting with CONSULTANT is in the best interest
of COUNTY; and
WHEREAS, CONSULTANT represents that he is ready, willing, and able to perform

and render services hereinafter described.

Page 10of 8
AGREEMENT#P18070101-StorsyCounty



NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual
covenants herein contained, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties as follow:

1. Effective Date. This Agreement will not become effective until and unless

approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners.

2. Compensation. COUNTY shall reimburse CONSULTANT for the costs to review
and propose revisions to its County Code to revise and update its floodplain
provisions, as described in Exhibit "A."

3. Avatlable Funds. The maximum amount of funds available under this
Agreement will not exceed $12,000.00.

4, Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall terminate December 31, 2019, at
which time CONSULTANT shall have one (1) month thereafter to submit its final
invoice for payment related to work performed under this Agreement. If all funds

are expended earlier, this Agreement may be terminated sooner by written notice

from COUNTY.
8. Notices. For invoicing and notice purposes, the address of each party is as

follows:
CONSULTANT COUNTY
Robert G. Loveberg Aftn.: Austin Osbome
Planning Consultant Storey County Administrative Officer
P.0O. Box 2924 P.O. Box 176
Minden, Nevada 89423 Virginia City, Nevada 89440
lovebergconsulting@gamil.com aosborne@storeycounty.org
775-721-2282 775-847-0968

6. Assignment. This Agreement shall be by and between the parties hereto and

shall not be assignable or transferable.

Page 2 of 8

AGREEMENT#~18070101-StoreyCounty




7.

Independent Contractor Status. Under this Agreement, CONSULTANT is

considered an independent contractor and not an employee of COUNTY. As an
independent contractor, there will be no:

. Withholding of income taxes by COUNTY,;

b. Industrial insurance coverage by COUNTY;
c. Participation in group insurance plans which may be available to
employees of COUNTY,
d. Participation or contributions by either party to the public employees’
retirement system;
e. Accumuiation of vacation or sick leave; and
f. Unemployment compensation coverage provided by COUNTY if the
requirements of NRS 612.085 for independent contractors are met.
Industrial Insurance. CONSULTANT is a sole proprietor. In lieu of providing a
certificate of insurance for and maintaining workers compensation insurance,
CONSULTANT, in accordance with the provisions of NRS 616B.659, has not
elected to be included within the terms, conditions, and provisions of chapters
616A to 616D, inclusive, of NRS; and is otherwise in compliance with those
terms, conditions, and provisions.
Indemnification. CONSULTANT agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless
COUNTY, its employees, officers and agents from any liabilities, damages,
losses, claims, actions or proceedings, including without limitation, reasonable
attorney fees, that are caused by the negligence, errors, omissions, recklessness

or intentional misconduct of CONSULTANT or its employees or agents in the

Page 3 of 8

AGREEMENT#P18070101-StoreyCounty

o



performance of this agreement. COUNTY agrees to defend, indemnify and hold
harmless CONSULTANT, its employees, officers and agents from any liabilities,
damages losses, claims, actions or proceedings, including without limitation,

reasonable attorney fees, that are caused by the negligence, errors, omissions,

recklessness or intentional misconduct of COUNTY or its employees or agents.

10. Insurance. CONSULTANT shall provide COUNTY insurance as follows:

a. General Liagbility Insurance: Prior to commencement and for the

duration of activities that constitute the Project that is the subject of this
Contract, CONSULTANT shall maintain commercial general liability
(CGL) insurance as follows:

i. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - General Aggregate.

ii. Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - Products & Completed
Operations Aggregate.

jii. One Million Doliars ($1,000,000.00) - Each Occurrence.
b. Automobile Liability Insurance:

i. CONSULTANT shall maintain automobile liability and, if necessary,
commercial umbrella liability insurance with a limit of not less than
$1,000,000 each accident for bodily injury and property damage.

ii. Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of owned, hired, and
non-owned autos (as applicable).

11. County Inspection. The books, records, documents, and accounting
procedures and practices of CONSULTANT related to this agreement will be

subject to inspection, examination, and audit by COUNTY, including, but not

Page 4 of 8

AGREEMENTN18070101-StoreyCounty




limited to, the contracting agency, the County Manager, the District Attorney,
and, if applicable, the Comptroller General of the United States or the United
States Department of Agriculture, Office of Rural Development, or any
authorized representatives of those entities.

12.  Disposition of Contract Materials. Any books, reports, studies, photographs,
negatives, or other documents, data, drawings, or other materials prepared by or
supplied to CONSULTANT in the performance of its obligations under this
agreement will be the exclusive property.of COUNTY, and all materials must be
remitted and delivered, at CONSULTANT’s expense, by CONSULTANT to
COUNTY upon completion, termination, or cancellation of this agreement.
Alternatively, if COUNTY provides its written approval to CONSULTANT, any
books, reports, studies, photographs, negatives, or other documents, data,
drawings, or other materials prepared by or supplied to CONSULTANT in the
performance of its obligations under this agreement must be retained by
CONSULTANT for a minimum of six years after final payment is made, and all |
other pending matters are closed. If, at any time during the retention period,
COUNTY, in writing, requests any or all of the materials, then CONSULTANT
must promptly remit and deliver the materials, at CONSULTANT'’s expense, to
COUNTY. CONSULTANT will not use, willingly allow, or cause to have the
materials used for any purpose other than the performance of CONSULTANT's
obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of COUNTY.

13. Public Records Law. CONSULTANT expressly agrees that aill documents ever

submitted, filed, or deposited with COUNTY by CONSULTANT, unless

Page 5 of 8

AGREEMENT#P18070101-StoreyCounty




14.

15.

16.

17.

designated as confidential by a specific statute of the State of Nevada, will be
treated as public records pursuant to NRS 239 and must be availabie for
inspection and copying by any person, as defined in NRS 0.039, or any
governmental entity. CONSULTANT expressly and indefinitely waives all of its
rights to bring, including but not limited to, by way of complaint, interpleader,
intervention, or any third party practice, any claims, demands, suits, actions,
judgements, or executions, for damages or any other relief, in any administrative
or judicial forum, against COUNTY or any of its officers or employees, in either
their official or individual capacity, for violations of or infringement of the
copyright laws of the United States or of any other nation.

Modification of Agreement. This Agreement may only be amended by consent
of both parties. Any amendments must be written and executed with the same
formality as this Agreement.

Termination of Agreement. Either party may terminate this agreement without
cause, provided that the termination of the agreement shall not be effective until
30 days after a party has served written notice on the other party. All monies due
and owing up to the point of termination shall be paid by COUNTY to
CONSULTANT within 80 days unless otherwise agreed upon by the parties.
Construction of Agreement. This Agreement shall be construed and
interpreted according to the laws of the State of Nevada.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. CONSULTANT shall fully and completely
comply with ali applicable local, state, and federal laws, regulations, orders, or

requirements of any sort in carrying out the obligations of this Agreement.

Page 6 of 8

AGREEMENT#P18070101-StoreyCounty




18.  Understanding Between the Parties. This Agreement, including Exhibit "A,"

constitutes the entire understanding between the parties and there are no
representations, conditions, warranties or collateral agreements (expressed or
implied), statutory or otherwise, with respect to the subject of this Agreement.

19.  Signatory Authority. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person
executing this Agreement on behalf of each party has full power and authority to
enter into this Agreement and that the parties are authorized by law to engage in
cooperative action set forth herein.

20.  This Agreement shall be entered into with duplicate originals, reaiizing that each
entity, by necessity, must approve and execute the subject document at different
dates, times and places.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and

year first written above.

DATED: /5 (Phbe Z/B  DateED: S Do Qo

ROBERT G. LOVEBERG PAT WHITTEN
PLANNING CONSULTANT STOREY COUNTY MANAGER

T ——

“Robert G, Ldvo@ Pat Whitten, County Manager

ATTEST:

Page 7 of 8
AGREEMENT#P18070101-StorsyCounty



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 7, 2019 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Consideration and Possible action on Resolution 19-526 to provide a date for a public
hearing on the proposed lease of a portion of that portion of Pipers Opera House commonly
known as the Old Comer Bar located at 12 North B Street in Virginia City, Nevada to VC
Ponderosa Saloon LLC.

2. Recommended motion | Commissioner, hereby move to approve Resolution 19-
526 to provide for a hearing on the proposed lease of a portion of Pipers Opera House to
VC Ponderosa Saloon LLC on the 5" day of February, 2019 and further authorize the
County Clerk/Treasurer to publish a notice of the proposed lease at least once in a
newspaper published in the County.

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964
4. Staff summary: Resolution 19-526 constitutes notice that the County is proposing to lease a
portion of Pipers Opera House commonly known as the Old Corner Bar to VC Ponderosa
Saloon LLC. NRS 244.2833 requires publication of a notice of the proposed lease in a

newspaper and sets a date at which a public hearing will be held to consider the proposed
lease. The lease is proposed to be for 3 years with a 2 year renewal and for a rental amount

of $1,800.00 per month

5. Supporting materials: Resolution 19 — 526; Proposed Lease Agreement

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
X District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

\4



9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

p— —

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Agenda ltem No. \Af



RESOLUTION NO. 19- 526

RESOLUTION Declaring Intention of Storey County to Lease Real Property
and Improvements Located at 12 North B Street in Virginia
City, Nevada

WHEREAS, NRS 244.2833 authorizes the Board of County Commissioners of Storey
County to lease real property belonging to the County without first offering the property to the
public and for less than fair market value, if applicable if the Board determines in a resolution

that such lease is in the best interests of the County; and,

WHEREAS, NRS 244.2833 further requires that notice of the proposed lease and of a
date for a public hearing on the proposed lease be published in a newspaper of general

circulation in the County; and

WHEREAS, The land and improvements located at 12 North B Street in Virginia City,
Nevada, commonly known as Piper’s Opera House is real property owned by Storey County;

and,

WHEREAS; The County is proposing to lease that portion of Piper’s Opera House

commonly known as the Old Corner Bar (the Property), to VC Ponderosa Saloon LLC.
NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:

1. That the proposed lease of the Property to VC Ponderosa Saloon LLC, without first
offering the Property to the public, is in the best interests of the County.

2. A hearing to consider the proposed lease will be held on the 5th day of February at the

hour of 10:30 a.m. at the Virginia City Courthouse at 26 South B Street in Virginia City,

Nevada



3. Notice of the time and date for the public hearing to consider the proposed lease must be

published in a newspaper of general circulation published in Storey County at least once

not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days before the hearing.

ADOPTED this day of ,2019

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

MARSHALL McBRIDE, Chairman

ATTEST:

VANESSA STEPHENS
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer




| June 20,2047

Namas: This lease is made between Storey County a politicai subdivision of the $tate of

NevadaRipers-Opera House Programstne: hereinafler named "Landlord” and VC Ponderosa Saloon
LLE, {dba ©Id Corner Bar) hereinafter named "Tenant"

Premises Leased |

Landlord is leasing to Tenant, and Tenant is leasing from Landlord the following premises named the
"Qld Corner Bar" located

Piper's Opera House «-— ~{ Formatted: Line spacing: Muttipie 1.15 I )
12 North B 5t
Virginia City, NV 89440

i {Formnm: Indent: Left: 0", First hne: 0", Line J
Specifically, Tenant is leasing: spacing: Multiple 1.15 Ii
The bar area +—~{ Formatted: Line spacing: Multiple .15 K )

Storage area in back of bar
Restrooms
Utility room

Jerm of Lease: _ o . | Formatted: Font: Bold ]
Therenewable-Lease ofthe Old comer Bar is for a pericd of lease-isfor 3-1-5 years and begins July4-—2017

Janany1,.2019and is in effect until December 31, 28482022, Lease toremaininefiectatsameatermein

the-eventatransierof-ownerehip ooours: The | is renewable for an itional 2

automatically renewed unless a notice of terminalion in writing is provided at least S0 days prior to

he expiratign of the initial term. Either party m rmin his lease at any tim n providin

written notice of the termination 90 days in advance of the fermination. o /[mm [KL1]: NRS 244 2833 sllows a maximum

of three years with & two year renswal when leasing a

Rent: portion of a county ownad buiiding

Rent of $1,800.00 is due the first day of every month for the upcomingmonth. A late fee of 5% of

the monthly rental will be charged for all rental payments made later than the 15/° day _,_,»-‘[Formatbed: Superscript J
of any month. Purchases made on behalf of the Landlord will be deducted from the next month's

rent

Page1




Jmprovements made by Tenant: = 0000000

Tenants may make alterations and improvements to the premises after obtaining Landlords written
consent. At any time before this lease ends, Tenant may remove any of Tenants alterations and
improvements. aslongas Tenant repairs any damage caused by attachingthe irems to or removing
thern from the premises. Written consent is not required for decorating purposes i ¢.; pictures.

Tenant's use of premises:

Barservices/liquorsalesin and aboutPiper's Opera House
Snack/Food services
Music and entertainment

Lobby with written permission (facility form to be filled out)
**|fthe renter of Piper's Opera House requests to do their own beverage services, the landlord has

the right to assign beverage services to them {excluding weddings-tenant to provide beverage
services)

Landlord's Representations:

Utilities:

Tenant will pay $50.00 per month for water directly to Landlord. Tenant will pay no propane.
Tenant will pay 35% of electric bilt. Tenant shall pay for bar phone service, cable and sateliite radio
for baruse.

Maintenance and repairs of leased premises:

Landlord will maintain and make atl necessary repairs to the folowing parts of the building in which
the leased premises are located:

*Roof

*Foundation and structural components
*Exterior walls

*Interior walls

* Extenor doors and windows

*Plumbing system

*Sewage disposal

Page2




*Electrical system

|

| Tenant must keep bathrooms and floor clean at all times. Tenant will maintain the leased premises
i and keep in good condition excepl those specified above as being Landlord's responsibility
|

Insurance:

Tenant will carry pubiic liability insurance in a minimum amount of one million dollars {$1,600,000.00)
and shall have Storey County named as an additional inused on Tenant's policy. Landlord will carry
fire and extended coverage insurance on the building to include tenamt's area.

Landlord and Tenant release each other from any liability to the other for any property loss damage
or personal injury to the extent covered by the insurance carried by the party suffering the loss,
damage orinjury. Exernpt is loss of revenue to tenant.

Taxes:

Tenant will pay all personal property taxes levied and assessed against Tenant's personal property as

well as the value of the lease as calculated and required by NRS 361.257; 361,227 and 3612278 _—-{ Commantad [KL2]: The referencad sactions of the NRS
requirs the paymant of proparty taxas on property leased
by & tax exempt sntity to an entity conducting & for profit

Landlord is respansible for all personal and real property taxes levied and assesses against business
Landlord's personal property and real property.

Damage to premises:

\
|
If the premises are damaged through fire or other cause not the fault of Tenant, Tenant will owe no
rent for any period during which Tenant is substantially deprived of the use of premises._Loss of
revenue by tenant will be subtracted from monthly rent until loss is repaid to tenant in full. If
Tenant is substantially deprived of the use of the premises for more than 90 days because of such
damage, Tenant may terminate lease by written notice of termination to  Landlord. Upon

rmination of the | by either Tenant or Landlord no furher obligation for loss of uge is
I 1T

Quiet enjoyment:

As long as Tenant is not in default under the terms of this lease, Tenant will have the nght 1o occupy
the premises peacefully and without interference

Page3




Disputes:

if a dispute arises, the parties will try in good faith to settle it through mediation conducted by a
mediator to be mutually selected. The parties will share the costs of the mediator equally. Each

Page4




x *'*‘{Fotmmd: Line spacing: Muitiple 1.15 li

Party will cooperate fully and fairy with mediator and will attempt to reach a mutually satisfactory
compromise to the dispute. If the dispute is not resolved within 30 days after it is referred to the

mediator, either party may take the matter to arbitration before an arbitrator mutually selected by the
parties .
Animales:

Entire agreement:

This is the entire agreement between the parties. It replaces and supersedes any and all oral
agreements between the parties, as well as any prior writings.

Notices:

All notices must be writing. A notice may be delivered to a party at the address that follows a

Party's signature or to a new address that a party designates in writing. A notice may be delivered
in person, by certified mail or by ovemight couner.

Governing laws:

This lease will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the s$tate of Nevada.
Modification:

This lease may be modified only by a written agreement signed by all the parties.

Waiver:

If one party waives any term or provision of this lease at anytime, that waiver will be effective only
for the specific instance and specific purpose for which the waiver was given. If either party failsto

exercise or delays exercising any of its rights or remedies under this lease, that party retains the
right to enforce that term or provision at a later time.

Severability:

If any court determines that any provision of this lease is invalid or unenforceable, any invalidity or
unenforceable will affect only that provision and will not make any other provision of this lease
invalid or unenforceable and shall be modified, amended or limited only to extent necessary to

Page 4




render it valid and enforceable.

Page 5



<yl \n, i

Landlosd Tenant
Dated this day of 2019 Dated this _day of 2019
Storey County VC Ponderosa Salgon LLG
By
Chairman Board of County Cornmigsioners Manager

Storey County, Nevada

Attest

Storey County Clerk Treasurer

Inventory

(Items owned by landlord)
Metal bar stools
Small wooden chairs
Small round tables
Single Keg Cooler
Walk in Cooler
Antique Mirror
Metal storage cabinet

{Items owned by tenant)
Single Keg Cooler
2 - Double door stainless coolers
All shelving Units
Peliet Stove
Ice Machine
2 large wooden pub tables

Page 6

-———{Formattu!: Line spacing: Multiple 1.15 ki




8 wooden bar stools

TV

Page 7



Lease Agreement

Names: This lease is made between Storey County, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada,
hereinafter named "Landlord" and VC Ponderosa Saloon LLC; (dba Old Corner Bar) hereinafter
named "Tenant”

Premises Leased

Landiord is leasing to Tenant, and Tenant is leasing from Landlord the following premises named the
"Old Corner Bar" located

Piper's Opera House
12 North B St
Virginia City, NV 89440

Specifically, Tenant is leasing:
The bar area

Storage area in back of bar
Restrooms
Utility room

Term ofLease:

Lease of the Old comer Bar is fora period of 3 years and begins January 1,2019and is in effect until December
31, 2022. The lease is renewable for an additional 2 years and is automatically renewed unless a
notice of termination in writing is provided at least 90 days prior to the expiration of the initial term.
Either party may terminate this lease at any time upon providing written notice of the termination
90 days in advance of the termination.

Rent:
Rent of $1,800.00 is due the first day of every month for the upcoming month. A late fee of 5% of

the monthly rental will be charged for all rental payments made later than the 15" day
of any month. Purchases made on behalf of the Landlord will be deducted from the next month's

rent.




Improvements made by Tenant:

Tenants may make alterations and improvements to the premises after obtaining Landlords written
consent. At any time before this lease ends, Tenant may remove any of Tenants alterations and
improvements, aslong as Tenant repairs any damage caused by attaching the items to or removing
them from the premises. Written consent is not required for decorating purposes /.e., pictures.

Tenant's use of premises:

Barservices/liguorsalesin and aboutPiper's OperaHouse
Snack/Food services
Music and entertainment

Lobby with written permission (facility form to be filled out)

**Ifthe renter of Piper's Opera House requests to do their own beverage services, the landlord has
the right to assign beverage services to them (excluding weddings-tenant to provide beverage

services).

Landlord's Representations:

Utilities:

Tenant will pay $50.00 per month for water directly to Landlord. Tenant will pay no propane.
Tenant will pay 35% of electric bill. Tenant shall pay for bar phone service, cable and satellite radio

for bar use.

Maintenance and repairs of leased premises:

Landlord will maintain and make all necessary repairs to the following parts of the building in which
the leased premises are located:

*Roof
*Foundation and structural components
*Exterior walls

*Interior walls

* Exterior doors and windows

*Plumbing system

*Sewage disposal




*Electrical system

Tenant must keep bathrooms and floor clean at all times. Tenant will maintain the leased premises
and keep in good condition except those specified above as being Landlord's responsibility.

Insurance:

Tenant will carry public liability insurance in a minimum amount of one million dollars
($1,000,000.00) and shall have Storey County named as an additional inused on Tenant’s policy.
Landlord will carry fire and extended coverage insurance on the building to include tenant's area.

Landlord and Tenant release each other from any liability to the other for any property loss
damage or personal injury to the extent covered by the insurance carried by the party suffering
the loss, damage or injury. Exempt is loss of revenue to tenant.

Taxes:

Tenant will pay all personal property taxes levied and assessed against Tenant's personal property

as well as the value of the lease as calculated and required by NRS 361.257; 361.227 and 361.2275.

Landlord is responsible for all personal and real property taxes levied and assesses
against Landlord's personal property and real property.

Damage to premises:

If the premises are damaged through fire or other cause not the fault of Tenant, Tenant will owe
no rent for any period during which Tenant is substantially deprived of the use of premises. Loss
of revenue by tenant will be subtracted from monthly rent until loss is repaid to tenant in full. If
Tenant is substantially deprived of the use of the premises for more than 90 days because of such
damage, Tenant may terminate lease by written notice of termination to Landlord. Upon
termination of the lease by either Tenant or Landlord no further obligation for loss of use is
required.

Quiet enjoyment:

As long as Tenant is not in default under the terms of this lease, Tenant will have the right to occupy
the premises peacefully and without interference.

Disputes:

If a dispute arises, the parties will try in good faith to settle it through mediation conducted by a

Page 4




mediator to be mutually selected. The parties will share the costs of the mediator equally.
EachParty will cooperate fully and fairly with mediator and will attempt to reach a mutually
satisfactory compromise to the dispute. If the dispute is not resolved within 30 days after it is referred
to the mediator, either party may take the matter to arbitration before an arbitrator mutually selected
by the parties .

Entire agreement:

This is the entire agreement between the parties. It replaces and supersedes any and all oral
agreements between the parties, as well as any prior writings.

Notices:

All notices must be writing. A notice may be delivered to a party at the address that follows a

Party’s signature or to a new address that a party designates in writing. A notice may be delivered
in person, by certified mail or by overnight courier.

Governing laws:

This lease will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada.
Modification:

This lease may be modified only by a written agreement signed by all the parties.

Waiver:

If one party waives any term or provision of this lease at any time, that waiver will be effective only
for the specific instance and specific purpose for which the waiver was given. If either party fails to

exercise or delays exercising any of its rights or remedies under this lease, that party retains the
right to enforce that term or provision at a later time.

Severability:

If any court determines that any provision of this lease is invalid or unenforceable, any invalidity or
unenforceable will affect only that provision and will not make any other provision of this lease
invalid or unenforceable and shall be modified, amended or limited only to extent necessary to

render it valid and enforceable.




Dated this day of 2019.

Storey County

Chairman Board of County Commissioners
Storey County, Nevada

Attest

Storey County Clerk Treasurer

Dated this day of , 2019

VVC Ponderosa Saloon LLC

By:

Manager

Inventory

(Items owned by landlord)

Metal bar stools

Small wooden chairs

Small round tables
Single Keg Cooler
Walk in Cooler
Antique Mirror

Metal storage cabinet

(Items owned by tenant)

Single Keg Cooler

2 - Double door stainless coolers

All shelving Units
Pellet Stove
Ice Machine

2 large wooden pub tables

8 wooden bar stools
TV

Page 6



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 7, 2019 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x ]

1. Title: Public hearing to consider objections to proposed lease of a portion of the County owned
building located at 1705 Peru Drive at the Tahoe Regional Industrial Center in Storey
County Nevada to the Nevada Highway Patrol for no rent.

2. Recommended motion: No action required

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: Resolution 18-519 approved by this Board as amended on December 4, 2018
provided notice that the County proposed to lease a portion of its complex located at 1705
Peru Drive to the Nevada Highway Patrol for no rent. It also set a date for a public hearing
at which objections to the proposed lease would be heard for January 7, 2019 at 10:30 a.m.
at the Virginia City Courthouse. This agenda item is to provide for that hearing. The
purpose of the hearing is to consider objections to the proposed lease.

5. Supporting materials: Amended Resolution 18 - 519 Proposed Lease Agreement

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
X District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner's Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
(] Denied [

Continued

Agenda Item No. 15



AMENDED RESOLUTION NO. 18- 519

RESOLUTION Declaring Intention of Storey County to Lease Real Property
and Improvements Located at 1705 Peru Avenue

WHEREAS, NRS 277.050 authorizes the Board of County Commissioners of Storey
County to lease to a department or agency of the State of Nevada any real property belonging to

the County.; and,

WHEREAS, The land and improvements located at 1705 Peru Avenue is real property

owned by Storey County; and,

WHEREAS; The Nevada Highway Patrol is an agency of the State of Nevada which

desires to lease a portion of that property for highway patrol purposes, and,

WHEREAS, The County is prepared to lease the property to the Nevada Highway

Patrol.
NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:

Storey County proposes to lease a portion of the land and improvements located at 1705 Peru
Avenue located within the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center to the Nevada Highway Patrol for no
rent. The proposed terms of the lease are set out in the Lease Agreement attached as Exhibit A.
A hearing to consider objections to the proposed lease will be held on the 6th day of January,
2019 at the hour of 10:30 a.m. Notice of the adoption of this Resolution and of the time and
date for the public hearing must be published in a newspaper of general circulation published in
Storey County at least twice with the second publication occurring no less than 7 days before the

hearing.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED




That the County Manager is authorized to temporarily license a portion of the facility to the

Nevada Highway Patrol pending a final decision on the approval of the lease

ADOPTED this day of , 2018

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

MARSHALL McBRIDE, Chairman

ATTEST:

VANESSA STEPHENS
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer



Storey County Board of County Commaissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 7, 2019 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Consideration and Possible action on approval/denial of proposed lease of County
property located as 1705 Peru Drive in the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center to the Nevada
Highway Patrol for no rent.

2. Recommended motion | Commissioner, hereby move to approve the lease of a
portion of the County property located at 1705 Peru Drive in the Tahoe Reno Industrial
Center to the State of Nevada for the benefit of the Nevada Highway Patrol on the terms set
forth in the lease and authorize the Chairman to sign.

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis

Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: The State of Nevada, Department of Administration on behalf of the
Department of Public Safety, Higway Patrol Division has requested that the County lease a
portion of its County complex located at 1705 Peru Drive in the Tahoe Reno Industrial

Center in Storey County Nevada for use by the Highway Patrol as a substation. The lease
is for a period of 3 years and for not rent

5. Supporting materials: Amended Resolution 18 — 519 Proposed Lease Agreement

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
X District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

St

o



Agenda Item No.



LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (the “Lease”), made and entered into
this 15th day of October, 2018, by and between the STOREY COUNTY,
hereinafter referred to as LESSOR, and the STATE QF NEVADA,
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION, PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION, hereinafler
referred to as LESSEE, for and on behalf of the DEPARTMENT OF
PUBRLIC SAFETY, NEVADA HIGHWAY PATROL, hereinafter referred to as
TENANT (hereinafter collectively known as “the Parties”).

WITNESSET H:

For and in consideration of the rents herein reserved and the
covenants, terms and conditions herein contained, the LESSOR does
by these presents lease unto LESSEE the following described
property:

Approximately 393 usable square feet of office space,

{the “Demiscd Premises” and “Shared Space”) located at

1705 Peru Drive, Sparks, Nevada 89434. Refer to “EXHIBIT

A", attached hereto and incorporated herein.

ONE. TERM OF LEASE.

1.1 Term of Lecase. Subject to Section Twenty below, LESSOR

hereby leases unto LESSEE and LESSEE agrees to lease from LESSOR
approximately 393 usable square feet of office space, located at
1705 Peru Drive, Sparks, Nevada 89434, effective upon approval of
the Nevada Board of Examiners, cxpected to be on December 11, 2018,
retroactively commencing December 1, 2018 and terminating on

November 30, 2022, with an early occupancy of November 1, 2018.

Page 1 of 10
Storey County

State of Nevada
Department of Administration DPS/NHP
Public Works Division, Leasing Services Section gxh(Ll 1705 Peru Drive, Sparks




1.2 Lack of Funding. Not Applicable, ZERQ dollar lease. See

Section Eleven below.

TWO. RENT. TENANT agrees to pay to the LESSOR as and for
rental for sald Demised Premises the sum of:
2.1 A monthly total of ZERO DOLLARS AND 00/100 ($0.00}.

THREE., UTILITIES AND SERVICES.

3.1 Utilities and Services Provided by LESSCR. LESSOR, at

LESSCR’S sole cost and expense, shall provide the Demised Premises
with utilities and services necessary to sustain a comfortable
professional office environment.

3.2 Utilities and Services Provided and Paid by TENANT.

a) TELEPHONF/DATA. TENANT shall provide state-owned

telephone and computer/data equipment and pay Industrial Standard
user fees for telephone/data services.

b} JANITORIAL SERVICES. TENANT shall provide janitorial

services for the Demised Premises.

3.3 Hours of Operation. TENANT shall have access to the

Demised Premise and the Shared Space twenty-four hours a day 365

days a year as necessary to carry out its operations.

3.4 Building Access. LESSOR shall provide TENANT with access

control cards, alarm codes, and building keys for TENANT employees’
access to the Demised Premises and Shared Space. TENANT shall be
responsible for safeguarding all LESSOR access control cards,
alarm codes, and building keys and ensuring that only authorized

employees have building access.

Page 2 of 10
Storey County

State of Nevada
DPS/NHP

Department of Administralion

Puhlic Works Division, Leasing Services Section 1705 Peru Drive, Sparks




3.5 Co-location. TENANT and LESSOR shall ensure that their

respective employees are sufficiently certified to view, modify,
or otherwise use data which may be housed within the building. It
is the responsibility of TENANT and LESSOR to safeguard the privacy
of its own data.

Neither LESSOR’S nor TENANT'S personncl shall act in any
manner that unreasonably causes disruption to the other party’s
right to quiet enjoyment of the Premises.

FOUR. REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE. LESSCR, at LESSOR’S sole cost

and expense, agrees to provide maintenance and make any and all
repairs necessary to keep the Demised Premises in a first-class
condition during the Lease Term. TENANT shall reimburse LESSOR for
repairs and replacements to the Demised Premises which are
necessary due to TENANT’S misuse or negligence.

FIVE. ALTERATIONS, ADDITIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS. TENANT shall

not negotiate or cause to be made any alterations, additions or
improvements in or to the Demised Premises. TENANT may, at any
time during the Lease Term, requisition LESSEE in writing to
negoliate and arrange alterations, additions, or improvements in
and to the Demised Premises by the LESSOR.

SIX. PAYMENT OF TAXES AND INSURANCE. LESSOR, at their sole

cost and expense, agrees to maintain property and liability
insurance on the building complex and improvements on the Demised
Premises and Shared Space at all times during the Term of this

Lease. LESSOR will pay all applicable real property tazxes or any

Page 3 of 10
Storey County
UES/NHP
1704 Peru Drive, Sparks

State of Nevada
Department of Administration
Public Works Division, Leasing Services Sectien




other asscssments on the Demised Premises when due, including

improvements thereon during the Lease Term hereof or any renewal
period.

TENANT shall maintain in force at its sole cost and expense,
all risk property insurance coverage, including sprinkler leakage
(if the building is equipped with sprinklers}), in an amount egual
to the replacement cost of TENANT’S trade fixtures, furnishings,
equipment, and contents upon the Demised Premises.

The State of Nevada is self-insured for both liability and
property insurance. All liability claims are handled in accordance
with Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 41. Regarding property
insurance, the State self-insures the first Five Hundred Thousand
Dollars ($500,000.00} of each loss. Claims above that amount are
commercially insured under an all risks property insurance policy.

SEVEN. INDEMNIFICATION. To the extent of the 1liability

limitation set forth in NRS Chapter 41, the LESSEE/TENANT hereby
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless LESSCR, its successor,
assigns, agents and employees from all claims, damages, losses and
expenses due to TENANT negligence arising out of or resulting from
the use and cccupancy of the Demised Premises and Shared Space or
any accident in connection therewith, but only to the extent caused
in whole or in part by negligent acts or omissions of TENANT, its
subtenants, employees or agents. The State shall not be required
to indemnify the LESSOR, its successors, assigns, agents and

employees for any liability, claims, damages, losses or expenses

Page 4 of 10

State of Nevada Storey County
Department of Administrarion DPS/NHE
Public Works Division, Leasing Services Section 1705 Peru Drive, Sparks




relating te or arising out of this Lease to the oxtent caused in

whole or in part by the acts, negligence or omission ol LESSCR,
its successors, assigns, agents, and employees, or anyone directly
or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any
of them may be liable. Such obligation shall not be construed to
negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right or obligation
of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to any party or person
described in this paragraph.

EIGHT. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION. LESSOR and LESSEL or TENANT

hereby waive any rights each may have against the cther for loss
or damage to its property or property in which it may have an
interest where such loss is caused by a peril of the type gencrally
covered by all risk property insurance with extended coverage .or
arising from any cause which the claiming party was obligated to
insure against under this Lease, and each party waives any right
of subrogation regarding such property damage or losses, Lhat it
might otherwise have against the other party, any additional
designated insured and any other tenant in the buillding. The
Parties agree to cause their respective insurance companies
insuring the Demised Premises or insuring their property on or in
the Demised Premises to execute a waiver of any such rights of
subrogation or, if so provided in the insurance contract, to give
notice to the insurance carrier or carriers that the foregoing

mutual waiver of subrogation is contained in this Lease.

Page 5 of 10

State of Nevada Storey County
Department of Admrnistration DPS/NHP
Public Works Divisicn, Leasing Services Scction 1705 Peru Drive, Sparks




NINE. BREACH OR DEFAULT. In the event of any failure by

LESSOR, LESSEE, or TENANT to keep and comply with any of the terms,
covenants cr provisions of this Lease or remedy any breach thereof,
the defaulting party shall have thirty (30} days from the receipt
of written notice of such default or breach within which to remove
or cure said default or breach, or in the event the defaulting
party is diligently pursuing the removal or cure of such breach,
a reasonable time shall be allowed beyond the thirty (30) days.

TEN. ATTORNEY'S FEES. In the event suit is brought by LESSOR

or by LESSEE or TENANT for breach of any express provision or
condition of this Lease, the prevailing party of such action shall
be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees, not to exceed $125.00
per hour, which shall be deemed to have accrued on the commencement
of the action and shall be paid on the successful completion of
that suit by LESSCR, LESSEE or TENANT whichever the case may be.

ELEVEN. TERMINATIOQN. This Lease may be terminated by mutual

consent of both parties or unilaterally by either party without
cause, provided that a termination shall not be effective until
ninety (90) days after a party has serviced written notice upon
the other party. The parties expressly agree that this Lease shall
be terminated immediately if for any reason State and/or Federal
funding ability to satisfy this Lease 1s withdrawn, limited, cor
impaired.

TWELVE. HOLDOVER TENANCY. If TENANT holds possession of the

Demised Premises after the expiration of this Lease or if written

Page & of 10

State of Nevada Storey County
Department of Administration UPS/NHP
Public Works Division, Leasing Services Section 1705 Peru Drive, Sparks




notice of intent to renew for any oplion peried herein 1s not

provided as specified, this Lease shall become a month-to-month
lease on the terms herein specified. The monthly rent for each
month shall be in an amount equal to the monthly rental immediately
preceding the Expiration Date.

THIRTEEN. OPTION TO RENEW. LESSEE shall have the option to

renew this Lease by giving written notice of intention to renew at
least ninety {(90) days prior to expiration of the Lease Term or
any renewal period hereunder. Receipt of which shall be
acknowledged by LESSOR in writing. The exercise of the option
shall, however, not be effective nor binding on the Parties herein
unless and until the same has been approved by the Nevada Board of
Examiners, which may occur after the required prior written notice.
FOURTEEN. REMEDIES. The remedies given to LESSOR, LESSEE
and/or TENANT shall be cumulative, and the exercise of any one
remedy shall not be to the exclusion of any other remedy.
FIFTEEN. NOTICES. All notices under this Lease shall be in
writing and delivered in person or sent by certified mail, return
receipt requested, Lo LESSOR and in all cases jointly to both
LESSEE and TENANT at their respective addresses set forth below or

to such other address as may hereafter be designated by either

party in writing:

Page 7 of 10
State of Nevada Storey County

Department of Administration DPS/NNP
Public Works Division, Leasiny Services Section 1705 Peru Drive, Sparks




LESSOR

Storey County

PO Box 176

Virginia City, Nevada 89440
Telephone: (775) 847-0930
Fax: (77%) 847-0949

LESSEE

State of Nevada

Department of Administration
Public Works Division

Attention: Leasing Services

515 East Musser Street, Suite 102
Carson City, Nevada 89701-4263
Telephone: (775) 684-1815

Fax: (775) 684-1817

TENANT

Department of Public Safety
Attn: Contract Manager

555 Wright Way

Carson City, Nevada 89711
Telephone: (775) 684-4698
Fax: (775) 684-4809

SIXTEEN. SEVERABILITY. Tf any term or provision of this Lease

or the application of it to any person or circumstance shall to
any extent determined in a legal proceedings to be invalid and
unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease (or the application of
such term or provision to persons or circumstances other than those
as to which it is invalid or unenforceable) shall not be affected
thereby, and each term and provision of this Lease shall be valid
and shall be enforced to the extent permitted by law.

SEVENTEEN. AMENDMENT OR MODIFICATION. This Lease constitutes

the entire agreement between the Parties and may only be amended

Page 8 ot 10
Storey County

DPS/NHP
1705 Peru Drive, Sparks

State of Ncvada
Department of Administration
Public Works Division, lLeasing Services Section




or modified with the mutual consent of the Parties hereto, which
amendment or modification must be in writing, cxecuted and dated
by the Parties hereto and approved by the Nevada Board of
Examiners.

EIGHTEEN. PARKING. LESSOR shall provide TENANT, two (Z2)
reserved parking spaces for marked patrol vehicles and privately
owned employee vehicles as necessary for use by employees assigned
to work at the Premises, at no cost to the TENANT.

NINETEEN. PRIOR TERMINATION. This Lease may be terminated

prior to the terms set forth herein above if for any reason, the
purpose of this Lease is substantially impaired or obstructed by
any event, occurrence or circumstance outside the control of
LESSOR, LESSEE, or TENANT, including any governmental
condemnation, without prejudice or penalty to any party hereto and
without such evenlt, occurrence or circumstance being defined, and
interpreted or construed as breach or default on the part of any
party.

TWENTY. PRIOR APPROVAL OF THE NEVADA BOARD OF EXAMINERS. This

LLease 1s contingent upon prior approval by the Nevada Board of
Examiners and is not binding upen the Parties hereto or effective

until such approvals.

TWENTY-ONE. COUNTERPARTS. This Lease may be executed in one

or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original and

all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument.

Page % of 10
Storey County

DPS/NHP
1708 Peru Drive, Sparks

State of Nevada
Department of Administratien
Public Works Division, Leasing Services Section




IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Parties hereto have executed this

Lease as of the day and year first above written.

LESSOR

STOREY COUNTY

By o _

Pat Whitten
County Manager

Date

Reviewed as to form and
compliance with law only:

PAUL ADAM LAXALT
ATTORNEY GENERAL

By

Susan K. Stewart
Deputy Attorney General

Date

Approved by:

BOARD OF EXAMINERS

By .
Paul Nicks
Interim Clerk of the Board

Date

LESSEE

STATE OF NEVADA
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION

By
(W/Zard D. Patrick, PE
dministrator

Date

TENANT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

By

James Wright
Director

Date

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
NEVADA HIGHWAY PATROL

By , -
John O’ Rourke

Chief

Date

Page 10 of 10

State of Nevada
Department of Administration

Public Works Division, Leasing Services Section

Storey County
DPS/NHP
1705 Peru Drive, Sparks




3440 @AANDOO

S331440 JNGVIIVAY

- - EXHIBIT “A”

P.0. BOX 435 - 100 TOLL ROAD
VIRGINIA CITY NV 89440
775 847 0958

STOREY COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS

PORTION OF STOREY COUNTY McCARRAN
GOVERNMENT CENTER FLOOR PLAN

SNOISIAY




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 7, 2019 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

Title: Consideration and possible action to approve revised agreement to purchase
Assessor’s Parcel No. (APN) 001-172-003 (fairgrounds parcel) from Richard Correll for
the price of $83,333.00 and the transfer to Mr. Correll of Lot 6 Block 210 Range H in
Virginia City Nevada.

Recommended motion: | (Commissioner) move to approve the revision
of the agreement to purchase APN 001-172-003 from Richard Correll for the sum of
$83.333.00 and the transfer of Lot 6 Block 210 Range H in Virginia City Nevada.

Prepared by: Keith Loomis

Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

Staff summary: The agreement to purchase land presently being used for fairgrounds

from Richard Correll was previously approved by the Board. At the time of approval the
County did not have the signed agreement from Mr. Correll as it had been sent to him for
signature while he was on vacation in Mexico. After approval by the Board, Mr. Correll
requested a revision to the agreement. As approved, the agreement provided for payment
of $83.333.00 and the transfer of Lot 5. If Lot 6 could not be obtained then the payment
would be $97,000.00, the full appraised value of Mr. Correll’s parcel. Mr. Correll did not
want the $97.0000.00, if the transfer of Lot 6 could not be obtained. Consequently the
provision for the payment of $97.000.00 has been stricken. It is anticipated that
realistically, the transfer of lot 6 will occur as it is presently in escrow in the purchase from
Virginia City Ventures, Inc.

Supporting materials:
Revised agreement with Mr. Correll

Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

Legal review required:




X__ District Attorney

Reviewed by:

Department Head
County Manager

Board action:
[] Approved
[1] Denied

Department Name:
Other agency review:

[] Approved with Modifications
(] Continued

Agenda Item No.



AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY (CORRELL)

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between Richard S. Correll, hereafter referred to as
“Correll”, and the County of Storey, hereafter referred to as “County” and is entered into as of the date of its
execution by the last party signing this Agreement as is hereafter set forth.

WHEREAS, Correll owns real property in Virginia City, which is further described as Lots 2, 3, 4,and §
of Block 210 Range H and which bears Assessor’s Parcel No, 001-172-003 (the Correll Parcel); and,

WHEREAS, County desires to purchase the Correll parcel; and,

WHEREAS, County has had the Correll Parcel appraised as required by NRS 244.275; which appraisal
has valued the property at $97,000.00 as of August 8, 2018; and,

WHEREAS, Correll is interested in accepting as part of the consideration for the purchase of his parcel,
the transfer of a lot adjacent to the Correll Parcel. The lot is one of three contiguous lots presently owned by
Virginia City Ventures, Inc. These parcels have been collectively appraised to have a value of $41,000 by Sam
Ward as of an August 8, 2018 appraisal. The three lots within the parcel are identical in shape and size and it is
therefore assumed that one third of the appraised value can be applied to each of the lots, i.e., each would be
valued at $13,666.67. This lot is further described as lot 6 Block 210 Range H Virginia City, Nevada being a
portion of Assessor’s Parcel Number 001-172-01 (hereafter the Adjacent Lot).

WHEREAS County intends to purchase the Adjacent Lot from Virginia City Ventures, Inc. and is
prepared to convey the Adjacent Lot as part of the consideration for the purchase of the Correll Parcel. Virginia
City Ventures, Inc. does not desire to close escrow for the purchase of Adjacent Parcel until the beginning of
2019.

WHEREAS, County and Correll are willing to purchase and sell the property on the terms hereafter sct
forth. :

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutuai covenants and promises herein contained, and
other good and valuable consideration, it is agreed as follows:

L. Subject Property. Correll does hereby agree to sell and County does hereby agree to purchase all
that certain real property situate in Virginia City, Nevada described as Lots 2, 3, 4, and 5, Block 210 Range H,
Virginia City Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number 001-172-03, which is more particularly described on Exhibit
“A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set out in full, together with all improvements thereon and
easements appurtenant thereto.

& Consideration. County will convey the Adjacent Lot to Correll and pay $83,333 in additional
cash to Correll to purchase Correll's parcel bearing APN 001-172-03. The cash payment will be made at the
time of the close of escrow. Transfer of the Adjacent lot by County to Correll is contingent upon the County
purchasing the Adjacent Lot from VC Ventures. If County purchases the Adjacent Lot from VC Ventures, the
transfer of this lot will be made at the time of the close of escrow or as soon thereafter as is feasible. #-Gommuy

Page 1 of 6



3 Property Access. Currently there is access to the Adjacent Lot by use of roadways apparent on
the ground, but the title to which is unclear and uncertain. County agrees not to interfere with Correll’s use of
the roadways, but does not represent or warrant that there will always be clear title to the roadways.

4, Time for Payment of Purchase Price. The transfer-of the Adjacent Lot and the payment of the
additional cash amount shall occur on the déte of the close of escrow.

S. Appraisal Cost. The VCTC has had an appraisal performed with regard to the property by
Samuel K. Ward, Nevada Certified General Appraiser No. 00123, The VCTC will be responsible for all costs
incurred in having the appraisal conducted.

6. Escrow. Upon the execution of this Purchase Agreement, the parties shall open an escrow at
Ticor Title Company, in Carson City, Nevada, to consummate the purchase in accordance with the terms and
provisions hereof, The provisions hereof shall constitute joint instructions to the escrow holder; provided,
however, that the parties shall deposit all funds and execute such additional instructions as requested by the
escrow holder in order to compiete the sale in accordance with the terms set forth herein. Escrow Holder shall
obtain a preliminary title report to which County may enter objections, if any, to exceptions set forth in said title
report. If the objections are not cured by Correll, then County may cancel the escrow or , at its option continue
with the escrow. Said escrow shall close on or about January 15, 2018, and in no event prior to County’s
opportunity to review and offer exceptions to the preliminary title report. County will pay the escrow fee.

7. Possession. Correll agrees to, and shall, deliver possession of the Correll Parcel to County upon
the close of escrow. All of the personal property of Correll must be removed from the property by August 1,
2019. The shop building, fencing and storage shed will remain with the Correl] Parcel. County will deliver
possession of the Adjacent Lot at the close of escrow. During the time that the Adjacent lot is in the ownership
of County, County will provide for hooking up water and sewer service to the Adjacent Lot.

8. Title Policy. The Owner’s policy of title insurance shall be a standard coverage form policy of
title insurance to be paid for by County, subject only to the following exceptions: non-delinquent taxes, non-
delinquent assessments, and any restrictions, conditions, reservations, right-of-way or easements of record

9. Proration. All adjustments shall be made as of the date of closing of the escrow opened by this
Agreement, and shall be prorated between Correll and County to that date. The itemns to be adjusted and
prorated are:

A. Current taxes against the real property computed on a calendar year basis.

B. Unpaid but not delinquent special assessments for local improvements, but all
installments of such assessments due after the closing date shall be assumed and paid by the County.

C. Other prepaid expenses and accrued liabilities which the parties shall agree upon.

Page 2 of 6



10.  Inspections. County will accept the Property “as is”. County does not request any inspections of
the Property.

11, Entire Agreement. Correll and County agree that this Agreement contains all of the provisions
of the agreement between Correll and County for County’s purchase of the Property and its improvements.
There are no agreements, warranties or representations, express or implied, except those expressly set forth
herein. Correll shall have no liability for agreements, warranties or representations, except those expressly sct
forth herein, and Correll shall not be liable by reason of any agreement, representation or warranty made by any
third party to County. All agreements, representations and warranties contained in this Agreement shall apply
as of the closing date and shall survive the closing of this Agreement.

12.  Full Performance. This Agreement and the terms and conditions hereof shall apply to and arc
binding upon the heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns of Correll and County,

13.  Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of Nevada.

14.  Notices. All notices to be given with respect to this Agreement shall be in writing. Each notice
shall be sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, and return receipt requested, to the party or parties
to be notified at the address or addresses set forth herein, or at such other address as either party may, from timc
to time, designate in writing, Every notice shall be deemed to have been given at the time it shal] be deposited
in the United States mail in the manner prescribed herein. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to
preclude personal service of any notice.

The address for County for purposes of this paragraph is:
Storey County -

P.OBox 176

Virginia City, NV, 89440

With copy to:

Storey County District Attorney

PO Box 496

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

The address for Correll for purposes of this paragraph is:
Richard S. Correll

Post Office Box 308
Virginia City, NV 89440

Page 3 of 6



15.  Attorney's Fees. Should any litigation be commenced between the parties hereto concerning this
Agreement or the property the subject of this Agreement, or the rights or duties of either party relating thereto,
the party prevailing in such litigation shall be entitled, in addition to such other relief as may be granted, to 2
reasonable sum as and for said attorney’s fees in such litigation and costs of court herein.

16.  Time for Acceptance. Correll understands that the consummation of this agreement is dependent
upon the approval of this agreement by the Board of County Commissioners in a duly noticed public meeting of
the Board. Accordingly Correll agrees that duthority of the County to accept this agreement will remain open
for a period of thirty days from the date Correll signs this Agreement.

17.  Real Estate Agency and Commission County has not utilized the services of a real estate broker
or real estate sales person in connection with this transaction, and County shall not be liable for the payment of

-any commission to any real estate broker or sales person, or to any other person or entity, in connection with

this transaction.

18.  Interpretation and Representation. No provision in this Agreement is to be interpreted either for
or against either Correll or County because that party or that party’s legal representative drafted the provision.
Correl} and County acknowledge that Correll and County have each had the opportunity to consult with
independent legal counsel concemning the terms and conditions and consequences of this Agreement prior to
signing the Agreement.

19. Counterparts and Facsimile Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, all of which shall be considered one and the same agreement and shall become cffective when one
or more counterparts have been signed by each party and delivered to the other party, it being understood that
all parties need not sign the same counterpart. This Agreement may be executed by facsimile signatures.

County agrees to Purchase the property on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.
Dated this day of , 2018.

STOREY COUNTY

‘BAy Marshall McBride
Chairman Board of County Commissioner of Storey County

Attest:

Storey County Clerk

Correll signature on next page

Page 4 of 6




The undersigned Correll agrees to sell the property on the terms and conditions as stated in this agreement.

Dated this/8 _day of DEC_, 2018.

27 4V (AR

Riaﬁrd S. Correll |

Page S of 6



EXHIBIT A

Legal Description

The land referred to herein is situate in the State of Nevada, County of STOREY, described as follows:

All of Lots 2,3,4, and 5, in Block 210, Range H of Virginia City, Nevada, as shown on the official plat map of
Virginia City, County of Storey, State of Nevada filed in the Office of the County Recorder of Storey County,
Nevada on August {7 1865.

-

ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NO. 001-172-03

Page 6 of 6



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 7, 2019 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Consideration and possible action on Stipulation with Tahoe Reno Industrial Center
LLC (TRIC) to provide that incremental tax revenues used to reimburse owners of property
with the Tax Increment Area for expenses in constructing the effluent pipeline will not be
counted as “Project Revenues™ as that term is defined in the Capital Improvement Plan
agreed upon between Storey County, DP Operating Partnership LLP and TRIC on or about
February 1, 2000 (Project Revenues).

2. Recommended motion: I (Commissioner) move to approve the
Stipulation between Storey County and TRIC that incremental tax revenues derived from
the Tax Increment Area (TIA) and used to reimburse owners of property within the TIA for
the costs of constructing an effluent pipeline will not be counted as Project Revenues when
determining the amount of revenue available to pay for infrastructure vouchers issued to
TRIC.

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis

4. Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964
5 Staff summary: Under the capital Improvement Plan, which is part of the Development

Agreement with TRIC, tax revenues generated within TRI are utilized in part to repay
vouchers issued to TRIC to reimburse TRIC for public infrastructure dedicated to the
County. The proposed stipulation provides that incremental tax revenues generated within
the Tax Increment Area which are to be used to reimburse owners of property within the
TIA for expenses of building the Effluent pipeline will not be included as revenues
available for payment of the vouchers.

6. Supporting materials: Stipulation

7. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller



8. Legal review required:

X __ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:
9 Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [1] Continued

‘ Agenda [tem No. |8



STIPULATION REGARDING INCREMENTAL TAX REVENUES RECEIVED FROM
THE TAHOE RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER TAX INCREMENT AREA

This Stipulation is entered into by and between Storey County, a political subdivision of
the State of Nevada (County), and the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center LLC, a Nevada Limited
Liability Company (TRI Center), and is effective as of the date of its signature by the last party

executing this Stipulation.

BACKGROUND

Storey County has created the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center Tax Increment Area (TIA)
to reimburse certain owners of property within the TIA for the costs of constructing a portion of
an effluent pipeline from the Truckee Meadows Water Reclamation Facility (TMWRF) in
Sparks, Nevada to the TRI GID facility located in the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center (TRIC) in
Storey County, Nevada. It is anticipated that to the extent that parcels of real property located
within the TIA are improved, that additional property tax revenues, sales and use tax revenues
and modified business tax revenues will be generated. A portion of these incremental tax
revenues will be deposited in a tax increment account created by County. It is intended that
funds deposited in the tax increment account will be utilized to reimburse the owners of property
within the TIA for their expenses in contributing to the construction of the effluent pipeline.
The funds will be distributed to owners of property within the TIA in accordance with the
provisions of a reimbursement agreement conditionally approved by the Board of County
Commissioners on December 18, 2018. The funds will also be distributed to County to
reimburse County for advances by the County for administrative costs associated with
administering the TIA. To the extent that there are revenues deposited in the tax increment

account in excess of those necessary to reimburse County for its advance of administrative costs




and to pay annual amounts to the owners of property within the TIA, these excess funds will be

distributed to government entities in accordance with the terms of the reimbursement agreement.
This stipulation is intended to address the effect of the incremental tax revenues that are
distributed to the owners of property within the TIA and that are used to reimburse County for its

advance of administrative costs to administer the TIA.

The reason for addressing the issue of the incremental tax revenues arises from the
existence of a development Agreement and, in particular, Exhibit E to the Development
Agreement referred to as the Capital Improvement Plan, entered into between TRI Center and
County on February 1, 2000 (Development Agreement). In the Development Agrecment, the
County has agreed to pay 35% of the tax, permitting and other revenues originating from TRIC
to retire vouchers issued by County to TRI Center to pay for public infrastructure dedicated to
and accepted by County within TRIC. The incremental tax revenues originating from the TIA
could be considered revenues to be counted towards the funds available to pay the vouchers.
The incremental tax revenues, however, are dedicated to reimbursing the costs of constructing
the effluent pipeline, an activity in which TRI Center is also involved. This Stipulation is
intended to make it clear, that to the extent the incremental tax revenues are used to reimburse
the costs of constructing the effluent pipeline and the costs of administering the TIA, they will
not be counted as revenues originating within TRIC which are available to retire the vouchers

issued by County to TRI Center.
NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY STIPULATED AS FOLLOWS:

To the extent that incremental tax revenues originating within the TIA are utilized to

reimburse owners of property within the TIA for the costs of constructing the effluent pipeline or



are used to reimburse County for the costs of administering the TIA, these revenues will not be
considered as “Project Revenues” as that term is defined in the Development Agreement. These

revenues will not considered as revenues available for retirement of the vouchers.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties have set their hands.

TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER, LLC, COUNTY OF STOREY, a political subdivision
a Nevada limited liability company of the State of Nevada

By: Norman Properties, Inc., a California
corporation, Managing Member

By: By:
Don Roger Norman, President Marshall McBride, Chairman

Date: Date:




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/7/19 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Second reading for General Business License — Crusader Armament & Training. Hank
Shannon, Owner.

2. Recommended motion: [ motion to approve the second reading for General Business License
— Crusader Armament & Training. Hank Shannon, Owner. CCW instructor 112 N Curry
St., Carson City NV.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst.
Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: Second reading for General Business License — Crusader Armament &
Training. Hank Shannon, Owner. CCW instructor 112 N Curry St., Carson City NV.

5. Supporting materials: None

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

_X__ Department Head Department Name: Sheriff, Gerald-Antinoro

e

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——
[ B

Agenda Item No. ]q



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required: 0- 5
1-7-19
Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Tidle: Business License Second Readings -- Approval
2. Recommended mation; Approval
3. Prepared by: Melissa Field
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to the

Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder,

5. Supporting materials: Sce attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
___ _ District Attomey
8. Beviewed by
X mt Department Name:
% P i)

_——— County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board setion:

[] Approved (1 Approved with Modifications

(] Denied (1] Continued

Agenda [tem No. 070



Storey Countp Ganmuuitp Bevelopment
Busginess o Litenging

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 + Fax (775) 847-0935 - mfield@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office December 24, 2018

Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Melissa Field
Please add the following item(s) to the January 7, 2019 COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS

Ec:

CHPROTOZIrRErEQAENDOW,

SUGARLOAF MOUNTAIN MOTEL & MARKET - General / 430 8. “C” st ~ Virginia City, NV
NOMNIVORE LLC - General / 222 E. 8" Ave ~Reno, NV

FIVES CINETIC CORP - General / 23400 Halstead Rd ~ Farmington Hills, MI

DEBELL WINDOW SYSTEMS, INC — Contractor / 2600 S. Virginia St ~ Reno, NV
BIGHORN SERVICES, LLC - General / 560 Juniper St ~ Elko, NV

STRATOSPHERE QUALITY LLC - General / 12024 Exit Five Pkwy ~ Fishers, IN
ANDREWS HARDING, AIA ARCHITECT - General / 111 East 14™ St ~ Elmira Heights, NY
ERM-WEST, INC - General / 1277 Treat Blvd ~ Walnut Creek, CA

SMX, LLC — General / 860 W. Evergreen ~ Chicago, IL

A-1 QUALITY CARE, LLC - Contractor / 12 Sunset Way #206 ~ Henderson, NV

MANWEB SERVICES INC — Contractor / 11800 Exit Five Pkwy ~ Fishers, IN

LOOKOUT TRENDZ — Home / 368 Wagon Wheel Way ~ Dayton, NV

. JHI ENGINEERING, INC — General / 018 SW. Boundary Ct Ste 200 ~ Portland, OR

AMBER’S PET FRIENDLY GROOMING - General / 269 Edith Lane ~ Dayton, NV ‘
MICHAEL THOMAS SCHMOKER - Home / 4590 Tybo Rd ~ Reno, NV 3
HARGROVE SERVICES CORPORATION - General / 20 S. Royal St ~ Mobile, AL |
CBIZ RISK & ADVISORY SERVICES, LLC — General / 6050 Oak Tree Blvd ~ Cleveland, OH \
PANASONIC SOLUTION TECHNOLOGIES CO., LTD — General / Tokyo, JP

SUEZ WTS ANALYTICAL INSTRUMENTS, INC - General / 6060 Spine Rd ~ Boulder, CO

ALLIED MODULAR BUILDING SYSTEMS, INC — General / 642 W. Nicolas Ave ~ Orange, CA

TRUCKEE TAHOE LUMBER COMPANY — General / 10242 Church St ~ Truckee, CA

Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office




